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Black
Hawk College

Office of the President
3099965301 December 21, 2023

To the Citizens of Black Hawk College:

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of Black Hawk College, Community
College District No. 503, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, is hereby
submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness
and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the College.
To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all
material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the
financial position and operations results of the College. All disclosures necessary
to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the College’s financial activities
in relation to its mission, vision, and goals have been included. In addition, this
letter of transmittal should be read in conjunction with the management's
discussion and analysis which immediately follows the independent auditor’s
report and focuses on current activities, accounting changes, and currently known
facts.

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report is presented in five sections:
introductory, financial, statistical, special reports, and management information.
The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, a list of principal officials,
and the College’s organizational chart. The financial section includes the report of
our independent public accountants, management’s discussion and analysis,
basic financial statements, notes to the financial statements, and required
supplementary information. The statistical section includes selected unaudited
financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis.
The special reports section includes Uniform Financial Statements, grants and
enrollment audits required by the lllinois Community College Board (ICCB), and
corresponding auditor’s reports, as well as the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards, related notes, and corresponding auditor's reports. The
management information section contains financial information by fund as well as
budget to actual information utilized by the Board of Trustees and College
management.

The College maintains its accounts and prepares its financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) as set forth by Governmental and Financial Accounting
Standards Boards (GASB and FASB) and the lllinois Community College Board
(ICCB). The financial records of the District are maintained on the accrual basis
of accounting whereby all revenues are recorded when earned and all expenses
are recorded when they have been reduced to a legal obligation to pay.

District 503

6600 34™ Avenue
Moline, IL 61265-5899
309.796.5000

800.334.1311
www.bhc.edu Improving Life Through Learning



The notes to the financial statements explain in further detail the financial statements as well as
the accounting principles applied. The financial statements have been audited by our
independent auditors, Wipfli LLP. Their report is included as part of this financial presentation.

College Profile

Black Hawk College was established in 1946 and was granted official accreditation by the North
Central Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools in March of 1951. Today, Community
College District No. 503 is comprised of portions of nine lllinois counties which include: Rock
Island, Henry, Mercer, Whiteside, Henderson, Knox, Bureau, Stark, and Marshall.

Black Hawk College operates two primary campuses as well as other instructional centers
throughout the District and serves a population of approximately 380,000. The College’s Quad-
Cities Campus is located on 149 wooded acres in Moline, lllinois, while the College’s East
Campus is located on a 102-acre site in Galva, lllinois. In addition to these full-service campuses,
BHC operates facilities including the Outreach Center, and the Industrial Training Lab Extension
Center, all in Moline, the Adult Learning Center in Rock Island, and the East Campus Community
Education Center and Welding and Skilled Trades Center in Kewanee.

Based on U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, local unemployment rates are at 4.0%, which is higher
than the national rate of 3.6% as of the end of June 2023. The state unemployment rate was
4.0% in June 2023. Unemployment rates continue to be below 5.0% since peaking in April 2020.

The District’s principal employers are presented in the statistical section of this report. The Quad-
Cities area is considered a diverse business region and the long-term economic outlook for the
region and the College is viewed as stable. Furthermore, while the district as a whole has not
been immune to recent economic forces, property values have increased each year over a ten
year period. State funding continues to be a concern as budgeted state expenditures still exceed
the incoming revenue despite increased state tax revenues.

Mission, Vision, and Strategic Priorities

OUR MISSION is to
* Inspire students
* Develop talent and
« Strengthen communities

OUR VISION is to prepare learners to live and work in diverse global communities through the
relentless pursuit of student success, innovation and educational excellence.

OUR STRATEGIC PRIORITIES are:

BE A LEADER IN STUDENT SUCCESS AND OUTCOMES - We will prepare all students
for rewarding careers and futures.

To do this, we will:

o Enhance and expand innovative teaching and learning practices and support
services that promote quality educational experiences.

o Implement systematic assessment of learning in academic programs, co-curricular
activities and student services that inform and improve curriculum and student
success.

o Foster an equitable and inclusive learning and student support environment.



o Identify and close equity gaps in student retention, persistence and program
completion rates.

EMBRACE DIVERSITY, EQUITY AND INCLUSION AS PART OF WHO WE ARE - We
will model an inclusive, equity-minded college that educates and celebrates the unique
contributions of all members of our community.

To do this, we will:

o Create an inclusive college community of learners in an atmosphere of mutual
respect, inclusiveness and acceptance where all feel welcome and able to
contribute.

o Provide targeted outreach and enroliment opportunities to historically underserved
populations.

o Recruit and retain quality employees who reflect the diversity of our communities.

o Provide opportunities for civic engagement in a diverse, multicultural society.

DEVELOP WORKPLACE CULTURE: WORK AS IF ANYTHING IS POSSIBLE - We will
develop a work environment where employees are innovative, engaged and make a
difference.

To do this, we will:

o Implement programs to strengthen a culture of trust, accountability and
collaboration resulting in innovation and resiliency within the college.

o Establish career pathways for employees through the use of job shadowing,
mentoring and succession planning.

o Invest in strategic professional development opportunities for all employees to
advance their skills, competencies and professional qualities in delivering and
supporting best practices in higher education.

STRENGTHEN INSTITUTIONAL EFFECTIVENESS THROUGH INTEGRATION OF
ASSESSMENT, PLANNING AND RESOURCE ALLOCATION - We will demonstrate
continuous improvement and reflection based on systematic collection, analysis and
communication of the use of information.

To do this, we will;

o Ensure institutional effectiveness through the development, collection and
transparent communication of strategic key performance metrics.

o Implement processes that use data-informed decision making to drive continuous
improvement, allocate resources and enable initiatives that align with the
institution’s strategic priorities.

o Provide stewardship of our resources to ensure financial and environmental
sustainability.

o Adhere to accreditation expectations through continuous improvement, evidence-
based documentation and annual monitoring processes.

STRENGTHEN THE COMMUNITY THROUGH ENGAGEMENT AND WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT - We will be the leading provider of workforce and economic
development solutions.

To do this, we will:



o Expand participation as a genuine economic development partner on regional
economic agency bodies.

o Develop and align college transfer and career and technical programs to meet
regional employer needs.

o Provide co-curricular learning opportunities, such as, but not limited to, internships,
apprenticeships, job shadowing, clinicals, competitive academic teams, etc.,
providing students with experiences and pathways from college to work/career.

Local Economy

Black Hawk College has three primary sources of revenue for the General Fund which includes
the Education, Operations & Maintenance, and Auxiliary fund: Tuition and Fees, State Funding,
and local Property Taxes.

Tuition and fee revenues accounted for approximately 33.2% of total general fund revenue earned
in fiscal year 2023. As illustrated in the Statistical section of this document, total credit hours for
all categories, which includes both restricted and unrestricted hours, increased by 3.9% or 2,594.3
total credit hours in fiscal year 2023. Enroliment was budgeted to remain flat from FY23 budget
to FY24. Preliminary results for fiscal year 2024 Fall semester indicate enrollment increased by
2.1% credit hours when compared to fiscal year 2023 Fall semester on tenth day.

State funding, which accounted for approximately 13.3% of total general fund revenue earned,
continues to be a concern for the College as the level of College appropriations from state funding
remains below the intended one-third of operating revenue. As enrollment in community colleges
across the country and the State of lllinois have increased since COVID, the College still
anticipates State funding levels to remain flat, but steady. There is an ongoing awareness that
the state continues to operate with an unbalanced operating budget, and without adjusting interest
rates used in actuarial calculations, the unfunded liabilities continue to grow. State operating and
equalization grants continue to be an important and valued part of funding Black Hawk College
operations.

Property taxes, which accounted for approximately 33.7% of total general fund revenue earned,
are levied each year for all taxable real property in the District on the basis of the equalized
assessed property values (EAV). Assessed values are established by each of the nine respective
counties within the district. The subsequent property taxes are billed and collected by each
county. Property tax revenue continues to hold relatively stable as equalized assessed values in
the District have steadily been increasing over the past eleven years despite the uncertain
national economic climate and subsequent impact on property values. The College is indirectly
entered in tax abatement agreements with developers in the form of tax incremental financing
(TIF) incentive payments intended to stimulate economic development within a TIF district. The
immediate impact of a TIF district on the College results in a loss of property tax revenue during
the duration of a TIF agreement. Once the TIF agreement expires, the expectation is that the
EAV will have increased due to the increased economic development therefore creating an
opportunity for more tax revenue for the College in future years. The total tax revenue lost in the
2022 tax year due to TIF agreements in place equals 5.1% of total tax extensions as of June 30,
2023.

Financial Planning

The College has taken several steps to offset the negative impact of reduced state funding and
declining enroliment. These steps include:
e Reorganization



¢ New and renovated facilities to attract and retain students

o Competitive tuition rates and fees

o Review and redesign of the organization and business processes, and utilization of
technology to improve efficiency

o Development and implementation of new programs to increase enrollment

¢ Providing multiple modalities of learning which include traditional classroom, online and
hybrid format coursework.

Enroliment trends and course demand are the most significant influence given the core mission
of the institution. Consequently, it is imperative the College focus on strategically aligning financial
resources to these demands in an effort to maximize return on investment for students, taxpayers,
community members, and other stakeholders. To this end, the College implemented Budgeting
for Outcomes through which the College fosters a culture of aligning spending with programmatic
needs.

Finally, the College’s capital budgeting process is designed to provide a systematic, repeatable
method to identify, prioritize, approve, and fund both capital projects and non-capital fixed assets.
In conjunction with this capital budgeting process, the College focuses on ensuring timely
expenditure of existing bond proceeds in a manner consistent with statutory requirements and
approved purposes. Furthermore, the Board remains committed to effective and efficient
management of the property tax levy, which requires the College to proactively manage its debt
strategies.

Black Hawk College recognizes the importance of financial transparency and accountability and
is committed to maximizing return on investment for students, employees, taxpayers, and the
community. The College remains dedicated to operating within a balanced budget.

Internal Controls

Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
controls to ensure compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants.
Internal controls are designed to limit the College’s exposure to risks, safeguard the College’s
assets from theft or misuse, and provide adequate documentation for the preparation of the
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as well as
accounting standards mandated by the ICCB. Internal controls are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes the cost of the control should not exceed the expected benefits and
estimates; and judgments by management are required for valuation of the costs and benefits.
Internal controls are continuously monitored, reviewed, and updated to ensure ongoing efficiency
and effectiveness.

Budgetary Controls

The College maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied
in the annual appropriated budget approved by the College’s Board of Trustees. The legal level
of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot exceed the budgeted amount)
is established at the fund level. The College maintains an encumbrance accounting system as
one technique to accomplish budgetary control. Encumbered amounts lapse at year-end unless
extenuating circumstances exist. Statements of budgetary comparison are presented in the
Management Information section of this document.



Fund Balance Policy

The Board of Trustees adopted a fund balance policy designed to ensure the maintenance of
adequate reserves and protect against unanticipated events that would adversely affect the
financial condition of the College and jeopardize the continuation of necessary programs and
services.

This policy requires the College to maintain an unrestricted General Fund ending fund balance of
an amount between seventeen (17) and forty (40) percent of expenses in these funds, which
traditionally includes the Education and Operations & Maintenance funds. The Auxiliary fund has
recently been added to the General Fund calculation as any short-coming from Auxiliary is
supported by General Fund operations. If the ending general fund balance falls below the target
range, the College is required to replenish the ending general fund balance within two (2) years.
If the ending general fund balance exceeds the target range, the College shall first, allow the
President to expend the excess funds on capital expenses after considering recommendations
from the President’s Cabinet and second, review additional investment options that would allow
the College to earn a greater rate of return.

As of June 30, 2023, the General Fund ending fund balance, including Auxiliary, is 53.4% of fiscal
year 2023 expenses.

Risk Management

The College is self-insured for its health insurance claims. The claims are administered by an
external third party administrator. In addition, the College maintains a stop loss insurance
arrangement that includes a $145,000 maximum aggregate eligible claims expense per
participant per year as well as a maximum aggregate benefit (in excess of the annual aggregate
deductible per policy term) of $1,000,000. The College also maintains reserves to cover potential
losses and the reserves are reviewed monthly.

Other Information

¢ Independent audit State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants. The accounting firm of Wipfli, LLP was selected by the College to perform
the fiscal year 2023 audit. The auditor’s report on the financial statements and schedules
is unmodified and is included in the financial section of this report.

o Awards Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to
Black Hawk College for its annual comprehensive financial report for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022. This is the 14th consecutive year that the government will achieve this
prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government
must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized annual comprehensive financial
report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current annual comprehensive financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the College has received the GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Award
for fiscal years 2009 through fiscal year 2017. The GFOA budget award process changed
and was renamed to “Award for Best Practices in Community College Budgeting” in 2018.



The College received an award for the 2019 through 2020 budgets under this new
program. The GFOA budget award process and title changed again for the fiscal year
2021 application. The new award was named back to “Distinguished Budget Presentation
Award” and the College has received this award for the 2021, 2022 and 2023 budget.

e Acknowledgements We wish to thank the members of the Board of Trustees for their
interest and support in conducting District financial operations to the degree of excellence
necessary for continuance of operations in a responsible manner.

The timely preparation of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report was made possible by the
continued, dedicated service of Black Hawk College’s Finance and Accounting staff as well as
others connected with the annual audit process. Our sincere appreciation goes out to each
individual making contribution in the preparation of this report.

Respectfully submitted,
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¢ Jeterfly L*Thomas, Ed.D. Steven J. Frommelt
President Executive Vice President and Board Treasurer
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Dena M. Grunewald
Director of Accounting
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Trustees

Black Hawk College

lllinois Community College District #503
Moline, lllinois

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, the discretely presented
component units, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Black Hawk College — Community College
District 503 (the College), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the College’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Black Hawk College — Community College District 503, as of June 30, 2023, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Basis of Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. The financial statements of Black Hawk College Foundation and Black
Hawk East College Foundation were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the College and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2023, the College adopted new accounting guidance, GASB
Statement No. 96, Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the College’s ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

e  Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the College’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the College’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planed
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States require that the management’s discussion and
analysis, schedule of share of net pension liability, schedule of pension contributions, schedule of share of net
OPEB liability, and schedule of OPEB contributions, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the College’s basic financial statements. The ICCB supplemental information, the ICCB uniform financial
statements, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the supplemental financial information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises
the introductory section, statistical section, and management information as listed in the table of contents but does
not include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial
statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements,
or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude

that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 21, 2023, on
our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

L{/%W LLP

Sterling, lllinois
December 21, 2023
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Introduction

This section of Black Hawk College’s (College) Annual Comprehensive Financial Report presents
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the College’s financial activity during the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022. Since this Management’'s Discussion and Analysis is designed to
focus on current activities, resulting change, and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction
with the College’s basic financial statements. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this
information rests with the College.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements focus on the College as a whole versus traditional presentation by fund
types. The College’s financial statements are designed to emulate corporate presentation models
whereby all of the College’s activities are consolidated into one total.

The purpose of the Statement of Net Position/Net Assets is to present the bottom line results of the
College. This statement combines and consolidates current financial resources with capital assets. It
presents assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net
position/net assets at the end of the fiscal year. The Statement of Net Position/Net Assets requires the
classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current categories. The difference between
total assets plus deferred outflows of resources and total liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources is
reflected in the net position section which reflects net position in three broad categories: net investment
in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. Net position is one indicator of the current financial
condition of the College, while the change in net position is one indicator of whether the overall financial
condition of the College has improved or deteriorated during the year. Restrictions, commitments, or
other limitations may affect the availability of fund resources for future use.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position/Net Assets focuses on both
the gross costs and the net costs of the College’s activities, which are supported mainly by tuition, local
property taxes, and state revenues. It presents the revenues, expenses, and transfer activities that
occurred during the fiscal year. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
requires the classification of revenues and expenses as operating and non-operating. For example,
property taxes and state funding are reported as non-operating revenues.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents the inflow and outflow of cash collected and disbursed by the
College for the fiscal year. It separates the sources and uses of funds by the major categories of
operating, capital and related financing, non-capital financing, and investing activities. This statement
emphasizes the College’s dependence on state and local sources by separating them from operating
cash flows.
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Financial Highlights

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the College recorded total operating revenues of $8,606,993 and
total operating expenses of $45,972,795. The difference produced an operating loss of $37,365,802.
Net non-operating revenue of $51,989,838 offsets this loss and results in an overall increase in net
position of $14,624,036.

Non-operating revenue included local property taxes of $25,322,952, state grants and contracts of
$12,405,981, federal grants and contracts of $6,205,709, and other net miscellaneous revenue of
$8,055,196. Within the state grants and contracts non-operating revenue line, the SURS and CIP
contributions provided by the state, on behalf of the College, to the State University Retirement System
(SURS) totaled $4,392,968. The comparable contribution by the state to SURS and CIP for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022, was $6,275,584.

Operating revenue accounted for 13.7% of the College’s total revenue, while non-operating revenues
accounted for the other 86.3% of the College’s total revenue. Operating revenue consisted of tuition
and fees, net of financial aid awards, totaling $7,108,762 and sales, services, and rentals of facilities
revenues totaling $1,498,231.

Operating expenses accounted for 95.2% of the College’s total expenses, while non-operating
expenses accounted for the remaining 4.8%. The SURS and CIP on-behalf contributions provided by
the state as well as the OPEB expense was allocated among the existing functions of operating
expenses and decreased by $4,496,681 from fiscal year 2022. Total operating expenses, excluding
OPEB expense, SURS on-behalf expense, and CIP on-behalf expense, decreased by 4.0% in fiscal
year 2023 from prior year.

Overall, the College’s financial position remains strong at the end of fiscal year 2023 while operating in
a climate of less than targeted state funding and enrollment trends which impact tuition and future state
appropriations. Data related to enrollment, credit hour, and state funding trend information are available
in the Statistical section of this document. Additionally, overall, actual fiscal year 2023 results compared
to budget were favorable. Details by fund can be found in the Management Information section of this
document.

Long-Term Debt

The College issued $67,735,000 in bonds during fiscal year 2023 for the renovation of existing buildings,
site and street improvements, vehicle updates and technology upgrades across the District and also to
partially refund $1,150,000 of Series 2013A General Obligation Bonds. The unused legal debt capacity
of the College is currently $37,169,792, which represents 2.875% of the assessed valuation of the
College’s district less the $98,477,914 in outstanding debt. See Note 9 regarding Long-Term Liabilities
in the Notes to the Financial Statements for further information.

Economic Factors

Unemployment rates, both locally and nationally, have fluctuated dramatically due to the COVID-19
pandemic. While unemployment exists, hiring and retaining qualified talent continues to be a challenge.
Additional information regarding unemployment rate trends can be found in the Statistical section of this
document.

Property tax revenue accounts for 46.6% of total non-operating revenue and is a direct result of
Equalized Assessed Valuations (EAV) in the district. While some districts have experienced sizable
decreases in EAV over the past few years, the Black Hawk College district EAV continues to grow each
year as overall property values continue to increase. Additional information regarding EAV and
estimated actual property values within the district can be found in the Statistical section of this
document.
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The State of lllinois has approved an annual budget. State revenues have grown, yet the fixed demands
on cash outflow still stress the state’s budget. And while the College remains optimistic the State of
lllinois will continue to support higher education, an on-going financial pattern of spending more than
what is generated is not sustainable. State support is valued and critical to maintain college operations.
The state political environment has changed since the budget impasse of 2016 and 2017 as the
governor’s office is now aligned with state legislators which allows more measures to move forward
including the support of higher education.

Enroliment had a 3.9% increase in fiscal year 2023 compared to a 5.8% decrease during fiscal year
2022. Fall credit hour enrollment for fiscal year 2024 increased by 2.1% from fiscal year 2023 fall credit
hour enrollment. As a community college, Black Hawk is well positioned to serve displaced workers
seeking to enhance existing skills or develop additional skills necessary to re-enter the workforce due
to the relatively short-term nature of many programs offered. Furthermore, both the College
Administration and Board of Trustees are committed to ensuring student needs are effectively met and
to this end, the institution prides itself on being nimble and capable of efficiently implementing
programmatic changes designed to maximize student success.

While the fiscal year 2023 enrollment is up from prior year, there has been a long-run enroliment
decrease trend, and the College Administration and Board of Trustees continue to identify opportunities
for growth. The College is going through the implementation of the long-term facility master plan to
renovate and improve classrooms, hands-on labs, instructional and student space. These renovations
will improve learning environments, expand program offerings, and make a more welcoming
environment, thus providing a greater opportunity for generating credit hours. In addition to capital
development, the Board of Trustees has designated operating funds to be used for faculty and staff
development as well as new program development.

Other Significant Financial Factors

The Board of Trustees adopts tuition and fee rates each February with the adopted rates becoming
effective for the summer, fall, and spring semesters of the upcoming fiscal year. Fiscal year 2023 tuition
rates were increased from $149 per credit hour to $164 per credit hour. Fiscal year 2024 tuition rates
stayed at $164 per credit hour. Tuition rates for 2025 have not yet been finalized but are anticipated to
remain the same. The College is conscious about the recent increases to cost of living and the
importance of keeping tuition as affordable as possible. Without a significant increase in enrollment, an
adjustment to account for changes in auxiliary service revenue and new state mandates (i.e. change in
minimum wage) will be required. Additional information regarding the tuition and fee rate trend is
provided in the Statistical section of this document.

The Board of Trustees adopts the annual tax levy by November of each year for tax revenues to be
received during the upcoming fiscal year. The fiscal year 2023 tax increased 3.6% over fiscal year 2022
primarily due to the increase in EAV throughout the district. While it will need to be revisited, the intention
is to keep the tax levy steady for 2024. Additional information regarding tax levy trend is provided in the
Statistical section.
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Comparative Net Position — Fiscal Years 2023 and 2022

Increase Percent
2023 2022 (Decrease) Change
Current Assets $ 156,111,605 $ 89,387,599 $ 66,724,006 74.6%
Capital Assets, net of depreciation 128,175,272 107,312,893 20,862,379 19.4%
Total Assets $ 284,286,877 $ 196,700,492 $ 87,586,385 44 5%
Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 481,750 $ 290,534 $ 191,216 65.8%
Current Liabilities $ 13,647,337 $ 9,384,989 $ 4,262,348 45.4%
Non-Current Liabilities 101,532,956 39,769,056 61,763,900 155.3%
Total Liabilities $115,180,293 $ 49,154,045 $ 66,026,248 134.3%
Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 25,195,121 $ 18,067,804 $ 7,127,317 39.4%
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 85,463,666 $ 79,874,008 $ 5,589,658 7.0%
Restricted 26,626,858 26,011,156 615,702 2.4%
Unrestricted 32,302,689 23,884,013 8,418,676 35.2%
Total Net position $ 144,393,213 $129,769,177 $ 14,624,036 11.3%

The College had a net position at the beginning of the fiscal year totaling $129,769,177. The increase
in net position of $14,624,036 brought the total net position at the end of fiscal year 2023 to
$144,393,213.

The entire balance sheet had large increases during fiscal year 2023. There was a $66,724,006
increase in current assets due to an increase in cash from the $67,735,000 2023 bond issuance. Capital
assets, net of depreciation, increased by $20,862,379 due to a large amount of new capital projects
being classified as construction in process as well as new subscription assets being capitalized due to
implementation of GASB 96. Deferred outflows of resources increased by 65.8% primarily due to an
increase in deferred outflows of OPEB expense by $176,698. Current liabilities increased by 45.4%
which is mostly a direct result of accounts payable increasing from prior year by $3,655,303 due to
increase in capital projects in process. Non-current liabilities increased by 155.3% due to the
$67,735,000 2023 bond issuance. Deferred inflows of resources increased by 39.4% primarily due to a
$6,708,907 increase in OPEB deferred inflows of resources as well as deferred increased property tax
revenue. Lastly, the unrestricted net position increased by 35.2% primarily due to an increase in surplus
operating fund balances within the Restricted O&M fund balance.

This schedule is prepared from the College’s Statement of Net Position, which is presented on a full
accrual basis of accounting whereby assets costing $5,000 or greater are capitalized and depreciated.

Net Position - Fiscal Year 2023

Unrestricted
22.4%
(18.4% FY22)

Net Investment in

Capital Assets
59.2%

(61.6% FY22)

Restricted
18.4%
(20.0% FY22)
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Comparison of Net Capital Assets Fiscal Years 2023 and 2022

Increase Percent

2023 2022 (Decrease) Change

Capital Assets
Land and Improvements $ 11,943,396 $ 11,943,396 $ - 0.0%
Building and Improvements 127,349,031 120,941,428 6,407,603 5.3%
Equipment 12,485,365 12,315,597 169,768 1.4%
Subscription Assets 946,645 - 946,645 n/a
Construction in Progress 21,177,078 4,619,115 16,557,963 358.5%
Total Capital Assets $ 173,901,515 $ 149,819,536 $ 24,081,979 16.1%
Less Accumulated Depreciation 45,726,243 42,506,643 3,219,600  7.6%

and Amortization
Net Capital Assets $ 128,175,272 $ 107,312,893 $ 20,862,379 19.4%

As of June 30, 2023, the College has recorded $173,901,515 invested in capital assets, $45,726,243

in accumulated depreciation and amortization and $128,175,272 in net capital assets.

Total Capital Assets increased $24,081,979 or 16.1% and Net Capital Assets increased $20,862,379
or 19.4%. This change is due to a large amount of new capital projects being classified as construction
in process as well as new subscription assets being capitalized due to implementation of GASB 96. The
College’s current bonding strategy continues to allow investment in facilities, technology, and
improvements. The expectation exists that Net Capital Assets will increase in future years as a result.
For further information, see Note 5 - Changes in Capital Assets and Note 9 - Long-Term Liabilities in

the Notes to Financial Statements.

Capital Assets - Fiscal Year 2023

Subscription I Land &
mprovements
Construction in Aoszf/zs P 6.9%
Process (0% FY22) (8.0% FY22)

12.2%
(3.1% FY22)

Equipment
7.2%
(8.2% FY22)

Buildings &
Improvements
73.2%
(80.7% FY22)
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Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal years ending June 30, 2023 and 2022

Increase Percent
2023 2022 (Decrease) Change
Operating Revenue:
Tuition and Fees $ 7,108,762 $ 6,351,437 $ 757,325 11.9%
Sales, Services and Rentals 1,498,231 1,291,467 206,764 16.0%
Total Operating Revenue $ 8606993 $ 7,642,904 $ 964,089 12.6%
Less: Operating Expenses 45,972,795 52,359,460 (6,386,665) -12.2%
Operating Income (Loss) $ (37,365,802) $ (44,716,556) $ 7,350,754 -16.4%
Non-operating Revenue:
State Grants & Contracts $ 12,405,981 $ 15,265,077 $ (2,859,096) -18.7%
Federal Grants & Contracts 6,205,709 14,401,804 (8,196,095) -56.9%
Property Taxes 25,322,952 24 474 478 848,474 3.5%
Other Income 8,055,196 5,489,050 2,566,146 46.8%
Total Non-operating Revenue: $ 51,989,838 $ 59,630,409 $ (7,640,571) -12.8%
Change in Net Position $ 14,624,036 $ 14,913,853 § (289,817) -1.9%
Net Position, Beginning of Year 129,769,177 114,855,324 14,913,853 13.0%
Net Position, End of Year $ 144,393,213 $ 129,769,177 $ 14,624,036 11.3%

Total operating revenue increased by 12.6% and total operating expenses decreased 12.2% for fiscal
year 2023 when compared to fiscal year 2022.

Tuition and fees increased $757,325 or 11.9% from fiscal year 2022 to fiscal year 2023. The increase
is attributable to an increase in enroliment along with an increase in tuition and fees. Sales, services,
and rental revenue increased during fiscal year 2023 at 16.0%. The increase is a result of increased
BTC & PaCE revenues, increased internal Marketing salary reimbursement and increased Bookstore
sales.

Total non-operating revenue decreased by $7,640,571. State grants and contracts decreased by
$2,859,096 from fiscal year 2022 primarily due to the $1,882,616 decrease in state on-behalf
contributions as well as the one-time lllinois Capital Development Board (CDB) grants being spent down
in fiscal year 2022 with less activity in these CDB grants in fiscal year 2023. There was also a large
decrease in the lllinois Base Operating grant paid due to decreasing enroliment in past years. Federal
grants and contracts decreased by $8,196,095 related to the final portion of COVID-19 HEERF grant
funds being received in fiscal year 2022. Lastly, an increase of $2,566,146 in other income due to a
large increase in investment earnings revenue in fiscal year 2023.
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Operating Revenues - Fiscal Year 2023

Sales, Service &
Rental of Facilities &
Equipment
17.4%
(16.9% FY22)

Tuition and Fees
82.6%
(83.1% FY22)

Non-Operating Revenues - Fiscal Year 2023

Other Income
15.5%

(9.2% FY22) State Grants &

Contracts
23.9%
(25.6% FY22)

Federal Grants &

Contracts
Property Taxes 11.9%
48.7% (24.1% FY22)

(41.1% FY22)
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Comparison of Operating Expenses
Fiscal Years 2023 and 2022

Increase Percent
2023 2022 (Decrease) Change
Operating Expenses:
Instruction $ 11,344,933 $ 12,832,512 $ (1,487,579) -11.6%
Academic Support 5,548,324 5,529,340 18,984 0.3%
Student Services 3,786,447 3,846,266 (59,819) -1.6%
Public Service / Continuing Ed. 1,100,219 1,142,278 (42,059) -3.7%
Institutional Support 9,714,517 11,396,199 (1,681,682) -14.8%
Auxiliary Services 2,005,481 1,991,567 13,914 0.7%
Scholarships, student grants and 3,630,434 6,834,470  (3,204,036)  -46.9%
waivers
Depreciation and amortization 3,415,478 3,184,520 230,958 7.3%
Loss on Disposal of Equipment 146,914 10,353 136,561 1319.0%
Operations of Physical Facilities 5,280,048 5,591,955 (311,907) -5.6%
Total Operating Expenses $ 45,972,795 $ 52,359,460 $ (6,386,665) “12.2%

Operating expenses for fiscal year 2023 decreased by 12.2% from fiscal year 2022. The SURS and
CIP on-behalf contribution provided by the state decreased to $4,392,968 compared to $6,275,584 in
fiscal year 2022. This $1,882,616 decrease of SURS and CIP on-behalf contribution expense,
$2,614,065 decrease in OPEB expense, plus a net $1,889,984 decrease in all other expenses creates
a net operating expense decrease of $6,386,665 for the fiscal year 2023 when compared to fiscal year
2022. See Notes 6 and 7 in the Notes to Financial Statements for additional information related to CIP
OPEB and SURS Pension Plan contributions.

The change from year to year in the expense categories of Instruction, Academic Support, Student
Services and Public Service / Continuing Education all were heavily impacted by the decrease in SURS
and CIP on behalf contributions provided by the state plus OPEB expense. Outside of this impact, the
largest change in expense from year to year was a decrease of 46.9% in the Scholarships, student
grants and waivers line. This change was a result of distributing the remaining Higher Education
Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF) grant available to students during fiscal year 2022.
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The following graphic illustration shows the operating expenses by program for fiscal year 2023 by
percentage of the total with the comparable percentage for fiscal year 2022 in parenthesis. For both
years, the largest percentage of College money was spent on Instruction.

Operating Expenses - Fiscal Year 2023

Scholarships,

Student Grants and
Waivers Auxiliary Services
7.9% 4.4%

(13.1% FY22) (3.8% FY22)

Loss on Disposal
of Equipment
0.3%
(0.0% FY22)

Institutional Support
21.1%
(21.8% FY22)

Depreciation and
Amortization
7.4%
Operations of (6.0% FY22)
Physical Facilities
11.5%
(10.7% FY22)

Instruction
24.7%
(24.5% FY22)

Public Service
2.4%
(2.2% FY22)

Student
Services
8.2% Academic Support
(7.3% FY22) 12.1%
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Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of Black Hawk College’s
finances and to show Black Hawk College’s accountability for the revenue it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional information, please contact:

Finance Department
6600 34t Avenue
Moline, IL 61265
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Statement of Net Position/Net Assets
June 30, 2023

Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Property taxes, net of allowance $77,037, $0 and $0, respectively
Federal government claims
State of lllinois claims
Student tuition and fees, net of allowance $286,387, $0 and $0, respectively
Other, net of allowance $0, $196 and $58,000, respectively
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets:

Land

Construction and Equipment in process

Building, improvements and equipment, net of accumulated

depreciation $45,725,943, $0 and $1,476,585, respectively

Total capital assets, net of depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows of SURS Pension expense
Deferred Outflows of OPEB expense
Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities:
Payroll
Early retirement
Accrued vacation
Other
Unearned revenues:
Grants and restricted funds
Notes and bonds due in less than one year
Subscriptions due in less than one year
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Early retirement
Accrued vacation
Notes and bonds payable in more than one year
Subscription payable in more than one year
Net OPEB Liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property Taxes
Grants and restricted funds
OPEB
Lease Revenue
Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position/Net Assets (Deficit)
Net Investment in capital assets
Restricted

Audit
Liability, Protection and Settlement
Working Cash
Bond & Interest
Operations & Maintenance, Restricted
Custodial
Grants & Scholarships
Unrestricted
Total net position/net assets

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Primary

Government

Component Units

Black Hawk

College

Black Hawk
East College
Foundation

137,529,927

14,769,385
942,779
1,036,506
416,428
297,413
591,304
527,863

995,556
2,992,290

156,111,605

1,032,464
21,177,078

105,965,730

1,194,370

128,175,272

1,194,370

128,175,272

1,194,370

284,286,877

5,223,370

105,350
376,400

481,750

5,612,756

1,110,308
154,873
235,652

1,191,119

112,319
4,850,000
274,846
205,464

13,647,337

956,069
706,955
93,031,872
321,196
6,516,864

101,532,956

115,180,293

12,839,459
26,044
12,234,910
94,708

25,195,121

85,463,666

280,806
6,050,733
10,194,190
4,073,104
3,659,839
408,595
1,959,591
32,302,689

406,661

144,393,213

5,180,893




Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position/Net Assets
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Primary
Government Component Units
Black Hawk Black Hawk
Black Hawk College East College
College Foundation Foundation
Operating Revenues:
Student tuition and fees, net of $ 7,108,762 $ - $ -
scholarship awards
Sales, service and rental of 1,498,231 - -
facilities and equipment
Total operating revenues 8,606,993 - -
Operating expenses:
Instruction 11,344,933 - -
Academic support 5,548,324 - -
Student services 3,786,447 - -
Public service 1,100,219 - -
Auxiliary services 2,005,481 - -
Institutional support 9,714,517 205,832 479,948
Scholarships, student grants and waivers 3,630,434 215,007 198,748
Operation of physical facilities 5,280,048 - -
Loss on disposal of buildings and equipment 146,914 - -
Depreciation and amortization 3,415,478 - 80,248
Total operating expenses 45,972,795 420,839 758,944
Operating (loss) (37,365,802) (420,839) (758,944)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Property taxes 25,322,952 - -
Personal property replacement taxes 4,611,826 - -
State government sources 12,405,981 - -
Federal government sources 6,205,709 - -
Investment earnings 4,318,491 187,335 375,143
Other sources 1,444,209 822,386 899,498
Interest expense (2,319,330) - -
Total non-operating
revenues (expenses) 51,989,838 1,009,721 1,274,641
Change in net position/net assets 14,624,036 588,882 515,697
Net position/net assets:
Beginning 129,769,177 6,618,187 4,665,196
Ending $ 144,393,213 $ 7,207,069 $ 5,180,893

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Tuition and fees
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers
Sales, service, and rental of facilities and equipment
Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:
State and federal grants and contracts
Personal property replacement taxes
Property taxes
Net cash flows from non-capital financing activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Purchases of capital assets
Proceeds on debt
Debt issuance costs
Principal paid on debt
Interest paid on debt
Principal paid on subscription
Net cash flows from capital
and related financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received

Net cash flows from investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning
Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
(Used in) Operating Activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposal of equipment
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenditures
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Noncash, Capital and Related Financing Activities:
SURS contribution paid by state
OPEB CIP contribution paid by state
OPEB expense
Purchase of capital assets on account
Subscription proceeds

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Primary
Government

Black Hawk
College

$ 7,167,213
(20,905,588)
(16,362,639)

1,401,800

(28,699,214)

16,505,178

4,611,826
25,251,873
46,368,877

(23,540,694)
77,736,455
(861,740)
(7,467,790)
(1,457,590)

(350,603)
44,058,038

4,318,491
4,318,491

66,046,192

71,483,735
I Tz 0r

$ (37,365,802

3,415,478
146,914

(11,550)
83,820
164,911

(14,518)
3,717,871
1,119,316
70,776

(26,430)
8,666,588

$  (28,699,214)

$ 7,599,663
(3,206,695)
(3,256,242)

(62,568)
946,645
$ 2,020,803



Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2023

Voluntary Employees’
Benefit Association (VEBA)
Health Benefit Plan

Assets
Cash $ 1,332,737
Liabilities
Claims payable 1,180,317
Due to others -
Total liabilities 1,180,317
Net Position, unrestricted $ 152,420
See Notes to Financial Statements.
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2023
Additions:
Employer paid premiums $ 4,701,813
Grant paid premiums 392,581
Employee paid premiums 999,363
Investment earnings 43,459
Total additions $ 6,137,216
Deductions:
Health and dental claims 5,900,132
Administrative 825,394
Total deductions $ 6,725,526
Change in net position (588,310)
Net position:
Beginning 740,730
Ending $ 152,420

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Operation and Significant Accounting Policies
Organization:

Black Hawk College, lllinois Community College District #503 (College) is an lllinois Community College
operating under the mandates and guidelines of the lllinois Board of Higher Education and the lllinois
Community College Board (ICCB). The College offers a wide range of educational opportunities, including
liberal studies, business training, agricultural studies, continuing education, and community service programs.
The College was organized to provide an excellent, affordable alternative in higher education with campus
locations in Moline and Galva, lllinois, and numerous outreach sites.

Significant Accounting Policies:
Financial Reporting Entity: The College is governed by a seven-member Board of Trustees. Board members

are elected through general elections to a six-year term. In addition to the seven members, there is one student
trustee member elected annually to the Board of Trustees.

The College follows Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) standards for determining component
units.

As defined by generally accepted accounting principles established by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), the financial reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as its
discretely presented component units, the Black Hawk College Foundation, and the Black Hawk East College
Foundation.

The two Foundations are legally separate, tax-exempt component units of the College. The Foundations act
primarily as fundraising organizations to supplement the resources that are available to the College in support
of its programs. The 8 to 13-member boards of the Foundations are self-perpetuating and consist of graduates
and friends of the College. Although the College does not control the timing or amount of receipts from the
Foundations, the majority of resources, or income, thereon the Foundations hold and invest are restricted to
the activities of the College by the donors. Because these restricted resources held by the Foundations can
only be used by, or for the benefit of, the College, the Foundations are considered component units of the
College.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Black Hawk College Foundation and the Black Hawk East
Foundation distributed $201,623 and $197,952, respectively, to the College for both restricted and unrestricted
purposes.

The Foundations are private, not-for-profit organizations which are organized and operated exclusively for the
advancement, achievement, and support of the educational programs and services of the College. The
Foundations report their financial results under Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) Statements. Most
significant to the Foundations’ operations and reporting model are Accounting for Contributions Received and
Contributions Made and Financial Reporting for Not-for-Profit-Organizations. As such, certain revenue
recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and
presentation features. No modifications have been made to the Foundations’ financial information in the
College’s financial reporting entity for these differences.

Financial statements for both the Black Hawk College Foundation and Black Hawk East College
Foundation can be obtained by calling the College at 309-796-5302.
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Operation and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation: For financial reporting
purposes, the College is considered a special-purpose government engaged only in business-type activities.
Accordingly, the College’s financial statements have been presented using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized
when earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred. All significant intra-College
transactions have been eliminated. Non-exchange transactions, in which the College receives value without
directly giving equal value in return, includes property taxes; federal, state, and local grants; state
appropriations; and other contributions. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the
period for which the levy is intended to finance. Revenues from grants, state appropriations, and other
contributions are recognized in the year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used
or the fiscal year when the use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the College must provide
local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are
provided to the College on a reimbursement basis.

The College has a fiduciary fund type. Fiduciary fund types are used to account for fiduciary activities (e.g.
assets held on behalf of outside parties, including other governments). The College has the following fiduciary
fund type:

Pension (and other employee benefit) trust fund — is the fund type for the College’s health benefit plan and
is accounted for in essentially the same manner as the business-type activities, using the same
measurement focus and basis of accounting. Employee contributions are recognized in the period in which
the contributions are due. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer made a
formal commitment to provide the contributions. Claims payable are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the health plan. The fund accounts for the assets of the Voluntary Employees’
Beneficiary Association (VEBA). The VEBA was established under Section 501(C)(9) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The trust provides for payment of health (medical, dental, and vision) claims and health
plan administrative and other directly related costs. This fiduciary fund is not considered a fiduciary
component unit due to the College board overseeing the administration of VEBA assets and plan policies.
A separate audit report is issued annually for the VEBA plan as of December 31 and is available in the
Finance Department, 6600 34" Avenue, Moline, IL 61265.

Classification of Revenues and Expenses: Operating revenue and expenses include activities that have the
characteristics of exchange transactions, such as student tuition and fees and sales and services of auxiliary
enterprises, net of financial aid and scholarship awards, salaries and benefits, and materials and supplies.
Non-operating revenues and expenses include activities that have the characteristics of non-exchange
transactions, such as 1) local property taxes, 2) state appropriations, 3) most federal, state and local grants
and contracts, and federal appropriations, and 4) gifts and contributions.

Net Position: Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. “Net investment in capital
assets,” consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by any outstanding balances of
any borrowings, used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Significant unspent
proceeds are reported as restricted. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed
on their use either through enabling legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors,
or laws or regulations of other governments. Amounts restricted for working cash are imposed by enabling
legislation. However, legislation allows for procedures to abolish this fund and remove those restrictions.
Amounts restricted for operations and maintenance are imposed by enabling legislation. When an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, the College first
applies restricted resources.



Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Operation and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Deferred outflows/inflows: In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate
section of deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The College two items that qualify for reporting in
this category. The College reports deferred outflows of resources related to pension and OPEB for its
proportionate shares of collective deferred outflows of resources related to pension and OPEB and College
contributions to pension and OPEB plans subsequent to the measurement date of the collective net pension
and net OPEB liability (asset).

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents the
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The College has four items that qualify for reporting in this category. The
College report unavailable revenues from property taxes and grants that will be available in a future period.
The College also reports deferred inflows of resources for its proportionate share of the collective deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB.

Lease-related amounts are recognized at the inception of leases in which the College is the lessor. The
deferred inflow of resources is recorded in an amount equal to the corresponding lease receivable plus certain
additional amounts received from the lessee at or before the commencement of the lease term that relate to
future periods, less any lease incentives paid to, or on behalf of, the lessee at or before the commencement
of the lease term. The inflow of resources is recognized in a systematic and rational manner of the term of the
lease.

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Property taxes: Property taxes are recognized as a receivable at the time they are levied and the current taxes
receivable represent the 2022 levy. Property tax revenue recorded on the financial statements relates to the
2021 and 2022 levies. Property taxes are levied each year on all taxable real property in the College District.
Property taxes are certified on or before the last Tuesday in December and are attached as an enforceable
lien on the property as of the preceding January 1. These taxes become due and collectible in 2022 or 2023,
respectively, and are collected by the county collectors in the College District who in turn remit to the College
its respective share. An allowance is provided for uncollectible taxes.

Student Tuition and Fees: Student tuition and fees include all such items assessed against students for
educational and service purposes.

College Bookstores Inventory: Inventories of the College bookstores are stated at the lower of cost (first-in,
first-out) or market (net realizable value).

Compensated Absences: Vacation leave is accrued as a liability as it is earned. Sick leave benefits are not
payable upon retirement or termination.

Capital Assets: Capital assets are defined by the College as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an initial useful life of one year or greater. Assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in a
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lllinois Community College District #503

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Operation and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

service concession arrangement are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the life of the asset are
not capitalized.

Depreciation has been provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective
assets. The estimated useful lives for each capital asset type are as follows:

Years
Buildings and improvements 50
Land improvements 50
Equipment 4-10

The College’s collection of works of art, library books, and other similar assets are not capitalized. These
collections are unencumbered, held for public exhibition and education, protected, cared for, and preserved.

Capital assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the service
utility of the capital asset may have significantly and unexpectedly declined. Capital assets are considered
impaired if both the decline in service utility of the capital asset is large in magnitude and the event or change
in circumstance is outside the normal life cycle of the capital asset. Such events or changes in circumstances
that may be indicative of impairment include evidence of physical damage, enactment or approval of laws or
regulations or other changes in environmental factors, technological changes or evidence of obsolescence,
changes in the manner or duration of use of a capital asset, and construction stoppage. The determination of
the impairment loss is dependent upon the event or circumstance in which the impairment occurred.
Impairment losses, if any, are recorded in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.
There were no impairment losses recorded for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Investments: Investments are stated at fair value.

Tax Status: The College is a political sub-division of the State of lllinois and has nontaxable status under the
Internal Revenue Code.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, the College considers all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Receivables: Student accounts receivable are reported net of any anticipated losses due to uncollectible
accounts. The College considers students accounts to be past due when a student has an account balance
after the payment due date for the class. Past due accounts are subject to past due letter collection efforts and
are subsequently placed with third-party collection agencies.

Pensions: For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the State
Universities Retirement System (SURS) and additions/deductions to/from SURS fiduciary net position has
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by SURS. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

For financial reporting purposes, the State of lllinois (State) and its public universities and community colleges
are under a special funding situation. This situation exists when a nonemployer entity (the State) is legally
responsible for making contributions directly to a pension plan that is used to provide pensions to the
employees of another entity (Black Hawk College) and the nonemployer (the State) is the only entity with
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Operation and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

a legal obligation to make contributions directly to a pension plan. The College recognizes its proportionate
share of the State’s pension expense relative to the College’s employees as non-operating revenue and
pension expense, with the expense further allocated to the related function by employees.

Accounting Pronouncements: The College is applying all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) pronouncements.

Other Post-Employment (*OPEB”) Obligations: For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and to OPEB expense, information
about the plan net position of the College Insurance Plan (“CIP”) and additions to/deductions from CIP’s plan
net position has been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CIP. For this purpose, OPEB
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

For the purposes of financial reporting, the State of Illinois and participating employers are considered to be
under a special funding situation. A special funding situation is defined as a circumstance in which a non-
employer entity is legally responsible for making contributions directly to a OPEB plan that is used to provide
OPEB to the employees of another entity or entities and either (1) the amount of the contributions for which
the non-employer entity is legally responsible is not dependent upon one or more events unrelated to OPEB
or (2) the non-employer is the only entity with a legal obligation to make contributions directly to an OPEB plan.
The State of lllinois is considered a non-employer contributing entity. Participating employers are considered
employer contributing entities.

Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements: The College is a party to multiple noncancelable
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs). If the contract provides the College the
right to use the present service capacity and the right to direct the use of the identified asset, it is considered
to be or contain a SBITA. Subscription-based assets and liabilities are recognized at the agreement
commencement date based on the present value of the future payments over the expected contract term. The
SBITA asset is also adjusted for any prepayments made and capitalizable initial implementation costs as
incurred.

The SBITA liability is initially and subsequently recognized based on the present value of its future payments.
Variable payments are included in the present value when the underlying rate or index is fixed and predictable
for the life of the lease. Variable costs that depend on an unpredictable index are accounted for as expenses
as they are incurred. Increases (decreases) to variable payments due to subsequent changes in an index or
rate are recorded as an adjustment to expense in the period in which they are incurred.

The discount rate used is the implicit rate in the SBITA contract, if it is readily determinable, or the College’s
incremental borrowing rate.

For all underlying classes of assets, the College does not recognize SBITA assets and liabilities for short-term
agreements that have a contract term of 12 months or less at contract commencement. Contracts containing
termination clauses in which either party may terminate without cause and the notice period is less than 12
months are deemed short-term agreements with costs included in expense.

For SBITAs whose current year annual payment is less than $35,000, the College has elected to recognize
the payments as an expense in the period incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2.

Cash and Investments

Under provision of the College’s investment policy, the College may invest in select securities allowed by law
as set out in lllinois Compiled Statutes. A summary of allowable securities follows:

Bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, treasury bills, or other securities, which are guaranteed
by the full faith and credit of the United States of America.

Bonds, notes, debentures, or other similar obligations of the United States of America or its agencies.

Interest-bearing savings account, interest-bearing certificates of deposit, or interest-bearing time
deposits, or other investments constituting direct obligations of any bank as defined by the lllinois
Banking Act and only those insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

Short-term discount obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association or in shares or other
forms of security legally issuable by savings and loan associations incorporated under the laws of
the State of lllinois or any other state or under the laws of the United States and only in those savings
and loan associations insured by the FDIC.

Money market mutual funds whose portfolios consist of government securities or agreements to
repurchase such obligations.

lllinois School District Liquid Asset Fund.
lllinois State Funds Money Market Fund.

Funds managed, operated, and administered by a bank provided that the public agency has an
undivided interest in the assets of the fund.

Repurchase agreements of government securities having the meaning set out in the Government
Securities Act of 1986.

Dividends-bearing share accounts, share certificate accounts of a credit union with its principal office
located in lllinois and insured by applicable law.

Funds managed, operated, and administered by a bank.

At June 30, 2023, the College’s cash and cash equivalents balances are as follows:

Depository accounts, checking and

certificates of deposit $ 137,518,560
Petty cash 11,363
Total cash and cash equivalents $137,529,923
Fiduciary funds 1,332,736
Total cash and cash equivalents $138,862,659
Less: Petty cash (11,363)
Total carrying amount of deposits $138,851,296
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Note 2. Cash and Investments (continued)

As of June 30, 2023, the carrying amount of the College’s deposits totaled $138,851,296 with a bank balance
of $139,055,159. Of the $139,055,159 bank balance, $139,055,159 was covered by federal depository
insurance and an Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit as collateral held by the College’s agent in the College’s
name. As of June 30, 2023, $0 was exposed to custodial credit risk. The College has no foreign currency risk
for deposits at year end.

As of June 30, 2023, the College did not hold any investments.

Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates that will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
the change in market interest rates. The College tries to match its maturities on investments with expected
cash flows. As of June 30, 2023, the College did not hold any investments.

Credit Risk:

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Investments in U.S. Government obligations and Brokered CDs are not considered to be of any
credit risk since they carry the full obligation and guarantee of the U.S. Government.

Concentration of Credit Risk:

The College has no investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total College’s investments.

Custodial Credit Risk:

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, an entity will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in
the possession of another party. As of June 30, 2023, there are no investments with custodial credit risk as all
investments are insured via an Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit.

Foreign Currency Risk:

The College has no foreign currency risk for investments at year end.
Note 3. State of lllinois Claims Allowance

In 2009, $1 million from the lllinois Jobs Now! initiative was identified for the College through the lllinois
Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity (DCEQ) for sustainability projects at the Quad-Cities
campus (section 335 of P.A. 096-0039). In response, the College moved forward with the construction of the
Sustainable Technologies building using bond funds as well as the anticipated DCEO funds. This project was
completed in 2013. As of June 30, 2023, the $1 million had still not been received by the College from DCEO.
While the funding was included in the State of lllinois fiscal year 2023 appropriations, the college is waiting on
notification from DCEO as to acceptance and payment. The College has created a 100% allowance against
the $1 million receivable on the financial statements and intends to continue conversations with state
representatives in effort to collect these funds.
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Note 4. Liability, Protection, & Settlement Fund Expenditures

The College had the following Liability, Protection, & Settlement Fund expenditures for the year ended June
30, 2023:

Security $1,024,218
Risk management & loss prevention 974,558
Insurance 694,651
Legal services 61,001
Security related salaries & benefits 512,428

Total Liability, Protection & Settlement Fund expenditures $3,266,856
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Note 5.

Changes in Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2023, is as follows:

Capital assets not being depreciated

Land

Construction in process

Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements
Land improvements
Equipment

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements
Land improvements

Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Subscription-based information technology arrangement assets being amortized

Subscription-based
information technology
arrangement assets

Less accumulated amortization for

Subscription-based

information technology
arrangement assets
Subscription-based information
technology arrangement assets
being amortized, net

Total capital assets, net

Balance Additions Deletions and Balance
July 1, 2022 Transfers June 30, 2023
$ 1,032,464 $ - $ - $ 1,032,464

4,619,115 22,965,566 (6,407,603) 21,177,078
5,651,579 22,965,566 (6,407,603) 22,209,542
120,941,428 - 6,407,603 127,349,031

10,910,932 - - 10,910,932

12,315,597 512,560 (342,792) 12,485,365
144,167,957 512,560 6,064,811 150,745,328

31,437,933 2,246,313 - 33,684,246

2,510,247 214,137 - 2,724,384
8,558,463 778,232 (195,878) 9,140,817

42,506,643 3,238,682 (195,878) 45,549 447

101,661,314 (2,726,122) (146,914) 105,195,881

- 946,645 - 946,645

- 176,796 - 176,796

- 769,849 - 769,849

$ 107,312,893 $ 27,416,896 (6,554,517) $ 128,175,272
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Note 6. Other Post-Employment Benefits

Plan Administration: The Community College Health Insurance Security Fund (CCHISF) (also known as The
College Insurance Program, “CIP) is a non-appropriated trust fund held outside the State Treasury, with the State
Treasurer as custodian. The CIP was established under the State Employees Group Insurance Act of 1971, as
amended, 5 ILCS 375/6.9 (f), which became effective July 1, 1999. The purpose of the CCHISF is to receive and
record all revenues from the administration of health benefit programs under Article 15 of the lllinois Pension Code.
Additions deposited into the Trust are for the sole purpose of providing the health benefits to retirees, as
established under the plan, and associated administrative costs. CIP is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit post-employment healthcare plan that covers retired employees and their dependents of lllinois community
college districts throughout the State of lllinois, excluding the City Colleges of Chicago. As a result of the
Governor’'s Executive Order 12-01, the responsibilities in relation to CIP were transferred to the Department of
Central Management Services (Department) as of July 1, 2013. The Department administers the plan with the
cooperation of the State Universities Retirement System and the boards of trustees of the various community
college districts.

Benefit Provisions: A summary of post-employment benefit provisions, changes in benefit provisions, employee
eligibility requirements including eligibility for vesting, and the authority under which benefit provisions are
established are included as an integral part of the financial statements of the Department of Central Management
Services. A copy of the CCHISF’s financial statements of the Department may be obtained by accessing the
website www.auditor.illinois.gov/Audit-Reports/CMS-CCHISF.asp.

Benefits Provided: CIP health coverage includes provisions for medical, prescription drugs, vision, dental and
behavioral health benefits. Eligibility to participate in the CIP is defined in the State Employees Group Insurance
Act of 1971 (Act) (5 ILCS 375/3). The Act (5 ILCS 375/6.9) also establishes health benefits for community college
benefit recipients and dependent beneficiaries.

Contributions: The State Employees Group Insurance Act of 1971 (5 ILCS 375/6.10) requires every active
contributor of the State Universities Retirement System (SURS), who is a full-time employee of a community
college district or an association of community college boards, to make contributions to the plan at the rate of 0.5%
of salary. The same section of statute requires every community college district or association of community
college boards that is an employer under the SURS, to contribute to the plan an amount equal to 0.5% of the salary
paid to its full-time employees who participate in the plan. The State Pension Funds Continuing Appropriation Act
(40 ILCS 15/1.4) requires the State to make an annual appropriation to the fund in an amount certified by the
SURS Board of Trustees. The State Employees Group Insurance Act of 1971 (5 ILCS 375/6.9) requires the
Director of the Department to determine the rates and premiums for annuitants and dependent beneficiaries and
establish the cost-sharing parameter, as well as funding. At the option of the board of trustees, the college districts
may pay all or part of the balance of the cost of coverage for retirees from their district. Administrative costs are
paid by the CCHISF.

OPEB Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB

Net OPEB Liability:
The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2022. At June 30, 2022, CIP reported a net OPEB liability of
$684,560,152.

Employer Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability:

The amount of the proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to be recognized for the College is $6,516,864 or
0.9520%. This amount is recognized in the financial statement. The change in the College’s proportionate net
OPEB liability was an increase of 0.0125%. The proportionate share of the State’s net OPEB liability associated
with the College is $6,516,864. The total proportionate share of the net OPEB liability associated with the
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College is $13,033,728. The net OPEB liability and total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021, was determined based
on the June 30, 2021, actuarial valuation rolled forward. The basis of allocation used in the proportionate share of
net OPEB liability is the actual reported OPEB contributions made to CIP during fiscal year 2022.

OPEB Expense:
At June 30, 2022, CIP reported a collective net OPEB income of $(287,349,940).

Employer Proportionate Share of OPEB Expense

The employer proportionate share of collective OPEB expense should be recognized similarly to on-behalf
payments as both revenue and matching expenditure in the financial statements. The basis of allocation used in
the proportionate share of collective OPEB expense is the actual reported OPEB contributions made to CIP during
fiscal year 2022. As a result, the College recognized OPEB income of $3,256,242 for its proportionate share of
OPEB expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. In addition, the College recognized an additional
$(3,206,695) as OPEB expense (and revenue) for its proportionate share of the State of lllinois’ contribution to the
plan.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEBs:
Deferred outflows of resources are the consumption of net position by the system that is applicable to future
reporting periods. Black Hawk College’s Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 51,482 $ 2,714,476
Changes in assumption - 8,784,530
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
OPEB plan investments - 337
Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and share of contributions 232,251 735,567
Total deferred amounts to be recognized in pension

expense in future periods 283,733 12,234,910
OPEB contributions made subsequent to the

measurement date 92,667 -
Total $ 376,400 $ 12,234,910
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized in OPEB expense in future periods as follows:

Year ended June 30: Net Deferred Outflows (Inflows) of

Resources
2024 $ (1,991,863)
2025 (1,991,863)
2026 (1,991,863)
2027 (1,991,863)
2028 (1,991,863)
2029 (1,991,863)
Total $ (11,951,177)

Employer Deferral of Fiscal Year 2023 OPEB Expense

The College paid $92,667 CIP contributions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. These contributions were
made subsequent to the OPEB liability date of June 30, 2022, and are recognized as Deferred Outflows of
Resources as of June 30, 2023. This amount will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the
reporting year ended June 30, 2024.

Assumptions and Other Inputs
Actuarial assumptions: The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020,

using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement date, unless
otherwise specified.

Inflation 2.25%

Salary increases Depends on service and ranges from 12.75% at less than 1 year of service to
3.50% at 34 or more years of service for employees under 50 and ranges from
12.00% at less than 1 year of service to 3.00% at 34 or more years of service
for employees over 50. Salary increase includes a 3.00% wage inflation
assumption.

Investment rate of return 0%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation for all plan years

Healthcare cost trend rates  Trend rates for plan year 2023 are based on actual premium increases. For
non-medicare costs, trend rates start at 8.00% for plan year 2024 and
decrease gradually to an ultimate rate of 4.25% in 2039. For MAPD costs,
trends rates are 0% in 2024 to 2028, 19.42% in 2029 to 2033 and 5.86% in
2034, declining gradually to an ultimate rate of 4.25% in 2039.

Mortality rates for retirement and beneficiary annuitants were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree Mortality
Table. For disabled annuitants mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table.
Mortality rates for pre-retirement were based on the Pub-2010 Employee Mortality Table. Tables were adjusted
for SURS experience. All tables reflect future mortality improvements using Projection Scale MP-2020.
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The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2020.

Discount Rate: Projected benefit payments were discounted to their actuarial present values using a Single
Discount Rate that reflects (1) a long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments (to the extent that
the plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits), and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond
rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating as of the measurement
date (to the extent that the contributions for use with the long-term expected rate of return are not met). Since CIP
is financed on a pay-as-you go basis, a discount rate consistent with fixed-income municipal bonds with 20 years
to maturity that include only federally tax-exempt municipal bonds as reported by Fidelity’s index’s “20-year
Municipal GO AA Index” has been selected. The discount rates are 3.69% as of June 30, 2022, and 1.92% as of
June 30, 2021. The increase in the single discount rate from 1.92% to 3.69% caused the total OPEB liability to
decrease by approximately $119.2 million from 2021 to 2022.

The actuarial valuation was based on the Entry Age Normal cost method. Under this method, the normal cost and
actuarial accrued liability are directly proportional to the employee’s salary. The normal cost rate equals the present
value of future benefits at entry age divided by the present value of future salary at entry age. The normal cost at
the member’s attained age equals the normal cost rate at entry age multiplied by the salary at attained age. The
actuarial accrued liability equals the present value of benefits at attained age less present value of future salaries
at attained age multiplied by normal cost rate at entry age.

Sensitivity of Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Single Discount Rate: The following presents the plan’s total
OPERB liability, calculated using a Single Discount Rate of 3.69%, as well as what the plan’s total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a Single Discount rate that is one percentage point higher (4.69%) or lower
(2.69%) than the current rate:

Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2022
to the Single Discount Rate Assumption

Current Single Discount
1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
2.69% 3.69% 4.69%
Net OPEB liability $ 7,133,869 $ 6,516,864 $ 5,989,237

Sensitivity of Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate: The following presents the plan’s
total OPEB liability, calculated using the healthcare cost trend rates as well as what the plan’s total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is one percentage point higher or lower. than
the current healthcare cost trend rates. The key trend rates are 8.00% in 2024 decreasing to an ultimate trend rate
of 4.25% in 2039.

Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2022
to the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate Assumption

Healthcare Cost
Trend
1% Decrease (a) Rates Assumption 1% Increase (b)
Net OPEB liability $ 5823816 $ 6,516,864 $ 7,363,709

Current healthcare trend rates — Pre-Medicare per capita costs: 9.18% in 2023, 8.00% in 2024,
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(a) decreasing by 0.25% per year to an ultimate rate of 4.25% in 2039. Post-Medicare per capita costs:
2.98% in 2023, 0.00% from 2024 to 2028, 19.42% from 2029 to 2033, 5.86% in 2023 decreasing ratably
to an ultimate rate of 4.25% in 2039.

(b) One percentage point increase in current healthcare trend rates — Pre-Medicare per capita costs: 8.18%
in 2023, 7.00% in 2024, decreasing by 0.25% per year to an ultimate rate of 3.25% in 2039. Post-
Medicare per capita costs: 1.98% in 2023, 0.00% from 2024 to 2028, 18.42% from 2029 to 2033, 4.86%
in 2023 decreasing ratably to an ultimate rate of 3.25% in 2039.

(c) One percentage point increase in current healthcare trend rates — Pre-Medicare per captia costs:
10.18% in 2023, 9.00% in 2024, decreasing by 0.25% per year to an ultimate rate of 5.25% in 2039.
Post-Medicare per captia costs: 3.98% in 2023, 1.00% from 2024 to 2028, 20.42% from 2029 to 2033,
6.86% in 2023 decreasing ratably to an ultimate rate of 5.25% in 2039.

Note 7. Defined Benefit Pension Plan
General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description: The College contributes to the State Universities Retirement System (SURS), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit plan with a special funding situation whereby the State of lllinois (State) makes
substantially all actuarially determined required contributions on behalf of the participating employers. SURS was
established July 21, 1941, and provides retirement annuities and other benefits for staff members and employees
of state universities and community colleges, certain affiliated organizations, and certain other state educational
and scientific agencies and for survivors, dependents, and other beneficiaries of such employees. SURS is
considered a component unit of the State’s financial reporting entity and is included in the State’s Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) as a pension trust fund. SURS is governed by Chapter 40, Act 5, Article
15 of the lllinois Compiled Statutes. SURS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by accessing the website at

www.SURS.org.

Benefits Provided: A traditional benefit plan was established in 1941. Public Act 90-0448 (effective January 1,
1998) established an alternative defined benefit program known as the portable benefit package. Tier 1 of the
traditional and portable plan refers to members that began participation prior to January 1, 2011. Public Act 96-
0889 revised the traditional and portable benefit plans for members who began participation on or after January 1,
2011, and who do not have other eligible reciprocal system service. The revised plan is referred to as Tier 2. New
employees are allowed six months after their date of hire to make an irrevocable election whether to participate in
either the traditional or portable benefit plans. A summary of the benefit provisions as of June 30, 2022, can be
found in the Financial Section of SURS ACFR.

Contributions: The State is primarily responsible for funding SURS on behalf of the individual employers at an
actuarially determined amount. Public Act 88-0593 provides a statutory funding plan consisting of two parts: (i) a
ramp-up period from 1996 to 2010 and (ii) a period of contributions equal to a level percentage of the payroll of
active members within SURS to reach 90% of the total Actuarial Accrued Liability by the end of fiscal year 2045.
Employer contributions from “trust, federal, and other funds” are provided under Section 15-155(b) of the lllinois
Pension Code and require employers to pay contributions which are sufficient to cover the accruing normal costs
on behalf of applicable employees. The employer normal cost for fiscal year 2022 and 2023, respectively, was
12.32% and 12.83% of employee payroll. The normal cost is equal to the value of current year’s pension benefit
and does not include any allocation for the past unfunded liability or interest on the unfunded liability. Plan
members are required to contribute 8.0% of their annual covered salary, except for police officers and fire
fighters who contribute 9.5% of their earnings. The contribution requirements of plan members and employers
are established and may be amended by the State’s General Assembly.
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Participating employers make contributions toward separately financed specific liabilities under Section 15-
139.5(e) of the lllinois Pension Code (relating to contributions payable due to the employment of “affected
annuitants” or specific return to work annuitants), Section 15-155(g) (relating to contributions payable due to
earning increases exceeding 6% during the final rate of earnings period), and Section 15-155(j-5) (relating to
contributions payable due to earnings exceeding the salary set for the Governor).

Pension Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Defined
Benefit Pensions

Net Pension Liability:
The net pension liability (NPL) was measured as of June 30, 2022. At June 30, 2022, SURS defined benefit plan
reported a NPL of $29,078,053,857.

Employer Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability:

The amount of the proportionate share of the NPL to be recognized for the College is $0. The proportionate share
of the State’s NPL associated with the College is $111,404,712 or 0.3831%. The College’s proportionate share
changed by (0.0177%) from 0.4008% since the last measurement date on June 30, 2021. This amount is not
recognized in the College’s financial statements. The NPL and total pension liability as of June 30, 2022, was
determined based on the June 30, 2021, actuarial valuation rolled forward. The basis of allocation used in the
proportionate share of net pension liability is the actual reported pensionable contributions made to SURS defined
benefit plan during fiscal year 2021.

Defined Benefit Pension Expense:
For the year ending June 30, 2022, SURS defined benefit plan reported a collective net pension expense of
$1,903,314,699.

Employer Proportionate Share of Defined Benefit Pension Expense:

The employer proportionate share of collective defined benefit pension expense is recognized as nonoperating
revenue with matching operating expense (compensation and benefits) in the financial statements. The basis of
allocation used in the proportionate share of collective pension expense is the actual reported pensionable
contributions made to SURS defined benefit plan during fiscal year 2021. As a result, the College recognized
revenue and defined benefit pension expense of $7,292,036 from this special funding situation during the year
ended June 30, 2023.

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Defined Benefit Pensions

Deferred outflows of resources are the consumption of net position by SURS that is applicable to future reporting
periods. Conversely, deferred inflows of resources are the acquisition of net position by SURS that is applicable
to future reporting periods

SURS Collective Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Sources

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 31,973,496 | $ 28,674,599
Changes in assumption 279,362,441 982,954,268
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 31,628,935 -
Total $ 342,964,872 | $ 1,011,628,867
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SURS Collective Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Year to be Recognized in Future
Pension Expenses

. Net Deferred Outflows

Year Ending June 30 (Inflows) of Resources
2023 $  (332,941,204)

2024 (528,966,820)

2025 (249,290,775)

2026 442 534,804

2027 -
Thereafter -
Total $ (668,663,995)

College Deferral of Fiscal Year 2023 Contributions:

The College paid $105,350 in federal, trust or grant contributions to SURS defined benefit pension plan during the
year ended June 30, 2023. These contributions were made subsequent to the pension liability measurement date
of June 30, 2022, and are recognized as deferred outflows of resources as of June 30, 2023. This amount will be
recognized as a reduction of the pension liability in the reporting year ended June 30, 2024.

Assumptions and Other Inputs

Actuarial assumptions: The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022, valuation were based on the results
of an actuarial experience study for the period June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2020. The total pension liability in the
June 30, 2022, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.25 percent
Salary increases 3.00 to 12.75 percent, including inflation
Investment rate of return 6.50 percent

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 employee and retiree gender distinct tables with projected
generational mortality and a separate mortality assumption for disabled participants. The long-term expected rate
of return on defined benefit pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense
and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return were adopted by the
plan’s trustees after considering input from the plan’s investment consultants and actuary. For each major asset
class that is included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022, these best estimates are
summarized in the following table:

53



54

Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 7. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)
Weighted Average Long-Term
Expected Real Rate of Return

Defined Benefit Plan Strategic Policy Allocation (Arithmetic)
Traditional Growth

Global Public Equity 38.0% 7.62%
Stabilized Growth

Public Credit Fixed Income 9.0 4.20

Credit Real Assets 4.5 4.98

Options Strategies 2.5 4.91

Private Credit 1.0 7.45
Non-Traditional Growth

Private Equity 10.5 11.91

Non-Core Real Assets 25 9.43
Inflation Sensitive

U.S. TIPS 5.0 1.23
Principal Protection

Core Fixed Income 8.0 1.79
Crisis Risk Offset

Systematic Trend Following 10.0 4.33

Alternative Risk Premia 5.0 3.59

Long Duration 4.0 2.16
Total 100.0% 6.08%
Inflation 2.25
Expected arithmetic return 8.33%

Discount Rate: A single discount rate of 6.39% was used to measure the total pension liability. This single discount
rate was based on an expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 6.50% and a municipal bond rate of
3.69% (based on the Fidelity 20-Year Municipal GO AA Index as of June 30, 2022). The projection of cash flows
used to determine this single discount rate were the amounts of contributions attributable to current plan members
and assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer
contributions will be made at rates equal to the statutory contribution rates under the SURS funding policy. Based
on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position and future contributions were sufficient to finance
the benefit payments through the year 2076. As a result, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to projected benefit payments through the year 2076, and the municipal bond rate was
applied to all benefit payments after that date.

Sensitivity of the SURS Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: Regarding the sensitivity of the
NPL to changes in the single discount rate, the following presents the State’s NPL, calculated using a single
discount rate of 6.39%, as well as what the State’s NPL would be if it were calculated using a single discount rate
that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher:

Current Single Discount
1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
5.39% 6.39% 7.39%
$ 35,261,802,968 $ 29,078,053,857 $ 23,928,731,076

Additional information regarding the SURS basic financial statements, including the plan’s net position, can be
found in SURS Annual Comprehensive Financial Report by accessing the website at www.surs.org.
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Plan Description: The College contributes to the Retirement Savings Plan (RSP) administered by the State
Universities Retirement System (SURS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined contribution pension plan
with a special funding situation where by the State of lllinois (State) makes substantially all required
contributions on behalf of the participating employers. SURS was established July 21, 1941, and provides
retirement annuities and other benefits for staff members and employees of state universities and community
colleges, certain affiliated organizations, and certain other state educational and scientific agencies and for
survivors, dependents, and other beneficiaries of such employees. SURS is governed by Chapter 40, Act 5,
Article 15 of the lllinois Compiled Statutes. SURS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by accessing the
website at www.surs.org. The RSP and its benefit terms were established and may be amended by the State’s
General Assembly.

Benefits Provided: A defined contribution pension plan, originally called the Self-Managed Plan, was added to
SURS benefit offerings as a result of Public Act 90-0448, effective January 1, 1998. The plan was renamed
the RSP effective September 1, 2020, after an extensive plan redesign. New employees are allowed six
months after their date of hire to make an irrevocable election whether to participate in either the traditional or
portable defined benefit pension plans or the RSP. A summary of the benefit provisions as of June 30, 2022,
can be found in SURS Annual Comprehensive Financial Report- Notes to the Financial Statements.

Contributions: All employees who have elected to participate in the RSP are required to contribute 8.0% of
their annual covered earnings. Section 15-158.2(h) of the lllinois Pension Code provides for an employer
contribution to the RSP of 7.6% of employee earnings. The State is primarily responsible for contributing to the
RSP on behalf of the individual employers. Employers are required to make the 7.6% contribution for employee
earnings paid from “trust, federal, and other funds” as described in Section 15-155(b) of the lllinois Pension
Code. The contribution requirements of plan members and employers were established and may be amended
by the State’s General Assembly.

Forfeitures: Employees are not vested in employer contributions to the RSP until they have attained five years
of service credit. Should an employee leave SURS-covered employment with less than five years of service
credit, the portion of the employee’s RSP account designated as employer contributions is forfeited. Employees
who later return to SURS-covered employment will have these forfeited employer contributions reinstated to
their account, so long as the employee’s own contributions remain in the account. Forfeited employer
contributions are managed by SURS and are used both to reinstate previously forfeited contributions and to
fund a portion of the State’s contributions on behalf of the individual employers. The vesting and forfeiture
provisions of the RSP were established and may be amended by the State’s General Assembly.

Pension Expense Related to Defined Contribution Pensions
Defined Contribution Pension Expense: For the year ended June 30, 2022, the State’s contributions to the

RSP on behalf of individual employers totaled $89,770,940. Of this amount, $80,902,699 was funded via an
appropriation from the State and $8,868,241 was funded from previously forfeited contributions.

Employer Proportionate Share of Defined Contribution Pension Expense: The employer proportionate share
of collective defined contribution pension expense is recognized as nonoperating revenue with matching
operating expense (compensation and benefits) in the financial statements. The basis of allocation used in the
proportionate share of collective defined contribution pension expense is the actual reported pensionable
contributions made to the RSP during fiscal year 2022. The College’s share of pensionable contributions was
0.3427%. As a result, the College recognized revenue and defined contribution pension expense of $307,627
from this special funding situation during the year ended June 30, 2023, of which $30,390 constituted
forfeitures.
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A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2023, are as follows:

Balance -
Balance June Additions Reductions June 30, Due Within
30, 2022 2023 One Year

Bonds Payable $27,185000 $ 67,735000  $(6,805,000) $ 88,115,000 $ 4,850,000
Unamortized 428,207 10,001,455 (662,790) 9,766,872 1,433,998
premium
SBITAs - 946,645 (350,603) 596,042 274,846
Accrued vacation 934,414 942,608 (934,414) 942,608 235,652
Early retirement 1,224,966 154,873 (268,897) 1,110,942 154,873
OPEB 16,305,315 283,733  (10,072,184) 6,516,864 -
Total $46,077,902  $ 80,064,314  $(19,093,888) $107,048,328 $ 6,949,369

General Obligation Community College Bonds, Series 2013: On March 12, 2013, the College issued
$20,000,000 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013A $10 million taxable and Series 2013B $10 million tax
exempt, to refund short-term debt certificates of that amount. The debt certificates were issued and received
by the College on December 18, 2012. The purpose of issuing these debt certificates was to use the proceeds
for construction of the $15 million Health Sciences Center at the Quad Cities Campus, construct a $3.5 million
Welding and Skilled Trades Center in Kewanee, lllinois, and utilize the remaining $2.5 million to expand and
renovate facilities throughout the College. Principal and interest payments on the General Obligation Bonds
are to be paid annually on December 1 with the final payment on December 1, 2032. Interest only payments
are due June 1 of each year beginning June 1, 2013. Interest rates range from 3.00% to 4.75% over the life of
the bonds. During fiscal year 2023, the Series 2013A bonds were partially defeased by the Series 2023 General
Obligation Community College Bonds and were called on February 27, 2023.

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for the General Obligation
Bonds as of June 30, 2023, are as follows:

Year Ending

. Principal Interest Total
June 30:
2024 - 372,240 372,240
2025 1,190,000 352,308 1,538,986
2026 1,225,000 311,688 1,533,240
2027 1,270,000 271,950 1,538,775
2028 1,300,000 233,400 1,530,150
2029-2033 7,130,000 547,350 7,690,545
Total $ 12,115,000 $ 2,088,936 $ 14,203,936

General Obligation Community College Bonds, Series 2017: On January 5, 2017, the College issued
$28,955,000 in tax exempt General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017, to refund $31.5 million of short-term debt
certificates issued and received by the College on October 20, 2016. The purpose of issuing these debt
certificates was to use the proceeds for a $6.7 million new addition for eight classrooms, $19.8 million existing
building renovation, $2.0 million site prep and street improvements and $3.0 million technology upgrades
across the District. Principal and interest payments on the General Obligation Bonds are to be paid annually
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on December 1 with the final payment on December 1, 2024. Interest only payments are due June 1 of each
year beginning June 1, 2018. The interest rate is 5.00% over the life of the bonds.

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for the General Obligation
Bonds as of June 30, 2023, are as follows:

Year Ending

. Principal Interest Total
June 30:
2024 4,850,000 292,000 5,142,000
2025 3,415,000 85,375 3,500,375
Total $ 8,265,000 $ 377,375 $ 8,642,375

General Obligation Community College Bonds, Series 2023: On February 22, 2023, the College issued
$67,735,000 in tax exempt General Obligation Bonds, Series 2023, to refund $75.0 million of short-term debt
certificates issued and received by the College on November 10, 2022. The purpose of issuing these debt
certificates was to use the proceeds for the renovation of existing buildings, site and street improvements,
vehicle updates and technology upgrades across the District and partially current refund $1,150,000 of Series
2013A General Obligation Bonds. The College partially refunded the Series 2013A bonds to extend the debt
service period from one year to two years resulting in an increase of debt service of $34,140 and economic
loss of $3,539. Principal and interest payments on the General Obligation Bonds are to be paid annually on
December 1 with the final payment on December 1, 2034. Interest only payments are due June 1 of each year
beginning June 1, 2024. The coupon interest rate is 5.00% over the life of the bonds.

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for the General Obligation
Bonds as of June 30, 2023, are as follows:

Yii;grgg?g Principal Interest Total
2024 - 4,166,636 4,166,636
2025 1,280,000 3,242,350 4,522,350
2026 5,105,000 3,114,650 8,219,650
2027 5,495,000 2,902,650 8,397,650
2028 5,960,000 2,643,750 8,603,750

2029-2033 37,980,000 8,019,250 45,999,250

2034-2035 11,915,000 341,125 12,256,125
Total $ 67,735,000 $ 24,430,411 $ 92,165,411

The College is subject to a debt limitation of 2.875% of its assessed valuation of $4,718,181,083 less outstanding
debt. As of June 30, 2023, the College had $37,169,792 remaining legal debt margin.

SBITA — Canvas Learning Management System: Open subscription agreement with Instructure regarding the
Canvas Learning Management System in effect from February 2022 to January 2027. The annual installments
are scheduled to pay a total contract amount of $398,296 over five years. Interest of 1.05% is included in this
SBITA calculation. The remaining annual debt service requirement is as follows:

Y
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Yii;g%%?g Principal Interest Total
2024 47,054 21,480 68,534
2025 53,337 15,196 68,533
2026 60,460 8,073 68,533
Total 160,851 44,749 205,600

SBITA — Anthology: Open subscription agreement with Anthology in effect from September 2022 to August
2027. The annual installments are scheduled to pay a total contract amount of $335,788 over five years.
Interest of 1.05% is included in this SBITA calculation. The remaining annual debt service requirement is as
follows:

Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2024 39,916 26,570 66,486
2025 45,911 21,240 67,151
2026 52,713 15,109 67,822
2027 60,431 8,070 68,501
Total 198,971 70,989 269,960

SBITA — Lumens: Open subscription agreement with Augusoft regarding Lumens in effect from August 2020
to July 2025. The annual installments are scheduled to pay a total contract amount of $332,422 over five years.
Interest of 1.05% is included in this SBITA calculation. The annual debt service requirement is as follows:

Year Ending

June 30: Principal Interest Total
2024 42,649 12,151 54,800
2025 48,344 6,456 54,800
Total 90,993 18,607 109,600

SBITA — Crowdstrike: Open subscription agreement with CDW-G regarding CrowdStrike in effect from
February 2022 to January 2025. The annual installments are scheduled to pay a total contract amount of
$462,062 over three years. Interest of 1.05% is included in this SBITA calculation. The annual debt service
requirement is as follows:

Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2024 145,227 19,393 164,620
Total 145,227 19,393 164,620

Note 10. Early Retirement and Voluntary Separation Plans

Effective May 1, 1983, the College has offered a variety of Early Retirement/ Voluntary Separation plans for
eligible employees. Eligibility and benefits for each plan vary by year of retirement and by the classification of
employee (faculty, staff, collectively bargained).
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Benefit Provisions
Benefits for each plan include Medical/Rx, and may include Dental, Vision, and Life Insurance. No valuation
for life insurance is provided in this analysis. Benefits for Plan H have been cancelled.

The plans vary by the percentage of the College’s monthly contribution rate retirees and spouses pay for
coverage. Details are shown in the Statement of Actuarial Assumptions and Methods.

Generally, subsidized benefits continue through age 70. After age 70, retirees and spouses must pay the full
monthly contribution rate for benefits. For some plans, benefits are no longer provided if the retiree or spouse
is covered under another plan.

Funding Policy
Benefits are paid by the College for post-retirement Medical/Rx, Dental, and Vision benefits as they occur.

Contribution requirements may be amended by the Board of the College.

Statement of Actuarial Assumptions and Methods
Plan Sponsor
Black Hawk College

Statement of Assumptions
The assumptions disclosed are for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

Actuarial Cost Method
Costs are determined using Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method

Asset Valuation Method
Market Value

Discount Rate
3.50%

Projected Salary Increases
Not applicable

Mortality
RP -2014 Mortality Table with projected mortality. The mortality was updated from the RP-2000 Mortality Table

Turnover
Not applicable; this analysis valued retirees only

Retirement Rates
Not applicable; this analysis valued retirees only

Expense
None

Spousal Rate

Where no information is provided:

75% of current male retirees are married at retirement
75% of current female retirees are married
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Male spouses are assumed to be three years older than female spouses

Health Care Trend Rate

Year | Medical/Rx | Dental | Vision
2023 6.5% 4.0% 3.0%
2024 6.0% 4.0% 3.0%
2025 5.5% 4.0% 3.0%
2026 5.0% 4.0% 3.0%
2027 4.5% 4.0% 3.0%
2028+ 4.0% 4.0% 3.0%
Medical/Rx Costs

The following chart shows the monthly contribution rates for the 2022-2023 Plan Year

Coverage Retiree Spouse
Medical/Rx Under 65 | $ 924.61 | $ 1,262.09
Medical/Rx Over 65 $ 443.68 | $ 652.15

The following chart shows the percentage participants and spouses pay for Medical/Rx coverage

Plan Retiree Spouse

Contribution % | Contribution %
A-F 0% 10%
G-H 0% 20%
I 25% 30%
J-K 0% 20%
L(a) 20% 20%
L(b) 30% 30%
M 15% 20%
N-P 25% 25%
Q 100% 100%
R (COBRA) 102% 102%

Participants age 70 and above pay 100% of the monthly contribution rates if they elect to continue participation

Dental and Vision Costs
The following chart shows the monthly contribution rates for the 2022-2023 Plan Year

Coverage | Retiree | Spouse
Dental $ 39.08| $ 59.86
Vision $ 739] $ 11.14
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Participants age 70 and above pay 100% of the monthly contribution rates if they elect to continue participation.

Life Insurance
Not valued in this analysis

The following table shows the Early Retirement and Voluntary Separation liability of the College, separately
for Medical/Rx, Dental, and Vision coverage:

Medical/Rx Dental Vision Total
Number of Retirees Covered 19 19 17 19
Number of Spouses Covered 16 15 13 16
Total Liability $1,016,380 | $ 83,797 | $ 10,766 | $1,110,942
Expected Payments Next Twelve Months $ 140,142 | $ 12456 | $ 2,275 | $ 154,873

The recorded liability for these plans is $1,110,942 as of June 30, 2023.
Note 11. Risk Management and Insurance

The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort, theft, damage to or the destruction of assets,
errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. Those risks are covered by the purchase
of commercial insurance. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage
in any of the past three fiscal years.

The College self-insures for employee medical, dental, and vision coverage through a Voluntary Employees’
Beneficiary Association (VEBA). Self-insurance is in effect with a stop loss insurance arrangement that
includes a $145,000 maximum aggregate eligible claims expense per participant per year as well as a
maximum aggregate benefit (in excess of the annual aggregate deductible per policy term) of $1,000,000.
Coverage from a reinsurer is maintained for claims in excess of the specific and aggregate stop/loss amount.
All claim handling procedures are performed by an independent claims administrator.

The College establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future
claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported but not settled and of claims that have been incurred but
not reported. At June 30, 2023, the amount of these liabilities was $1,180,317. The following represents
changes in those liabilities for the College during the past three years:

Beginning of Current Year Claims Claim Balance at
Fiscal Year and Changes in Payments Fiscal Year-

Liability Estimates End
FY2021 $ 450,000 $ 5,341,340 $ 5,186,340 $ 605,000
FY2022 $ 605,000 $ 6,949,803 $ 6,954,803 $ 600,000
FY2023 $ 600,000 $ 7,219,705 $ 6,639,388 $ 1,180,317

Note 12. Deferred Inflows of Resources

The $26,044 of deferred inflows of resources related to grants and restricted funds reported on the Statement of
Net Position/Net Assets requires the passage of time before it can be properly recognized as revenue.
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Note 13. Commitments

The College has received a number of federal and state grants for specific purposes which are subject to
review and audit by grantor agencies. Such audits may result in requests for reimbursement to granting
agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grants. Based upon prior experience, the College
management believes that such disallowances, if any, will not be material.

As of June 30, 2023, the College had 11 active construction contracts. The remaining commitment on these
contracts as of June 30, 2023, was approximately $31,970,000.

Note 14. Tax Abatements

Tax abatements are defined as a reduction in tax revenues that results from an agreement between one or
more governments and an individual entity in which (a) one or more governments promise to forgo tax revenues
to which they are otherwise entitled and (b) the individual or entity promises to take a specific action after the
agreement has been entered into that contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the
governments or the citizens of those governments. All costs generated from tax abatements for the College
are costs generated by the actions of other governmental bodies and/or costs created by obligations
associated with tax abatement projects.

The College is indirectly entered into tax abatement agreements with developers in the form of tax incremental
financing (TIF) incentive payments intended to stimulate economic development within a TIF district. The
immediate impact of a TIF district on the College results in a loss of property tax revenue during the duration
of a TIF agreement. Once the TIF agreement expires, the expectation is that the EAV will have increased due
to the increased economic development therefore creating an opportunity for more tax revenue for the College
in future years. The total tax revenue lost in the 2022 tax year due to TIF agreements in place equals
$1,306,737 as of June 30, 2023.

Note 15. Component Unit Footnotes

Black Hawk College Foundation Notes to Financial Statements
Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Nature of Entity

Black Hawk College Foundation (the Foundation) was founded under this name on November 19, 1982
as a non profit, lllinois corporation. The Foundation has been organized to operate exclusively for
educational purposes to assist in developing and augmenting the facilities and carrying out the
educational functions of Black Hawk College. In order to achieve such purposes, the Foundation raises
funds by campaign and/or encourages the making of loans, gifts, grants, devises or bequests of money,
donation of property for research and instruction, and the establishment of endowments and
scholarships for buildings, equipment and all other facilities of the College.

The Foundation has a Trustee from Black Hawk College serving as Foundation board member.

The Foundation acts in a fiduciary capacity in order to carry out the foregoing purposes by adhering to
any restrictions imposed by the donor or transferor as well as managing, administering, investing and
disposing of all funds received. Policies for such actions have been established by the Board and must
be abided by for the direction of these actions.
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Basis of Accounting

The Foundation follows the accrual basis of accounting, recognizing revenue when earned and recording
expenses when the liability is incurred.

Pledges of cash which are only in the form of letters of intent are recognized as revenues or gains in the
period the intent was received and as assets, decreases of liabilities, or expenses depending on the
form of the benefits received.

Fund Accounting

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to
the Foundation, its accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting.
Resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds
established according to their nature and purposes. Separate accounts are maintained for each fund.
The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self balancing accounts that
comprise its assets, liabilities, net assets, cash receipts and disbursements. Receipts are allocated to
and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the
means by which spending activities are controlled.

Net Assets

Net assets and revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor
or grantor imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Foundation and changes therein are
classified and reported as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions are net assets available for use in general operations and
not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. The governing board has designated, from
net assets without donor restrictions, a board designated endowment.

Net assets with donor restrictions are net assets subject to donor or certain grantor imposed
restrictions. Some donor imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be
met by the passage of time, long lived assets placed in service, or other events specified by the
donor. Other explicit donor imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor
stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor imposed restrictions are released
when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Comparative Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but not
by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read
in conjunction with the Foundation’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022, from which
the summarized information was derived.
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Inclusion in College Financial Statements

Black Hawk College has included the Foundation as a component unit in its financial statements in
accordance with the provisions of the accounting standard, Determining Whether Certain Organizations
are Component Units.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting the statement of cash flows, the Foundation defines cash accounts which are
not subject to withdrawal restrictions or penalties with an original maturity of three months or less as
cash and cash equivalents.

Investments

The Foundation carries investments in marketable securities with readily determined fair values and all
investments in debt securities at their fair values in the statement of financial position. Quoted market
prices in active markets are used as the basis of measurement. Unrealized gains and losses are
included in the change in net assets in the accompanying statements of activities and changes in net
assets.

Investment income and gains restricted by donors are reported as increases in net assets without donor
restrictions if the restrictions are met (either a stipulated time period ends or a purpose restriction is
accomplished) in the reporting period in which the income and gains are recognized.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Pledges Receivable

Unconditional promises to give are recorded as receivables in the year pledged. Conditional promises
to give are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Promises
to give whose eventual uses are restricted by the donors are recorded as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions. Unrestricted promises to give to be collected in future periods are also recorded as
an increase to net assets with donor restrictions and reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions
when received, unless the donor’s intention is to support current period activities.

Promises to give expected to be collected in less than one year are reported at net realizable value.
Promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value of
estimated future cash flows on a discounted basis applicable to the years in which the promises were
received. The amortization of the discount is recognized as contribution income over the duration of the
pledge. As of June 30, 2023 there were promises to give to the Foundation of $678,500 (see Note 6).
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Contribution Revenue

Contributions, including promises to give, are considered conditional or unconditional, depending on the
nature and existence of any donor or grantor conditions. A contribution or promise to give contains a
donor or grantor condition when both of the following are present:

e An explicit identifying of a barrier, that is more than trivial, that must be overcome before the revenue
can be earned and recognized

e Animplicit right of return of assets transferred or a right of release of a donor or grantor’s obligation to
transfer assets promised, if the condition is not met

Conditional contributions are recognized when the barrier(s) to entitlement are overcome. Unconditional
contributions are recognized as revenue when received.

Unconditional contributions or conditional contributions in which the conditions have been substantially
met or explicitly waived by the donor are recorded as support with or without donor restrictions,
depending on the existence and nature of any donor restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets
with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Contributions that are restricted by the
donor are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the
fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized.

Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

Contributed property and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. Contributions
with donor imposed stipulations regarding how long the contributed assets must be used are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions; otherwise, the contributions are recorded as net assets without
donor restrictions.

Contributed services are recognized in the financial statements, if the services (a) create or enhance a
non financial asset or (b) be specialized skills, provided by entities or persons possessing those skills
that would be purchased if not donated. For the year ending June 30, 2023 the Foundation received
contributed nonfinancial assets of equipment and miscellaneous items valued at $8,572 and contributed
services, software, and supplies from a related party of $151,565. These amounts are included in the
financial statements as contributed nonfinancial asset revenues and expenses.

The Foundation also receives donated services generally in the form of contributed time by volunteers.
However, these donated services are not reflected in the consolidated financial statements since they
do not meet the criteria for recognition as contributed services.

Functional Expenses Allocation Method

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statements of activities and changes in net assets. The statement of functional expenses
presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. Occupancy and management and
general costs excluding administrative salaries are allocated to programs and fundraising based on
revenues generated by those functions.
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Pending Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016 13, Financial Instruments Credit Losses. The standard
requires a financial asset (including trade receivables) measured at amortized cost basis to be presented
at the net amount expected to be collected. Thus, the statement of activities will reflect the measurement
of credit losses for newly recognized financial assets as well as the expected increases or decreases of
expected credit losses that have taken place during the period. This standard will be effective for periods
beginning December 15, 2022. Management is currently evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU
on the financial statements and the related notes to the financial statements.

Note 2 Investments:

Investments are presented in the financial statements in the aggregate at fair value. Gains and losses
on the sale of or redemption at maturity of investments are shown net for each fund.

Investments are composed of the following as of June 30, 2023:

Fair
Cost Value

Exchange-traded & closed-ended funds $559,354 $631,036

Mutual funds 5,455,937 5,188,227
Total investments 6,015,291 5,819,263
Money market funds (cash equivalents) 59,841 59,841

Total investments and money markets $6,075,132  $5,879,104

The following tabulation summarizes the relationship between carrying value and fair value of investment

assets.
Excess of
Fair Fair Value Over
Cost Value (Under) Cost
Balance at end of year $6,015,291 $5,819,263 $(196,028)
Balance at beginning of year 5,846,877 5,562,551 (284,326)
Decrease in unrealized appreciation 88,298
Realized net income (loss) for the year (41,068)
Total net gain for the year $ 47,230
Note 3 Fair Value Measurement:

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, provides the framework for measuring fair value. The framework
provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
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Note 3 Fair Value Measurement: (continued)

value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3
measurements). The three levels of fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows:

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Plan has the ability to access.

Level 2: Inputs to the valuation methodology include; quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; inputs other than
quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; or inputs that are derived principally from or
corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means. If the asset or liability has a
specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be observable substantially the full term of the asset
or liability.

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value. There
have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2023.

Certificates of deposits, mutual funds, bonds and notes and equities: Valued at the cost
basis of shares held by the Plan at year end.

Beneficial interest in perpetual trust: Valued at the net asset value of the trust assets by the
percentage of ownership in the trust assets.

Beneficial interest in charitable trust: Valued at the discounted principal and earnings of the
percentage of the ownership in the trust assets.

The following table presents the Foundation’s approximate fair value hierarchy for the assets measured
at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2023:

Fair

Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments:
Exchange-traded & closed ended $631,036 $631,036 $- $-
Mutual funds 5,188,227 5,188,227 - -
Beneficial interest in:
Perpetual trust 88,557 - - 88,557
Charitable trust 140,151 - - 140,151

Total $6,047,971  $5,819,263 $- $228,708
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Fair Value Measurement: (continued)

Valuation techniques used in fair value measurements need to maximize the use of observable inputs
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. A valuation method may produce a fair value measurement
that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although
the Foundation believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with those used by other
market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions could result in different fair value
measurements at the reporting date.

Changes in assets measured on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs)
for the year ending June 30, 2023:

Beneficial Interest Beneficial Interest
in Perpetual Trust in Charitable Trust
June 30, 2022 $ 83,316 $ 127,662
Change in value 10,537 12,489
Fees (1,085) -
Distributions (4,211) -
June 30, 2023 $ 88,557 $ 140,151

Quantitative Information about Significant Unobservable Inputs Used in Level 3 Nonrecurring
Fair Value Measurements

The following tables represent the Foundation's Level 3 assets, the valuation techniques used to
measure the fair value of the assets, the significant unobservable inputs, and the ranges of values for
those inputs.

As of June 30, 2023

Valuation Significant

Assets Fair Value Technique Unobservable Inputs Range
Fair value of

Market assets contributed to
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust $ 88,557 approach trust N/A

Present value Fair value of

of future cash assets contributed to
Beneficial interest in charitable trust  $140,151 flows trust N/A

Total $228,708
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Note 3 Fair Value Measurement: (continued)
The following table presents the Foundation’s approximate fair value hierarchy for the assets measured
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at June 30, 2023:

Fair
Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Contributed nonfinancial assets:
Services, software, and supplies $151,565 $- $- $151,565
Supplies and misc giveaway items 8,572 - - 8,572
Total $160,137 $- $- $160,137

Quantitative Information about Significant Unobservable Inputs Used in Level 3 Nonrecurring
Fair Value Measurements

The following tables represent the Foundation's Level 3 assets, the valuation techniques used to
measure the fair value of the assets, the significant unobservable inputs, and the ranges of values for
those inputs.

As of June 30, 2023

Valuation Significant
Assets Fair Value Technique Unobservable Inputs Range
Contributed services, software, and Market Fair value of assets
supplies $151,565 approach contributed to trust N/A
Contributed supplies and misc Market Fair value of assets
giveaway items $8,572 approach contributed to trust N/A

Total $160,137

Note 4 Endowment Funds:

The Foundation’s endowment consists of approximately 64 individual funds for a variety of purposes. Its
endowment includes both donor-restricted funds and funds designated by the Board of Directors to
function as endowments. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, net assets associated
with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments,
are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Investment income generated by the Foundation’s endowment funds are used for the benefit of the
Foundation.
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Note 4 Endowment Funds: (continued)
The endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2023 is as follows:

Without With Total
Donor Donor Endowment
Restrictions Restrictions  Assets
Donor-restricted endowment funds $ - $6,440,114 $6,440,114
Board-designated endowment funds 409,491 - 409,491
Total $409,491 $6,440,114 $6,849,605
Changes in endowment net assets as of June 30, 2023 are as follows:
Without With Total
Donor Donor Endowment
Restrictions Restrictions  Assets
Endowment net assts, beginning of year $394,014 $5,905,061 $6,299,075
Donations - 496,386 496,386
Special events - 41,723 41,723
Contributed nonfinancial assets - 8,572 8,572
Change in value of beneficial interest - 19,326 19,326
Investment income 16,609 190,193 206,802
Internal Scholarship Program admin fee (4,827) (50,154) (54,981)
Net unrealized and realized gain(loss) on 3,695 42,252 45,947
investments
Amounts released from restrictions - (213,245) (213,245)
Total $409,491 $6,440,114 $6,849,605

Note 5 Beneficial Interest in Trusts:

The Foundation established the Black Hawk College Foundation Community Endowment Challenge
Fund with The Moline Foundation in 2017 for the benefit of the Foundation. The fund agreement allows
the use of the fund’s principal and income in accordance with The Moline Foundation’s spending policy
for endowed funds for supporting of Black Hawk College Foundation. The fund is held and invested by
The Moline Foundation, which were contributed by the Foundation, and is reported at fair value as
beneficial interest in perpetual trust in the statement of financial position in the amount of $ 88,557 as of
June 30, 2023. Distributions and changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of activities and
changes in net assets.

The Foundation is the beneficiary of a charitable remainder trust that was created independently by
donors and are administered by outside agents designated by the donors. Therefore, the Foundation
has neither possession nor control over the assets of the trust. At the date the Foundation received
notice of a beneficial interest, a contribution with donor restrictions was recorded in the statements of
activities and changes in net assets, and a beneficial interest in charitable trusts held by others was
recorded in the statements of financial position at fair value using present value techniques. Thereafter,
beneficial interests in the trusts are reported at fair value in the statements of financial position in the
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Note 5 Beneficial Interest in Trusts: (continued)
amount of $140,151 as of June 30, 2023.
Changes in fair value are recognized in the statements of activities and changes in net assets. Upon

receipt of trust distributions, in satisfaction of the donor restricted purpose, net assets with donor imposed
time or purpose restrictions are released to net assets without donor restrictions.

Note 6 Pledge Receivable:
Unconditional promises are included in the consolidated financial statements as pledges receivable and

revenue of the appropriate net asset category. An allowance has been set up in the amount of $0 for
uncollectible pledges. The breakdown of pledges receivable as of June 30, 2023 is as follows:

Due in one year or less $ 2,500
Due beyond one year 1,000,000
Less unamortized discount (324,000)
Less allowance for uncollectible pledges 0
Donation receivables $678,500

Note 7 Income Taxes:

The Foundation qualifies for tax exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code as
a charitable group not organized for profit. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the
consolidated financial statements. However, income from certain activities not directly related to the
Foundation's tax-exempt purpose is subject to taxation on unrelated business income.

The Foundation accounts for income taxes in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
Accounting for Uncertainty Income Taxes. The standard provides detailed guidance for the financial
statement recognition, measurement and disclosure of uncertain tax positions recognized in an
enterprise’s financial statements and requires an entity to recognize the financial statement impact of a
tax position when it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination. The
Foundation recorded no liabilities for uncertain tax positions or unrecognized tax benefits.

Note 8 Related Parties:

The Foundation expends funds either directly to or for the indirect benefit of Black Hawk College, a
related party. These expenses are for scholarships and other miscellaneous expenses. During the year,
$137,613 was expended for scholarships, $5,423 expended for student emergency fund grants, and
$58,587 was expended for grants. As of June 30, 2023, the Foundation had payables to the College in
the amount of $85,906.

The College pays the salaries and benefits of the Foundation’'s employees. The Foundation has
implemented “Not for Profit Entities: Services Received from Employees of an Affiliate” that includes
$151,565 on the financial statements as contributed nonfinancial assets revenue and expense for the
personnel costs incurred by the College on the Foundation’s behalf.
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Note 9 Ground Lease:

The Foundation has a ground lease with The Villas at Black Hawk LLC with the initial term running
through December 31, 2053, with two additional 10 year options for a cumulative possible extension of
20 years This lease states basic rent shall be paid in the form of a housing scholarship credit, to be
divided and allocated at Black Hawk College Foundation’s discretion, equal to the value of the annual
rental cost of two bedrooms in a four bedroom unit. The housing scholarship credits shall be given by
The Villas at Black Hawk LLC to Black Hawk College students each lease year. The outstanding balance
of basic rent due in housing scholarship credits from The Villas at Black Hawk LLC equals $12,444 on
June 30, 2023. During fiscal year 2023, $14,554 in housing scholarship credits were received by Black
Hawk College students and an additional housing scholarship credit balance due from The Villas at Black
Hawk LLC for the upcoming fiscal year will be in the amount of $12,444.

The property taxes related to the property that The Villas at Black Hawk LLC occupies is due annually
to Rock Island County from Black Hawk College Foundation. The ground lease with The Villas at Black
Hawk LLC states that the Villas will be responsible for paying the property taxes annually.

Note 10 Net Assets with Donor Restrictions:

Net assets with donor restrictions are available as of June 30, 2023 for the following purposes:

Scholarship $ 5,637,347
Library 19,337
Grants to College 466,014
Student Emergency Fund 17,208
Specific programs 58,153
Scholarships or grants 83,841
Other 158,214
Total $6,440,114

Note 11 Net Assets Released:

The Foundation reports gifts of cash as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that
limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when the purpose of the
restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets
and reported in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as net asses released from
restrictions.

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes
during the year ended June 30, 2023 as follows:

Scholarship $ 136,613
Student emergency grants 5,423
Grants 54,241
Fundraising and special events 8,396
Miscellaneous 8,572

Total $ 213,245
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Note 12 Commitments:

As of June 30, 2023, the Foundation has not committed to paying any scholarships awarded for Fall
2023.

Note 13 Subsequent Events:

The Foundation has evaluated subsequent events through November 15, 2023, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued. The Foundation is not aware of any material
subsequent events which would require recognition or disclosure in the accompanying financial
statements.

Note 14 Liquidity

The Foundation strives to maintain liquid financial assets to meet the short term needs of the Foundation.
Financial assets in excess of daily cash requirements are invested to earn more revenue. Financial
assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions or designations
limiting their use, within twelve months of the consolidated statement of financial position date, comprise
the following as of June 30, 2023: (see next page)

Financial assets available within one year and free of donor restrictions:
Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash $ 70,688
Cash equivalents 1,900
Board-designated endowment 200,000
Board-designated earnings 209,492
Investments 164,737

646,817

Financial Assets with liquidity restrictions greater than one year:
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust (Moline Foundation) 40,245

Financial assets available for expenditure, subject to restrictions:
Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash 343,476
Cash equivalents 4,922
Assets-in kind 50
Receivables 2,500
Investments 481,298
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust (Moline Foundation) 48,312
Beneficial interest in charitable trust (Saffield) 140,151

1,020,709



Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 15. Component Unit Footnotes (continued)
Note 14 Liquidity (continued)

Financial assets held as board-designated term endowment
(quasi-endowments) 129,185

Financial assets subject to donor-imposed endowment restrictions:
Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash 38,175
Cash equivalents 53,019
Investments 4,634,552
4,725,745
Non-cash assets:

Land 45,000
Scholarship receivable from Villas 9,274

Endowed pledge receivable (only enforceable if funds are available
when donor passes away) 676,000
730,274
Total financial assets $7,292,975

Note 15 Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

Contributed services, software, and supplies $ 151,565
Supplies and misc giveaway items 8,572
Total $ 160,137

The Foundation recognizes contributed nonfinancial assets within revenues, including contributed
advertising and services. Unless otherwise noted, contributed nonfinancial assets did not have donor
imposed restrictions.

Contributed fundraising giveaways were used to raise funds during events as raffle or other giveaway
items. Contributed fundraising giveaways is valued and reported at the estimated fair value in the
financial statements based on current rates for similar items.

Contributed services recognized comprise of salaries and benefits for administrative personnel handling
the operations of the Foundation, professional accounting services performed by the College employees,
software, and supplies.
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Black Hawk East College Foundation Notes to Financial Statements
Note 1 Nature of Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Black Hawk East College Foundation (the Foundation) was founded under this name on February 23,
1968 as a non profit, lllinois corporation. The Foundation has been organized to operate exclusively for
educational purposes to assist in developing and augmenting the facilities and carrying out the
educational functions of Black Hawk East College campus located in Galva, lllinois, five miles south of
Kewanee, lllinois. In order to achieve such purposes, the Foundation raises funds by campaign and/or
encourages the making of loans, gifts, grants, devises or bequests of money, donation of property for
research and instruction, and the establishment of endowments, scholarships, and academic chairs for
buildings, equipment and all other facilities of the College.

The Foundation acts in a fiduciary capacity in order to carry out the foregoing purposes by adhering to
any restrictions imposed by the donor or transferor as well as managing, administering, investing and
disposing of all funds received. Policies for such actions have been established by the Board and must
be abided by for the direction of these actions.

There is a separate Foundation whose purpose is to provide for the Black Hawk College Quad Cities
Campus. The two Foundations do not share any Board members, but each may share members with
the Board of Trustees of Black Hawk College.

In December 2011, the Foundation created the Prairie Pointe Apartments LLC. The Prairie Pointe
Apartments LLC was created to finance, construct and manage a student housing facility for Black Hawk
College.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Black Hawk East College
Foundation and the Prairie Pointe Apartments LLC. The Foundation is the sole member of the LLC. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Accounting

The Foundation follows the accrual basis of accounting, recognizing revenue when earned and recording
expenses when the liability is incurred.

Pledges of cash which are only in the form of letters of intent are recognized as revenues or gains in the
period the intent was received and as assets, decreases of liabilities, or expenses depending on the
form of the benefits received.

Fund Accounting

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to
the Foundation, its accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting.
Resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds
established according to their nature and purposes. Separate accounts are maintained for each fund.
The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self balancing accounts that
comprise its assets, liabilities, net assets, cash receipts and disbursements. Receipts are allocated
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Fund Accounting (continued)

and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the
means by which spending activities are controlled.

Net Assets

Net assets and revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor
or grantor imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Foundation and changes therein are
classified and reported as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions are net assets available for use in general operations and not
subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. The governing board has designated, from net assets
without donor restrictions, a board designated endowment.

Net assets with donor restrictions are net assets subject to donor or certain grantor imposed restrictions.
Some donor imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage
of time, long lived assets placed in service, or other events specified by the donor. Other explicit donor
imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in
perpetuity. Donor imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the
stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been
fulfilled, or both.

Inclusion in College Financial Statements

Black Hawk College has included the Foundation as a component unit in its financial statements in
accordance with the provisions of the accounting standard, Determining Whether Certain Organizations
are Component Units.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Foundation defines cash
accounts which are not subject to withdrawal restrictions or penalties with an original maturity of three
months or less as cash and cash equivalents.

Promises To Give

Unconditional promises to give are recorded as receivables in the year pledged. Conditional promises
to give are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Promises
to give whose eventual uses are restricted by the donors are recorded as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions. Unrestricted promises to give to be collected in future periods are also recorded as
an increase to net assets with donor restrictions and reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions
when received, unless the donor’s intention is to support current period activities.

Promises to give expected to be collected in less than one year are reported at net realizable value.
Promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value of
estimated future cash flows on a discounted basis applicable to the years in which the promises were
received. The amortization of the discount is recognized as contribution income over the duration of the
pledge. As of June 30, 2023 there were promises to give to the Foundation of $22,869 (see Note 5).]
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Investments

The Foundation carries investments in marketable securities with readily determined fair values in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Quoted market prices in active markets are used as the
basis of measurement. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets in the
accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets.

Investment income and gains restricted by donors are reported as increases in net assets without donor
restrictions if the restrictions are met (either a stipulated time period ends or a purpose restriction is
accomplished) in the reporting period in which the income and gains are recognized.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are acquired through purchase, donation, or bequest to the Foundation. Expenditures for
the acquisition of property and equipment are recorded at cost and property which is donated is recorded
at the fair value of the property. Fixed assets are capitalized when purchased or received as a donation.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method applied to historical cost or fair market value at
date of donation, whichever is applicable.

Contribution Revenue

Contributions, including promises to give, are considered conditional or unconditional, depending on the
nature and existence of any donor or grantor conditions. A contribution or promise to give contains a
donor or grantor condition when both of the following are present:

e An explicit identifying of a barrier, that is more than trivial, that must be overcome before the revenue
can be earned and recognized

e An implicit right of return of assets transferred or a right of release of a donor or grantor’s obligation
to transfer assets promised, if the condition is not met

Conditional contributions are recognized when the barrier(s) to entitiement are overcome. Unconditional
contributions are recognized as revenue when received.

Unconditional contributions or conditional contributions in which the conditions have been substantially
met or explicitly waived by the donor are recorded as support with or without donor restrictions,
depending on the existence and nature of any donor restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets
with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Contributions that are restricted by the
donor are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the
fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized.

Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

Contributed property and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. Contributions
with donor imposed stipulations regarding how long the contributed assets must be used are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions; otherwise, the contributions are recorded as net assets without
donor restrictions.
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Contributed Nonfinancial Assets (continued)

Contributed services are recognized in the financial statements, if the services (a) create or enhance a
non-financial asset or (b) be specialized skills, provided by entities or persons possessing those skills
that would be purchased if not donated. For the year ending June 30, 2023, the Foundation received
contributed nonfinancial assets of equipment and miscellaneous items valued at $79,599 and
contributed services from a related party of $144,858. These amounts are included in the financial
statements as contributed nonfinancial assets.

The Foundation also receives donated services generally in the form of contributed time by volunteers.
However, these donated services are not reflected in the consolidated financial statements since they
do not meet the criteria for recognition as contributed services.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Pending Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016 13, Financial Instruments Credit Losses. The standard
requires a financial asset (including trade receivables) measured at amortized cost basis to be presented
at the net amount expected to be collected. Thus, the statement of activities will reflect the measurement
of credit losses for newly recognized financial assets as well as the expected increases or decreases of
expected credit losses that have taken place during the period. This standard will be effective for periods
beginning December 15, 2022. Management is currently evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU
on the financial statements and the related notes to the financial statements.

Note 2 Investments:
Investments are presented in the consolidated financial statements in the aggregate at fair value.

Investments are composed of the following as of June 30, 2023:

Fair
Cost Value
Certificates of deposit $324,596 $324,596
Fixed income 10,000 9,923
Mutual funds 1,220,076 1,806,100
Stock 482,513 629,918
Annuity 221,753 221,753

Total investments measured at fair value $2,258,938 $2,992,290
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Note 2 Investments: (continued)

The following tabulation summarizes the relationship between carrying value and fair value of investment

assets.
Excess of
Fair Fair Value Over

Cost Value (Under) Cost

Balance at end of year $2,258,938  $2,992,290 $733,352
Balance at beginning of year 2,022,331 2,491,218 468,887
Change in unrealized appreciation 264,465
Realized net gain (loss) for the year (822)
Total net gain (loss) for the year $263,643

Note 3 Fair Value:

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, provides the framework for measuring fair value. The framework
provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3
measurements). The three levels of fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows:

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Plan has the ability to access.

Level 2: Inputs to the valuation methodology include; quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; inputs other
than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; or inputs that are derived principally from
or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means. If the asset or liability has a
specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be observable substantially the full term of the asset
or liability.

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.



80

Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 15. Component Unit Footnotes (continued)
Note 3 Fair Value: (continued)

The following table presents the Foundation’s approximate fair value hierarchy for the assets measured
at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2023:

Fair
Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis:
Certificates of deposit $324,596 $ - $324,596 $ -
Fixed income 9,923 - 9,923 -
Mutual funds 1,806,100 1,806,100 - -
Stocks 629,918 629,918 - -
Annuity 221,753 - 221,753 -

Total $2,992,290 $2,436,018 $556,272 $ -

Valuation techniques used in fair value measurements need to maximize the use of observable inputs
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. A valuation method may produce a fair value measurement
that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although
the Foundation believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with those used by other
market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions could result in different fair value
measurements at the reporting date. There have been no changes in the methodologies used during the
year ended June 30, 2023.

The following table presents the Foundation’s approximate fair value hierarchy for the assets measured
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at June 30, 2023:

Fair Value Measurements at
Reporting Date Using
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis:
Contributed nonfinancial assets:

Services, software, and supplies $144,858 $ - $ - $144,858
Supplies and misc giveaway items 17,099 - - 17,099
Horses 62,500 - - 62,500
Total $224,457 $ - $ - $224,457
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Quantitative Information about Significant Unobservable Inputs Used in Level 3 Nonrecurring
Fair Value Measurements

The following tables represent the Foundation's Level 3 assets, the valuation techniques used to
measure the fair value of the assets, the significant unobservable inputs, and the ranges of values for
those inputs.

Valuation Significant
Assets Fair Value Technique  Unobservable Inputs Range

Contributed services, Market Fair value of assets
software, and supplies $144,858 approach contributed to trust N/A
Contributed supplies and Market Fair value of assets
misc giveaway items 17,099 approach contributed to trust N/A

Fair value of horses

Market contributed to
Contributed horses 62,500 approach Foundation N/A
Total $224,457
Note 4 Endowment Funds:

The Foundation’s endowment consists of approximately 67 individual funds for a variety of purposes. Its
endowment includes both donor restricted funds and funds designated by the Board of Directors to
function as endowments. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, net assets associated
with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments,
are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Investment Return Objectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies. The Foundation’s funds are invested in
a long term asset allocation arrangement depending on the fund, with 45 60% in equities, 10% in liquid
assets, 0 — 20% in real estate, and 10 45% in fixed income. This allocation provides for long term total
return more than the fund’s spending rate. Since the 4% of market value amount is based on the market
value over the prior five years, the calculation helps to iron out fluctuations in the market and ensure that
a fair and reasonable distribution takes place based on a broadened time horizon while insuring the
longevity of the fund through long term market growth.

Spending Policy. Under the investment policy agreement, 4% of market value of the scholarship funds
of 5 year rolling average adjusted for consumer price index will be used for scholarship awards. This
percentage can be adjusted by majority vote of the Board from time to time.

Investment income generated by the Foundation’s endowment funds are used for the benefit of the
Foundation.
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The endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2023 is as follows:
Net Assets

With Donor
Restrictions

Donor-restricted endowment funds $ 3,531,709

Changes in endowment net assets as of June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Net Assets

With Donor

Restrictions
Endowment net assets, beginning of year $3,132,953
Contributions and fundraising income 242,710
Interest and dividend income 62,503
Net unrealized gain(loss) on investments 244,923
Miscellaneous 85
Transfer out (9,832)
Amounts released from restriction (141,633)
$3,531,709

Note 5 Pledge Receivables:

Unconditional promises are included in the consolidated financial statements as pledge receivables and
revenue of the appropriate net asset category. The Foundation evaluates receivable balances and
establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts, based on age of the receivables, collections and current
economic considerations. Accounts receivables are written off against the allowance for uncollectible
pledges when all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted. The breakdown of pledges
receivable as of June 30, 2023 is as follows:

Due in one year or less $40,869
40,869
Less allowance for uncollectible pledges (18,000)
Pledge receivables $22,869
Note 6 Other Receivables:

Rent receivables for student housing and interest receivable are included in the consolidated financial
statements as other receivables. Rent receivables are evaluated annually for collectability by
management and an allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded as needed based on student
attributes. The other receivables as of June 30, 2023 are $57,108 and an allowance has been set up
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Note 6 Other Receivables: (continued)
in the amount of $(40,000) for estimated uncollectible receivables.

Note 7 Income Taxes:

The Foundation qualifies for tax exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code as
a charitable group not organized for profit. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the
consolidated financial statements. However, income from certain activities not directly related to the
Foundation's tax exempt purpose is subject to taxation on unrelated business income.

The Foundation accounts for income taxes in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
Accounting for Uncertainty Income Taxes. The standard provides detailed guidance for the financial
statement recognition, measurement and disclosure of uncertain tax positions recognized in an
enterprise’s financial statements and requires an entity to recognize the financial statement impact of a
tax position when it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination. The
Foundation recorded no liabilities for uncertain tax positions or unrecognized tax benefits.

Note 8 Related Parties:

The Foundation expends funds either directly to or for the indirect benefit of Black Hawk East College,
a related party. These expenses are for scholarships and other miscellaneous expenses. During the
year, $108,020 was expended for scholarships and $89,832 was expended for grants. As of June 30,
2023, the Foundation had payables to the College in the amount of $10,600.

The College pays the salaries and benefits of the Foundation’s employees. The Foundation has
implemented “Not for Profit Entities: Services Received from Employees of an Affiliate” that includes
$144,858 on the consolidated financial statements as in kind income and the related in kind expenses
for the personnel costs incurred by the College on the Foundation’s behalf.

Note 9 Capital Assets:

A summary of capital assets that relate to rental property is as follows:

Cost Cost

6/30/2022 Additions Retirements 6/30/2023
Land $363,232 $ - $ - $363,232
Building and improvements 1,990,675 30,501 - 2,021,176
Equipment, furniture and appliances 282,429 4,118 - 286,547

2,636,336 34,619 - 2,670,955

Less accumulated depreciation (1,396,337) (80,248) - (1,476,585)
Total $1,239,999 $ (45,629) $ - $1,194,370

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
which range from 5 to 40 years.
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Note 10 Concentrations of Credit Risk:

At year end, the carrying amount of the Foundation's deposits in checking, money market, and savings
was $995,556 and the bank balance was $1,003,873. Of the bank balance, $661,511 was covered by
federal depository insurance and $342,362 was uninsured.

The Foundation's investment policy relative to insured deposits, states: “this requirement is waived for
any financial institution for which the capital to assets ratio (according to quarterly Call Reports) is 10%
or more. In that case, the maximum combined deposits of the Foundation in that financial institution
may total up to $300,000. This Finance Committee will monitor this ratio quarterly and report the status
of financial institutions in its quarterly company report.”

For financial statement purposes, the Foundation combines cash with savings accounts and money
market accounts. Certificates of deposits are shown as investments. The total carrying amount above
does not include petty cash.

Note 11 Net Assets Released:

The Foundation reports gifts of cash as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that
limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when the purpose of the
restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets
and reported in the consolidated statement of activities and changes in net assets as net asses released
from restrictions.

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes
during the year ended June 30, 2023 as follows:

Scholarship $104,201
Grants 1,350
Fundraising 22,985
Administrative 13,098

Total $141,634

Note 12 Net Assets with Restrictions:

Net assets with restrictions are available as of June 30, 2023 for the following purposes:

Scholarship, special projects and grants $3,531,709
Capital campaign 48,153
Total $3,579,862

Note 13  Agri-Business Club Alumni Agreement:

The Foundation entered into an agreement on April 26, 2011 with Black Hawk East Agri Business Club
Alumni (ABCA) to further both of the parties’ missions for the education programs at Black Hawk
College’s East Campus. ABCA funds with the Foundation as of June 30, 2023 are $230,831.
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Note 14 Subsequent Events:

The Foundation has evaluated subsequent events through December 21, 2023, which is the date these
consolidated financial statements were issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition as of June
30, 3 have been incorporated herein.

Note 15  Liquidity:

At this time, the Foundation does not have a liquidity management plan. The Foundation reviews cash
balances at their Finance Committee meetings, at least once per year, but usually more often. As of
June 30, 2023, the Foundation had enough cash to cover expenses for approximately 7.5 months. The
Finance Committee’s goal is to never have cash balances fall below the amount needed to finance
expenses for 90 days. Financial assets in excess of daily cash requirements are invested to earn more
revenue. Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions or
designations limiting their use, within twelve months of the consolidated statement of financial position
date, comprise the following as of June 30, 2023:

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general expenditures within one year:

Cash and cash equivalents $995,556
Investments 2,992,290
Receivables 41,154
Less restricted (3,579,862)
Total $449,138

Note 16 Contributed Nonfinancial Assets:

Contributed nonfinancial assets consist of the following:

Contributed services, software, and supplies $144,858
Supplies and misc giveaway items 17,099
Horses for equestrian program 62,500
Total contributed nonfinancial assets $224,457

The Foundation recognizes contributed nonfinancial assets within revenues, including contributed
advertising and services. Unless otherwise noted, contributed nonfinancial assets did not have donor
imposed restrictions. Contributed fundraising giveaways were used to raise funds during events as raffle
or other giveaway items. Contributed fundraising giveaways is valued and reported at the estimated fair
value in the financial statements based on current rates for similar items. Contributed services
recognized comprise of salaries and benefits for administrative personnel handling the operations of the
Foundation, professional accounting services performed by the College employees, software, and
supplies.
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 16. Lease Receivable

Lease-related amounts are recognized at the inception of the lease in which the College is the lessor. The
deferred inflow of resources is recorded in an amount equal to the corresponding lease receivable plus certain
additional amounts received from the lessee at or before the commencement of the lease term that relate to
future periods, less any lease incentives paid to, or on behalf of, the lessee at or before the commencement
of the lease term. The inflow of resources is recognized in a systematic and rational manner over the term of
the lease.

In March 2014, the College, as a lessor, entered into a lease agreement involving tower space. The tower
space is leased by a cellular phone company. As of June 30, 2023, the lease receivable was $115,375 and
the deferred inflows of resources related to lessor agreements was $94,708. The total amount of inflows of
resources, including lease revenue and interest income, recognized during the fiscal year was $31,042.

Net Deferred

Year Ending Lease Inflows of

June 30: Receivable Resources
2024 30,753 26,430
2025 31,877 26,430
2026 33,033 26,430
2027 19,712 15,418
Total $115,375 $94,708

Note 17. Pending Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022, improves the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1)
practice issues that have been identified during implementation of certain GASB Statements and (2)
accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees. The requirements of this Statement are effective
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022 and 2023. The College has not determined the effect of this
Statement.

GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, enhances accounting and financial
reporting for accounting changes in error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant,
consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability. The requirements of
this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023. The College has not determined the
effect of this Statement.

GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, better meets the information needs of financial statement
users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences. The requirements
of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023. The College has not
determined the effect of this Statement.

Note 18. Subsequent Events
The College has evaluated subsequent events through December 21, 2023 which is the date these financial
statements were available to be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition as of June 30, 2023 have

been incorporated herein with the exception of the following:

In August 2023, the College approved multiple vendor contracts to purchase equipment for the Advanced
Manufacturing Academy in the amount of $986,906. $807,030 remains encumbered as of December 2023.
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Notes to Required Supplementary Information (RSI)

Note 1. Changes of Pension benefit terms:
There were no benefit changes recognized in the Total Pension Liability as of June 30, 2022.

Note 2. Changes of Pension assumptions:

In accordance with lllinois Compiled Statutes, an actuarial review is to be performed at least once every three
years to determine the reasonableness of actuarial assumptions regarding the retirement, disability, mortality,
turnover, interest and salary of the members and benefit recipients of SURS. An experience review for the years
June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2020, was performed in Spring 2021, resulting in the adoption of new assumptions as
of June 30, 2021. These assumptions are listed below and remained the same for the June 30, 2022, actuarial
valuation.

Salary increase. Change in the overall assumed salary increase rates, ranging from 3.00 percent to 12.75
percent based on years of service, while maintaining the underlying wage inflation rate of 2.25 percent.
Investment return. Decrease the investment return assumption to 6.50 percent. This reflects decreasing
the assumed real rate of return to 4.25 percent and maintaining the underlying assumed price inflation of
2.25 percent.

Effective rate of interest. Decrease the long-term assumption for the effective rate of interest for crediting
the money purchase accounts to 6.50 percent.

Normal retirement rates. Establish separate rates for members in academic positions and non-academic
positions to reflect that retirement rates for academic positions are lower than for non-academic positions.
Early retirement rates. Establish separate rates for members in academic positions and non-academic
positions to reflect that retirement rates for academic positions are lower than for non-academic positions.
Turnover rates. Change rates to produce slightly lower expected turnover for most members, while
maintaining pattern of decreasing termination rates as years of service increase.

Mortality rates. Change from the RP-2014 to the Pub-2010 mortality tables to reflect the latter's higher
applicability to public pensions. Update the projection scale from the MP-2017 to the MP-2020 scale.
Disability rates. Establish separate rates for members in academic positions and non-academic positions
and maintain separate rates for males and females.

Plan election. Change plan election assumptions to 75 percent Tier 2 and 25 percent Retirement Savings
Plan (RSP) for non-academic members. Change plan election assumptions to 55 percent Tier 2 and 45
percent Retirement Savings Plan (RSP) for academic members.

Note 3 Changes of OPEB Benefit Terms:
There were no benefit changes recognized in the Total OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2022.

Note 4. Changes of OPEB Assumptions:

In accordance with lllinois Compiled Statutes, an actuarial review is to be performed at least once every
three years to determine the reasonableness of actuarial assumptions regarding the retirement, disability,
mortality, turnover, interest and salary of the members and benefit recipients of CIP. An experience review
for the years June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2020, resulting in the adoption of new assumptions as of June 30,
2021. The following OPEB-related assumptions changes were made since the last valuation as of June 30,

2020:

Per capita claim costs for plan year end June 30, 2022, were updated based on projected claim sand
enroliment experience through June 30, 2022, and updated premium rates through plan year end
2023;

Effective as of January 1, 2023, projected per capita costs reflect the newly established zero
premium MAPD plan. Based on discussions with CMS, the MAPD costs are zero for calendar years
2023 through 2027, increase to $42 per member per month in calendar year 2028, and increases
ratably to $102 per member per month in calendar year 2032. After 2032, costs increase according
to the assumed trend rates;
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o The healthcare trend assumption was updated based on claim and enroliment experience through
June 30, 2021, projected plan cost for plan year end June 30, 2022, premium changes through plan
year end 2022, and expectation of future trend increases after June 30, 2022;

¢ Healthcare plan participation and lapse rates were updated based on observed experience; and

e The discount rate was changed from 1.92 percent at June 30, 2021, to 3.69 percent at June 30,
2022.

The pension-related assumption changes had minimal impact to the results of the OPEB actuarial valuation.



Statistical Section (Unaudited)
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Statistical Narrative

This section of the College’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed statistical information
as a context for understanding information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information in relation to the overall financial health of the institution.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the College’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the College’s most significant local
revenue sources, tuition and fees, state funding, and property taxes.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the College’s current
levels of outstanding debt and the ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the College’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the College’s financial report relates to the services the College provides and the activities
it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.

95



€C0CAA

¢c0CAA

psjoL}salun =

L20CAd

‘sases| wouy Joedwi G90‘9z$ B papn|oul Yyoiym |Zoz JeaA [eosy 0} Ajaanoeos. pajuswaldwl Sem /8 gSVYO ‘2Z0Z 1edh [eosyy Ul ‘g

'seoue|eq punj [elpoisno Buiuuibaq wouy 1oedwi 961 28€$ B papn|oul Yydiym 0zZ0g JeaA [easly 0} Ajoanoeouiel pajusws|dwi sem 8 SV ‘1.20Z Jedh [easy u| g
‘poedw Ayjigel 9340 ¥6S5'GE9'61$ B PAPNIOUl UdIUM £10Z JedA [edsy 0} AjoAoeojal pajusws|dwl sem G/ 9SO ‘810z Jeak [edsy u *|

"sjuawale)s |elroueul pajpne abajjo) :9)0N

:90In0g

pejoLsey m sjosse |ejided ul Jusw)saAul }JoN |

020CAA 610CA4 810CAAL L10CAAL 910CAA GLOCAA V10CAAL

(09)3$

0's$
0GL$
0°6¢$
0°Ge$
0°G¥$
0°GS$
0°G9%
0°G.$
0'68$
0'66$
0'GOL$

0GLLS

0'¢zL$

- 0GELS

- 0SS

SUoniiN

E1Z'E6E VYL

111'69.'62)

$2£'658'vL 1

066'/8v°L0) €9/vey'v6 $ 199712098 $§ _Lvv2l89. § 6lc/vl/8 $§ 9vv'/ec98 $§ 16L'EVS8L § uonisod jau |ejo

689°20€°ZE
858°929°9C
999'c9v'G8

@S P AP

€10'v88°€C
95111092
800°7/8°6.

@S P AP

LL0°LYL 8L
86£'80L'¥C
GG8'665'2.

&@S P AP

60G'GE8’ L 9¥¥'G06°C (¥58'622) GL2Z19°CL 922'0989 (¥89°€9¥) pajou)saiun
£v5'e5e‘e 508112 8.5'€2Z'le 952'699°02 LL9'evLiLe v/1'8¥.°ZE GG1°GZE'6E pajoLisay
16588069 BYSOLY'S9 $ 16976809 $ 6EO'CZF'9S $  £68'06.2S5 $ 9¥0'6Z99r $ 0287896 $ [endeo ul juswiseaul 18N

0S8'G¥0°0L

@S P AP

€2¢0CAd

¢20cAd

1¢0CAd

020CAd 610CAd 81L0CAd L10CAd 910CAd GLOCAd ¥10CAd

£20ZAd ubnoays 1.0ZAd
jusauodwon Aq uonisod }aN jo a|npayosg

€05 "ON 30L1s1@ ab9jj109 fjlunwiwo sioul|||
aba||0D ymeH xoe|g

96



SjuBWAYE)S [elouBUl4 pPaypny 868(j0D YMeH oe|g :82Jnog
"sases| wouy Joedwi G90‘9Z$  Papn[oul Yoiym | zoz Jeak [eosly 0} AjoAiloeol)al pajusws|dwi sem /g8 9SO ‘220z Jeah [eosy ul §
'saoueleq puny [e1pojsno Buluuibag woly 1oedwi 961 28E$ B papn|oul yaiym 0Zoz JeaA [easly o} Ajaanoeodjal pajuswaldwi sem 48 gSyoO ‘1Z0g Jedk [easy ul
‘Joedw! Ayjiqel| 340 ¥65'G€9'61$ € Papnjoul Yolym /L 0g Jeak [easy o} AjaAijoeonal pajuswaldwl sem G/ GSYO ‘gL0g Jeak [eosy ul ¢
'$901N0S JusWUIaA0b aje)s Japun anuanal Buiielado-uou e se papnjoul aje}s Ag papiaoid uonnguuod SHNS ‘SL0ZA4 Buluuibag ¢
'suonouny asuadxa Bunelado Bunisixa Buowe pajeso)je ajels Aq papiroid uonnqguiuod SHNS £1L0ZA4 Buluuibag |

9€0'v29'yL § €S8'C€LBYL § vEEL9e'€l § L2T'€90'L $ 2OL'EOy'8 $ 02Z'60C'6 $ (8LL'¥EE0L) $ €.2°'606

$ 669'¢69'L $ 1257916 $

8£8'686°LSG 60%'0£9'6S 996'925°09 8/6'/62'VS  LE¥'€06°LS  €0L'9/G°LG  6£9/80°€S 8€9'v/8'Zy  Lb¥'L¥8'6Y  0SLLOV'TY
(0ee'61£2) (1117€G8) (50t°800°1) (92v'vSL°L)  (ess'esz’t)  (8e072€L)  (0v9'8¥S°L) (9ge°122) (8v6°229) (901°€26)
602V L 1612251 129'€2LL €98'vh. 00€°G6Y 6EL Ly 99t°€Z8 89'8¢€8 LeL'zes 621620
L6¥'8LE'Y ¥20'L0Y 00Z'LL€ 6£9'208 G66'2.E'L 166806 188'¥6€ 9ve'zee Zv8'652 025'982
60.'G02'9 Y08 L0V YL £0€262'1L LYS L6 YLLL0S 9 908'veZ'L SL9'LEY' L 16L€8L’L LLb'062'6 ¥26'G66'6
186'S0¥'21 110'692'G1L 910'6¥0°L2 62€'/91°Ll  069'vPE'0C  675'8€8'0Z  90S'/lZh'ET €69'vEL'EL  P0L'S0Z'6L  PPE'TELOL
9zZ8'LL9'Y 086'8LY'Y 29.'¢v0' ¥G8'99t | 8/G'9G¢E°) 890612} 0L6'08%L 8L8'ove’L Y65 VoY L 828°19¢L
756'22€'ST 8LY'viv've £9Y'SYLve qqT'vse'e eve9Ll'eT 8v0'v0e'TZ  G68°LL0°LT 762'9L€'0C  L0€'cT9'6l  L6Y'Zov'6l
(zog'soc’ze)  (98G'9LL'vy)  (2e9'602'Z¥)  (LG2'vez'Zy) (Ge€'00G°'cy) (£88°'99eCy) (LL¥'Zzy'e9)  (G98'¥96°'Ly) (982°¢SL'ey) (£09°€€9°9€)
G6.'2.6'GY 091'65€'2S 0L1°2LL'YS 2Zv'Sv0'9S  v81'8G2'€S  /8Y'089'€S  GZE'GLE'v. BEE'662'CS  G6S'P8Y'ZS  811'09S'tS
8LY'SLY'e 0zs'v8L'e 652'8¥6'C €8G'/v.'T 6.0'vv.'C £¥S'v85'T 116'2.€C £¥9'690'C £00°0€8'} 910 L
vL6'9vL £Ge0l €0LLL 80101 68091 880°8S 769'8€1 698'C - 2€1'29.
8¥0'082'S GG6'L6S'S 6LL'0v2'9 ¥L¥'228'9 ¥68'9/2'9 8690109 €01'8€2'6 91'80€'9 S0£'816'8 829'9¢'S
YEY'0£9'e 0Lt'7€8'9 €e8'6LL'Y 150'66.'C 820'/8¢'C z81°198C 66109 £50'626'C ¥00'699'C 6Ze'519'C
LIS'VLL'6 661°96E L1 ¥20'60€°01L 60.°260CL  L/L°LOS0L  12G'S¥9'6 659°04G L1 ¥1°169°8 G96°2EL L 212'520'6
18%'G00°C 19G°166'L 10€'G€0'2 892'zeL'C 05€'182' 608215 evL'sLL'e 0€2'200'¢ €9Z'219'¢ 68.'69.'¢
612001} 8l2TYL L 150921 190°G08"} 1£8'226°L LGL'Y96 L 8z8'eh'T 162980 L9 LIv'T 000221
Lv1'981'e 99z'9v8'e LYS'ESh' Yy 811265V 820'L59't 0€9'8.G'Y €92'290°L 899'6YS'Y ¥06'0L2'Y LEL00E' Y
¥2e'8vs's 0vE'625'G S00'¥62°9 989'vEH'9 91£'610'9 €0Z'GZL'9 £G65'6v9'8 L¥0'€86°S 0LE'V.8'S 085229
£E6'PYE L z15'ze8')L T2T.'19¢8'91 ¥9E'v09'9L  9Z¥'vLL'9L  T99'VEELL  89€°196'9C 88e'vz.'LL  622'8CL'GL  £9G'609'SL
£66'909'8 ¥06'Z¥9'L 8£5'20S'L 1190188 6v8'2G2°'0L  ¥09'€LE'LL  806'2S6'0L viv'vEE Ll B608'0EE'0L  G/G'9Z6'LL
- - - - - - - - - 8188908
- - - - - - 162'c - - -
LET 86 L 19v°162°L ¥¥0'060°L Z65°LLS L GZ6'GG9°) 221059} 002°250'¢ LLe'soLe S¥0'0EY'T 90G°€€2°
29.'80L°L $ lev'LGE'Q v61'ZL¥'9 6.0'662°'L $ Vc6'L09'8 $ 2882996 $ Ll¥'Ces'L €91'622'8 $ +91'006°'L $ 1ST'¥T9L $
€Z0ZA4 22024 120ZAd 020ZA4 6L0ZAd 810ZA4 110ZA4 910ZA4 GLOZAd ¥10ZA4

:8JON

uonisod jau ui abueyn

(sesuadxa)

sanuaAal Bupeisado-uou |ejo)
asuadxa }salsju|

$92IN0S 18Y}0
sbujuies juswisanu|
$92JN0S JuswuIanob elapa
$90.4N0S JuswuIdnob ajeys
saxe} Juswaoe|dal Auedolid [euosiad
saxe) Auadolg

(sesuadxa) sanuanai Bunjeiado-uoN

(ssoy) bunesado

sasuadxa Bujjesado |ejo)

uoljezipowe pue uoljepaldaqg
juswdinba pue sbi nq jo |esodsip uo sso7
sap|ioe} [eoisAyd jo uonesadQ
aje}s Ag papinoid uonnquuod SHYNS
sJanlem pue sjuelb juapnys ‘sdiysiejoyos
poddns jeuonnuisu|
s99InI8s Asel|ixny
99IAJBS 21|gqNd
S90IAISS JUSPNIS
yoddns olwapeoy
uononssu|

:sasuadxa bunesadQ

anuaaal Bunesado |ejo)
anuanal Bupesado Jayl0
ayels Aq papinoid uonnguIuod SYNS
soegablieyd uoning
Sa1}I|108} JO [BJUBI PUE ‘9DIAISS ‘S9|eS
9OUBMOJ|E JO }aU ‘S93) pue UoI}N} Juapn}s
:sanuanay Bunesado

£20ZAd ybnoayy y10ZAd
uoljisod 39N ul sabuey? jo a|jnpayoss

97



‘soses| wouy Joedw| G90'9Z$ & Peapn|oul YdIym LZ0z Jeak [easly 0} AjoAioeouel pajuswaiduwl sem /8 gSVO ‘220Z Jeak [eosy u| g
"saoueleq puny [elpojsno BuluuiBaq wouy Joedwi 961 /8€$ € PapNIoUl Yolum 0Z0Z Jeak [eosty o} AjlpAioeo.}e. pajuswajdwl Sem 48 GSYO ‘120z Jeak [eosy u| g
'spuny jgeq wia] BuoT [eIBUSD) PUE jue|d Ul JUSW)SSAU| SOpN(oXT ")

PaIoLISY - PUN JUSWAISS PUE ‘UoND3I0Id ‘AlilgerT

pajoLlsay - pund jsesail| g puog
pajoL}SaY - PUN4 PajoLISey oueUBIUIE| B SuolesadO

pajolIsaIuUnN - pun4 pajoL}say doueUBUIEl @ SuoieladO
pejouisaiun - pund sesoding pejouisey
pajoL)say - pund [BIPOISND

L}
m
n
pajousay - pund ysed Bupop, |
m
m
n

CC0CAd  120CAd 020CAd 6L0CAd 8lL0CAd LlLOZAd 9l0CAd GLOCAd ¥10CAd

0'02$

0'ov$

0°09%

0'08%

0°00L$

00zL$

oovi$

8v6°'L26'CELS  £96'G99'2L$ 688'182°99$ 606'02S'/G$ 182'90V'/G$ €0¥'S99°/9¢§ 9eS'6€6'0L$ G69'VLL'BE$ 99E'CY8'0S$  60¥'90Z'SS §
061v6L°01 06L'¥6L°0L 06176101 06L'¥6L°0L 06176101 061'¥6L°0L 06176101 061'v61°0L 06176101 06L'v61°0L
050°260°8) 98/°'182'G1 ¥86'0vS‘CL 0£2'806°¢ 229'205'e 660'025'C 919'CL6'L yv8'ee6L ¥65'690'C 96€'808"L
G12'88%'6S 8.e'vel'y 29E'v6S' Y 958'vYe'y €10'G16°L 120'9€9'€  96G'928'€E  G.6°18S'L $68'659'9L ¥59'8L0'€C
Y0L'€L0'Y 261°8EE'E 928'292'¢ 892°802°¢€ €EE'96L'E 129°120°€ 261'68€'C 10L°8¥0°€ 1¥8'606'C 9v5'620'€
€€°050°9 0v9°6.5'9 L¥6'CLL'9 L6V vSY'S 128'10L'y 29€°0L0'Y v96'v.2'e G22'86.°C 168'98¢€'C 0v0'692'C
908'082 ovv'8Le 16E'Y¥C ¥9S'6L1L 8G0'€02 861°/G1L 959'90L 9€S V0L 9/9'clL 8le'sel
G6S'80Y ¥26'€9y G85'9LY 961°/8€ - - - - - -
€9/'8€€'LL 890'600°L L vv8'vy9'e 8/C'¥7/9'LL  GE9'0ES'OL 000°0¥Z‘0L 000°000°L 000000} 000°000°L -
16G'656'L €€€'6.8 - 189'LLL [44R4T4 €€5'08C ¥06'€2S 02¥'98S 912'/8% Lvp'Ce9
20€'500'C L1228l L L€G'890°L €60'6.€ 0zy'or £VS'6LC €16'69¢ 66.'1L€ 98€'85Y 968°LLY
1G2'GLS'Y 098'LL0'Y 092'Gz6'e €86'0€8'€ 890'%729'€ cee'lle'e alL'leL'e §90°vv0°E 1¥2'816'C 29526
sve'ery'Sl § 6evCZL'YL$ €96'LIZ'SL S €85°/8L°€L$ 66L'GET'ELS 26V'868'6 $ 68L'VOCVL$ OV6'VES'L $ S96'L6S'LL$ 00V'Z89°0L $
€20CAd 220CAd 120CAd 020ZAd 6L0CAd 810CAd L10CAd 910ZAd GLOCAd 10ZAd

:8J0N
‘SJUBIBIE)S [BIOUBUY PajIpNE 868|[0)  :82IN0S

aouejeg pund [ejo]
pajouisay - pund yseD Bupop

PajoLIsalun - pun4 pajoL}say aoueusjulely @ suolesadQ
PajoLIsay - pund pajoL}say 8oUBUSIUIE| @ suoneladO
pajouIsay - pund }salsju| g puog

paJoLISaY - PUN4 JUSWBIBS pue ‘UoNoslold ‘ANjiger]
pajoL)say - pund Ipny

pajoLIsay - pund [BIPOISND

pajouisalun - pun4 sasodind pajoisay

pajolIsay - pun4 sesodind pajolisay

pajouisaiun - pun4 Alejixny

pajolsalun - pun4 ysed BuiyIopn

pajouisaiun

- pun4 @oueusjule g suoljesadQ pue pund uoneonpy

£20ZAd ubnoyy 10ZAd
pung Aq @duejeg pund jo a|npayog

€06 "ON o13s1q 969]109 Ajunwiwo) siou||
aB9]10D ymeH yoelg

98



syebpng BuneiadQ s,wolsAS gDD| :924n0S

%99°2¢ %€S°2¢ %0S"¥€ %61°L8 %92°L¢ %ET’ LY %08°8¢ %9L°0 %62'¥S %EZ'8Y PaAIa09Yy abejuadiag
8LV L91v9 $ | £82'P0V'09 $ | L0S°G09°9S $ | £2¥'856°2S $ | Le6°1ST'6y $ | S8Lzie'Sy $ | 009‘9¥S Ly S [ Liv'gsevle $ | 280°vE6‘0E S [ £9.°2780'8Z $ }I2149Q paje|nwnooy
(569°292°¢) (922°66L°C) (¥80°L¥9°E) (98¥°90.°¢) (z5L'618°¢) (s85‘sz8°c) (681°8%0%) (62£'¥95°9) (61£°1582) (8¥8‘c0s°E) yoyeQ |enuuy
00°0¥8'v28°L $ [ 022'1€8°) G69'0Z6°L 067612 020'v0€' 012789 06£'995'2 000°0S G90°/8¢' 9/9'v92'¢ uopendoiddy uopezienby
00'6£5'285'G$ | 966'0£9'S 611'195'S 9/Z'106'S 2.1'€81'9 G6/'605'9 6.5'719'9  $|62e'7L9'9  $|¥BE'8EC'O  $ | ¥2S'89.°9 pauJes juel9 uojez|ienby
£Z0ZAL 220ZAd 120ZAd 020ZAd 6L0ZAd 8L0ZAd LL0ZAd 9L0ZAd SLOZAd ¥10ZAd
Hoye( paje|nwnaoy | uoljendosddy uonezienbgm paule3 jueis) uoljeziienb3 m
€20CAd  220ZAA 1C0CAd  020CAd 6L0CAd 8LOCAd  LLOCAd 9l0CAd SLOCAd  V1L0OZAd
s B == E == B [] ] HE B B
Il | B I B - [ ] - [ ] - HE B i - -
[ PN e P B e Il _ i B I B [ e

SUoliliN

€20ZAd ubnoayy y10zZAd
}19139Q paje|nwinaody @ Alo)siH Buipund jueis uonezijenby ajelg

€05 "ON 3913s1Q 9691109 Aunwwoy sioul||
9b3|j0D ymeH yoelg

99



s}ebpng BunesadQ s,waisAS gHO| :82In0S

%S2'€T %L2'2 %LETT %9E ¥ %¥bS 62 %S1'61 %08°ZE %86'8 %68 %81°0% paAleoay abejusdiad
89806.'801 $ | 026°691°66 $ | 800°6.5'88 $ | 880°526°LL $ | OL'EVL'89 $ | SL9°L6E09 $ | 690'88L‘OF $ | L22'LSL'8E $ | 069°9V6'9C $ | L09°L0E 6L $ Joyaq paje|nwnooy
(8v6°029°6) (z16‘065°01) [(0z6‘cS9°‘0L) [(S8£°L8L'6) (820°252°2) (909‘coz‘vL) |(zvs‘oco‘s) |[(zes‘orz‘il) [(e80'sv9°l)  [(zez‘cos‘s) youeQ [enuuy
202v16°C GLL'pe0'e $[o0zs'690'c $[oL0'06L'e  $[ozeerze $[olesoc’e S| 199'6L6'C 69%°150°1 ¥62'616°C £G8°/68°C uoneudoiddy 1noH 3paid
0Sl'ges’zl $ | Leo'seo’el $ | ovv'ecL'el $ | S6ELEGCL $ | 8¥8°L00°LL $ | 916'89G°LL $ | €0S'0S6°LL $ | 900°292CL $ | LLEW9S LL $ | G80'LOL'G $ pauies el
JINOH }paI) a|gesinquiiay

£20ZAd T20ZAd 120ZAd 020ZA4 6L0ZAS 81L0ZA4 LL0ZAd 910ZAd GLOZAd ¥10ZAd

J0I59Q paie|nwndoy m  uoljeldosddy JNOH JpaIDm  paule] juels JNOH }Ipal) d|gesinquioy m

£Z0ZA4 T20ZA4 120ZA4 0Z0ZAd 6L0ZAd 8L0ZAd LLOZAA 91L0ZA4 GLOZAA ¥1L0ZAA

[ololololololololalololololololololololololololololololololololololololololelele]
0000000000000 000000000000O00O00O00O00OO0O0OOOVr

NSO MO SO0 AN DO MO NS 00NN O MO F—HoOLNANOHIO M
N0 T2, 0. V0 Vp Vo Vs Wy Vo Vo Vo V3 Vp Wy Vp Vo' Vp W Vp Wy Vp Wy Vp Vp'Vp Va'Vp Vs Vol

OO000000000O0000O0O0O00000O000000O00000O00000O
[ololololololslalalololololololololololololololololololololololololololololele]
0000000000000 000000000000O00O0000O00000000O

€20ZA4d ybnouyy y10ZA4

HoueQ pajeINwno2y @ AiojsiH Bulpund juels InoH ypaig ajels

€06 "ON 1o13s1q 969109 Ajunwwo) sioul)|

969]10 yMeH yoeig

100



S80I S8 AUN0D BpISBIIYAA PUB ‘NIBIS ‘PUBIS| YO0y ‘180Is\ ‘|leystely ‘Xouy| ‘AlusH ‘uosiapusH ‘neaing :S82inog

"L¥¥S 0$ S! 220z Jeah xey o) paljdde ajel joauIp [€)0} BYL '€

8|qe|leAR UOIBWIOLUI JUS.IND 1SOW 8} S| 220z 404 AAS| Xe) 8y] 'Z
"an|eA |enjoe pajewi}se ay) Jo pliyl-euo Ajerewixoidde o) |enbs si pue s89211J0 SHJBJ0 S,A1UN0D SnolieA AQ paIndwod S| anjeA passassy ‘|

:S9J0N
|eJsuIN peoy ey m [elsnpu| | [eloJswwo) m wiedm [enuapisey |
[A4 4 Lcoc 0c0c 610 810¢ .10 910¢ G1L0¢ ¥10¢ €10¢

00°0%

0G°0$

00'L$

05°1$

00'¢$

05°¢$

00'¢$

05'¢$

00'v$

05 v$

00°G$
puail pue :O_H_mOQ Wwo) uoijenjep possassy suolg
G18'8G6°GSL V1 €80°18L°8LL'Y 6l¥'8.2'GY 196°028°95 8LY¥'106'GSY 9zl‘z80‘zeL GeLCLL'GLL 818°G86°C59°'C 2coc
Ggeg'zsyLle'el 620°/8€'S0V'Y 600282 V¥ 602'2rees 612681 0cY Y0¥'¥09°999 €€G6°'G98‘91L/ G29'86Z'v61'C 120c
1€2°216'881°'CL 16.°CEY 29T’y €16'G88‘ LY 627'006'GY €G€'906° L7V 0Sl‘c0e‘Ly9 969'8¢1°C.9 022'866'901'C 0coc
1¥1'189'9/G'CL 920°'018°L6L'Y G06‘89G'8Y G91‘889°6¢ 9%9'Goz’ L9 192°/¥€'9€9 8GG'eYe’ €9 L61'965°89¢€C 610¢
809°189°061'C1 08LvrLeal'y GG6'9 6/9°16G°GE L6V 0EY'6YS 12/ 2€8'v¥9 8668771209 9ee'g9L‘Lee'e 810¢
120°€69'v86'L L ¥81'861'¥66°C GG6'9 10G'€9G°¢ee 166'91'G8Y 192'821°1€9 191'69/°295 16/.'¥96°9/2'C L10¢
Zre'l6LL9e L L ¥10°/89'98/°‘¢ GG6'9 €28'296'6¢ 89¢'€0V'9.€ ¥SL'v16°G19 Gov'1eG'/ES 60€°218‘9¢e'c 9l0¢
98¢'Gee‘/00'L L LGS LY.'899°'C - GlL1‘z8s‘9¢e 0€.°16.°C.€ €.'192'66S 1/8'v59'60S 29¢°LSY' Il GglL0¢
1€2'086'098°01 €12.v96'619°¢ - ¥0G6'6€.°Ge /86°296'99¢ 121'6¥.°26S 1G6°219°261 8€G'V68°LYLC 710¢
220'980°G//°0L L/L'9EE'LBSE - 600°088°¢€Z G9/'Sy'G9e 0¥7£'G86°/6S ¥¥8'802 29 €12'918'LyLT €10¢

anjep uonenjea EIENT peoy |ey [euysnpu| [eloJawwo) w.ie [enuapisay 1eak AneT

[eNPY psjewnsy

pessassy [B10]

adA] Auadouad Aq uonenjep passassy

220z Ybnolyy £10Z siesA AneT xe ]
Auadoud a|gexe] Jo anjeA [enoy pajewsg pue passassy

€05 "ON 3913s1@ 969]109 Ajunwwod sioulj|
963]10 yMmeH yoe|g

101



$9010 SB[ AUN0D BpISBIUAN PUB IBIS ‘pUB|S| YO0y ‘JooIs|\ ‘|leystely ‘Xouy| ‘AlusH ‘UoslepusH ‘nesing :$82InN0Sg

"sosodind juswia)e}s [eloUBUL JO) PESN 8SOY) pue SBlUN09 8y} AgQ papus)ixa sjunowe AAS| [eul} 8y} Usamiag seoualayip Jubils eq Aew aay)

‘saliepunog s,1oL)sIg 9y} UIYIM a4 YoIyMm Jo yoes Jo suofod ‘Saijunod aulu ayy Aq pamoj|oy spoyiaw [euonendwod sy Ul seoualayip 0} ang 'g

‘spuoq uonebijgO |eJauan) Joy sjuawalinbal 821AI8S Jgap 8y} 0} anp Ajuewld Jeak o) Jeak woly seyenjon|) sjel xe) 8yl v

"PaBUIGUIOD S8IUNOD |[B 10} SUONKN|EA POSSaSSE |e)j0) 8U) pue Saxe) [e)jo} 8Uj) U0 paskeq sajel papus|q ale abs|j0) sy Joy paliodal sajel xe} ay] 'S

"a|ge[leAB UOIJeWLIO)UI JUSLIND JSOW 8y} S| ZZ0Z 10} AAS| Xe) 8yl 2
"a|gelieAe awo99q Asy) Se anusAal se paziubooal pue pallajep

ale 9|qe|leAe JoU }ng a|jgeinsesw aie Yolym saxe} Alladolid ‘anusasl se paziubooal ale a|ge|leAe pue a|geinsesw ale yolym saxe) Auadold “|

:S9)J0N
%y G61°2€801 - %y G61°2€801 816'8/9°Ge LS 0 €80°18L8LL Y €20¢ ¢c0c
%001 009'6£8'v¢ ¥89'20v' vl %<y 916'9€¥'0l 8¥8'68.'V¢ 0295°0 620°'/8€'G0Y'y 2c0c T4
%001 189'681‘v¢ 251'981 vl %Ly GEG'€000l LEV'922 Ve 2895°0 16.C2EV'29C Y 1c0¢c 020¢
%001 €69'cl6°€C €11'280'v1L %Ly 08G°'1€8°6 G/9'266°€C Y1150 920'01L8°L6LY 020¢ 610¢
%86 6S1'916°C2 6G9'/8/.°€l %6¢ 0058516 0Lv'evv'ee €950 08L'vrLe9ly 610¢ 810¢
%001 ¥60'996°2¢ 909'09¥°€l %0% 881°G0L ‘6 182'299°Ce 9/9G°0 ¥81'86¥'¥66'C 810¢ L10¢
%001 11.6'889°L¢ 80L'0LL°€L %6¢ €98'81G'8 808'099°L¢ 81150 ¥10'18998.'¢ L10¢ 910¢
%66 Yy'0LY 02 8/6'G¥ZCl %0% 991'¥91 '8 919'2€6°0¢ 86550 1GS1¥.'899°¢ 910¢ G10¢
%001 8/€'G08°6l z68'ce8Cl %S¢ 9251269 105'GG8°61 G8¥50 €12'v96°619'c G10¢ 710¢
%66 €69'/1€6l 959'69¥'C1 %S€ 166°2189 281'06¥'61 LZ¥S0 121°9€€'16G'E 7102 €10¢
uolsuaixg unowy slea\ uoisua)xg unowy (Ano) aley xe| uonenjep Jeap JeaA
Jo us0lad jusnbasgng  jo JuLdled papua)x3 sexe] passassy [eosi Ane

ajeQ 0} SUOID3||0D (€01

Ul SUoNY8||09

AA87 BU) JO JBBA

[e9S14 8} UIyIM Pa}os]joD

220z ybnouyy 10z slea Ana xel
Su01399|0D) pue suoisuaixg xe] Auadoid

£0G "ON Jo1s1q abajjoD Ajunwwo sioul|||
abaj|0) YmeH yoe|g

102



2010 s8I0 Auno) AlueH :89in0g
(uonenjep pessassy pazienb3 QL $ Jod) "@duemad] jo AlD ayy Ui Buiall Ajunod AlusH ul Jeumo Auadoud jouysiq e 1o} Sjel Xe) aAlejussaldal e s| a|qe} anode ay] :9J0N

61L06°L1L v6/zclL $ €8veCl $ ¢690¢L $ v6LLCcl $ 909L°CL ¢ 8evlZcL $ v08L'CL $ GTLSLL S LvieELlL $ |ejoL
LLY9'0 08¥9°0 G299°0 65290 25690 /8010 L1020 €20L°0 ¥.69°0 8869°0 JouIsIg 8114 ssuemay
14214 125V 6¥8S'¥ [A27%2° 04 Z6S' v €98G° Y €0.LSY 0665 ¥ €68C'Y 6260 6¢C 'ON 10L3sI |00YoS dduemay]
L1100 ¢cloo 9¢Lo’0 2100 /2l0°0 62100 LEL00 €100 €eLoo €eLoo Hodiy sauemay
09690 90€L°0 88¢.°0 18120 89120 €801°0 6€0L°0 ovLL 0 98¢0 €6v.L0 Joulsiq Aelqr] ssuemay
80LY'L 76011 vrev'L 9G.¢€°L €.6¢€°L 66011 698¢°L L12€°) 6ccl’L 88LL°L pulsIqg died ssuemay
6¢Y8°C Geol’¢e 0ocle ¥€26°¢ 9/¢6'¢C G9¢8’¢ 9¢G8'¢ 2598°¢ 61G8°¢C 1508°¢ ssuemay Jo i
S9Lc’o ¥.12°0 08Lc’0 €.12°0 12120 G.1¢0 04120 ZATA0] €120 €120 JouIsIQ peOY dIysumo | sduEMSY
7191°0 €LLL0 1S21°0 8691°0 8..1°0 708L°0 €i8L'0 GG8L°0 GeslLo cesl’o diysumo| ssuemay
9¢L8’0 YyE8°0 cers8’o G098°0 26180 GZv6'0 €¢re’0 19G6°0 8616°0 ¥006°0 Auno) AiusH
Sv¥S0 2€96°0 $ 28950 $ 0260 $ 12950 $ 92990 $ €2.90 $ <26¥S0 $ S8¥S0 ¢ vveESO $ £0G "ON 1oH3sIq 869100 smeH Xoelg
(444 Lc0c 0c0¢ 610¢ 810¢ /L10¢ 910¢ G10¢ ¥10¢ €10¢ sjousIq buixe ]

JEdA XB] IedAXe] JeOAXeB| JBOAXE] IBOAXE] JBOAXE] JBOAXE] IE9AXB| IBBAXB|  JE9A Xel

20110 SH8ID AJUN0) puels| Y00y :904N0g
"ajel xe} diysumo ] 8UIjOojAl YINOS 8y} UJIM paulquiod sem Alsjawa)) diysumo] suljopy
UInos 8yl "sjel xe} auljojyl 40 AlID ay) yum abpug 1 peoy auljo| Jo A0 8y} pauiquiod Jodal sjel xe} AJunoD pue|s| 400y Y} ‘610z Jeak xe} 104 ‘g
(uonenjep passassy pazilenb3 0QL$ Jod) "BullOl J0 AHD 8y} Ul Bulall AJunoD puels| 300y Ul Jaumo Apedold Jousiq e 1oy a)el Xe) dAlejuasaldal e si 9|qe} 9Aoge 8y |
:S8JON

¥9.6'8 GGGE'6 $ 0996 $ 8¢€G6 $ ¢82Zv6 $ vZ¥S6 $ 8656 $ 09656 $ €5€€6 $ 96926 $ |ejol
888L°0 ¢S6L°0 000C'0 8G61°0 ¢S61L°0 0cico 960¢'0 980¢°0 2¢80¢°0 ¥S0C°0 Aoyiny yisues] ueyjodosaiy
/¥90°0 9690°0 1¢/00 €€20°0 8¥.0°0 96200 05200 05200 05200 05200 Aoyiny podily ueyjodosay
8.¢L°0 8LEL0 cLel’o 90€L°0 v.¢lL'0 9€cL’o 9vecL'0 oeecl’o 06LL°0 8¥LL0 SAI3S3ld S840
G896V 18L0°G 0Lv0'S 8EY0'S 81€0'S ¥601L°G 86¥L'S ¥6G1°S 0clL's 060L°S 0¥ "ON 1o13sIq |00yos
VA% LEVE'L L210¢C ¥GG0°¢ 2¢090°¢ cvL0¢C ¥G80°¢C ¢8.0°¢ 8€90°¢ 00S0°¢ Bullol Jo AN
00000 00000 00000 00000 82000 ¢€00°0 ¢€00'0 0¥00°0 0¥00°0 0¥00°0 Aisyewag diysumo] suljojy yinos
00000 00000 00000 00000 /5000 ¥G00°0 #5000 ¢S00°0 8¥00°0 /¥00°0 aullo| Jo AND - oBplg g peoy
€100 ¢810°0 ¥8L0°0 G100 L1100 91100 8LL00 91100 09100 [A°110N0] diysumo] suljoy yinos - ebplig ' peoy
6.0L°0 8LLL0 LELLO ¥9LL°0 ¥SLL°0 29LL’o Ze6LL0 ceel’o yvcL0 70€L°0 diysumo] suljojy yinos
860L°L 1G0E'L cvoe’L 96¢¢’L oove'L 9eve'L Qe L osve'L 96S0°L 78L0°L Auno) pueys| 300y
LSS0 02950 $ 28950 $ ¥LLGO0 $ 2€950 $ 92990 $ 8LLS0 $ 86590 ¢ S8¥S0 ¢ L2¥S0 $ £0G "ON Jou3sIq 869100 smeH Xoelg
[AA4 Lcoc 0c0¢ 610¢ 810¢ /110¢ 910¢ G10¢ ¥10¢ €10¢ sjousIq buixe ]

JedA Xe] IedpAXe] JeOAXe| JBOAXE] IBOAXE] JBOAXE] JBOAXE] IE9AXB| JEeBA Xe|  JE9A Xel

220z ubnouy} £1.0Z siesA xel
soley xe| aAljejuasalday

€06 "ON Jo13s1q 8b3jj09 AHunwwo) siout)j|
aba||09 ymeH xoe|g

103



SOIUNOY [[BYSIBI PUB “HIBIS ‘UOSISPUSH ‘J80Ia|\ ‘neaing ‘SpISSiYpA ‘Xouy] ‘AlusH ‘pue|s| o0y 1oy 3a|) AJunog sy} Jo 80O :82IN0S

%806 L29'902'gey %889 962'/91°L¥C $

%810 KiusH 829'80¢‘8 $ S9|gemausy uedslswypln %€L°0 PuEls| Y00y S6Z°8ES‘Y $ (NE) Bulnjoeynue g Bulul ejosauuly
%120 puels| Y204  $¥0'026'6 $ 077 ‘dnoug [erdueul isii %€L0 puels| ¥o0y  €25'8.SY $ Auedwod ABleuz eropiod
%120 KiueH 12€'600°0) $ $90IN0saY JaAlY Big %€L°0 Puels| Y00y §S6°019‘Y $ '0Q J3|}s80ld sewoyl O4d
%€C 0 puels| ¥o0y  §99°22.0L $ BOlIBWY JO USWPOOAA UISPON %€L°0 puels| ¥o0y  €€0°618‘Y $ SIAIS - Meuwep
%9€°0 puels| 300y  /€6°G/0°LL $ Auoyiny podiry ueyjodosay %¥1°0 puels| 300y 159°9v6'Y $ ubie14 x3po4
%80 puels| yo0y  $Se'LLY'ZZ $ ouise9/d1 [euded 419 %20 PuUBIS| Y00  666'CZ8‘L $ BOlIBWY JO USWSPOOAA UISPON
%050 KiuaH 96lL'ces'e€r  $ 071 ‘sjend sjgemsusy jolied %120 puEls| Y00y  0¥5'89.°6 $ lle sedyinog/yousoelN ©ds
%6.°0 KusH 686'09L°26  $ 071 ‘ABisuz |iiH doysig %190 puels| 300y  §/€£00022 $ ouise) ssewnp/buiwes ONG
%ce’L puels| 300y Lep'86¥'Z9 $ Auedwog pue aieaQ %180 puels| Y00y  626'0S0°62 $ Auedwo pue aieaQ
%08 pueis| ¥004  00L‘'005'92Zz  $ uofax3y %CEV pueis| ¥904  000°000°GS 1t $ uosip3 yjesmuowwod

AvV3 uonenjeA Av3 uonenjeA
s,JousIq Auno) passassy Johedxe | s,Jou1sIq Auno) passassy Jokedxe |

10 JusoIad pazilenbg 10 JusoIad pazilenbg

€202 €Loc

0By SiesA Us| pue JesA Jusdal SO
siafAedxe] |ediouud

€0G "ON 913s1q 963109 Ajunwiwo) siouly|

ab9]10D %meH yoe|g

104



"BJep 984 pue uolIn] goHD| pue splooal 869||0D :82IN0g

Sioul]|| J0 8JelS 8y} WoJ INOH }pal) Jad ajey juels abelany 869]|00 YMEH 3Oe|g e
s969]|00 Ajunwiwo) sioul||| 10} 8}y S99 PUE UOIHIN | SBEIOAY i

INOH pauD Jad sa84 pue uoning 869100 YMEH >Oe|q e

€¢0c ¢coc 120¢c 0coc 610¢ 810¢ Z10¢ 9l0¢c Gloc 14304

I

08$
001$
- 0C1$
ovL$
091$
081$

SpuaJ] dley Jedp 0T
86G'89 c€L'ey 8.'¢Sl 0091 €¢0¢
€96'G9 0.'8¢€ 8’051 00'6¥L 2coce
166'69 62'6¢€ LO'LYl 00'6¥L Lc0¢
¥61'28 ov'Le LO'LYl 00'6¥L 0c0¢
88088 8C've 9€vrl 00'6¥L 610¢C
82E'c6 Sy'ce SLovl 00'6¥L 810¢
8G8'001 Ll'ce L0°eel 00°L¥L 110¢
80€'L01 198 A4t 00'sel 910¢
162'0C) ¥.'8¢C 12°8LL 00'0oct G10¢
GG.'62) SZ'8¢C s9¢CLL 00'GLL 7102
SINOH P8l paoLisay sloul||| Jo a1e1s ay) sab9)|0D Aunwwo) INOH 1palID JeaA |eosid
pue pajousalun [e1o] woJj JNoH ypaly Jad sloul||| 10} @)ey S99 Jad sea4 pue uonin|
2869|109 ymeH xoe|g ajey juels) abelany pue uonin| abelany 869|100 ymeH xoe|g

869|100 3meH xoelg

€£20ZAd ybnouys 1.0ZA4
s994 pue uoiin] Aloyepuely

€06 "ON 31213s1q 8b3jj0D Ajunwwo) siouj|
abajj0D ymeH xoe|g

105



SNSU8) "S'N 0Z0Z @Yl pue ‘seoiyO Wie|D Auno) ‘spioday abs|j0) :seainosg

*Aluo 103sIp 8y} UIyyIMm payeoo| Aladoud uo paseq si anjep Aladold sjgexe] [enjoy pajewnsd ‘¢

“JOUISIP 8y} ulylm pajeoo| uone|ndod saiunod yoes jo abejusaiad ayy Aq paisnipe

10ISIP By} Ul ‘Bjoym Jo Lied ul Jay)ie papnoul ‘S8juNog aulu 8y} Jo yoes Joj uoieindod AsAing Ajunwiwo)

ueDLIBWY 1US28J JSOW 8Y) IO SNSUD "S'N 0202 841 Buisn Aq paienojes si ende) uad 19eq Buipueising [e10] 'z

"SJUBWSIL]S |BIOUBUI 8] 0} S8J0U 8y} Ul punoj aq ueo 1gap Buipuelsino s,868)100 8y Jo sjieleq °|

:SOJON
€1'66¢€ %9690 G18'8G6°GS L ¥l V16°L.1'86 Z0'96S - 2/8°188°/6 €coc
L¥'L01 %6020 GgegzsyLLzel 10Z'€L9'le - - 10Z'€19'/e A4
82'¥El %09¢°0 1€2°215'881°'CL 2c0‘/8z'ce - - 2c0‘/8z'¢ce X404
82'9G1 %80€0 1¥1°1899/G6°Cl 250°2y.L8¢e - - 250°2v.L 8¢ 0c0c
or'v.LlL %¢CSE0 809°189°06¥°Cl ¥50'266'cy - ¥50'266'cy 610¢
02’861 %60%°0 120°€69'1786°L | ¥50°050°6% - - ¥50°050°6% 810¢
L¥'0le %0.Yv°0 Zre'l6L19¢°LL 8G/'/Ge‘€S - - 8G/°'/GE‘€S 1102
€901 %8¥2°0 98€°Gze 200°L 1L cee'lle'le - - zee'lle'le 910¢
¥9'.2CL %10€0 1€2'086°098°01 00l‘6¥9°CE - - 00lL‘6¥9°Ce G10¢
88611 %€9¢°0 220'980°G2.°0l L£2'662 '8¢ - - L£2'662'8¢ ¥710¢

ejde)n anjep anjea 1924 a|qeled S10BJJUOD spuog Jea A
184 198Q |enjoy Jo Auadoud a|gexe| Buipuelsino uonduosgng 1uswieisu| uonebiigo [eosi4
Buipueising  ebejusdiad  |enjoy pajewnsy [e1o] ZEVE]S)
[ejol

€20ZAd ybnoiyy 710z A4

adA1 Aq1geQq BulpuelsinQ jo oney

£0G "ON Jo13s1g 969109 Ajlunwwo) sioul|||
abaj|0D ymeH yoe|g

106



spJooal 868)|00 pue s8oIO S)I8|D AIUNOYD BPISSIYAA PUB NIBIS ‘PUB|S| Y00y ‘1808 ‘|leysley ‘Xouy| ‘AlusH ‘uoslepusH ‘neaing :$804nog

€202 220z 1202 0202 6102 8102 1102 9102 GL0z 102
L 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 Ow
0z$
_ N ov$
— oot
) = ™ - I
m 001$
0zL$
pua.] uidie 192q |esaq suolllN
26.'691°L€ v16°,.7'86 90.'1¥9'SEL €80°181'8L.L'Y €202
0,9°1%0'66 102°€19'22 118'%59'9Z) 620°/8€'S0V' ¥ zz0e
126°/52'68 220°.182'ce eV6'v¥S'cT) 161'2E¥'292' Y 1202
98%°2/1'18 250°2r.L'8e 8ES'¥716'0Z) 920'0L8°L6L'Y 0202
1 7€'869'G. ¥50°266'CY G6E069'6) | 08L'7¥L'€9L'y 6102
69.°161'G9 ¥50°050°6¥ €28 L¥8' VLl 81 '86Y'766'C 8102
G61'605°GS 8G/‘/G€'€S €G2°198'801 ¥,0'189'98.°¢ 1102
866861 ‘8. zee'lle'le 02€'9.¥'S01 LGS 17.'899°C 9102
G88'veyL.L 001'6%9°2¢ G86°€L0'%0L €12'796'619'C GL0zZ
¥89°1G6'v7/ 1£2'662'8C G16'052'€0) 121'9€€'16G°C 102
uibiep v11gs ® on|e)\ passassy Jo on|e)\ passassy Jea A
19eQ [ebaT spuog uonebliqo %G/8°C HwIigeg [eosi4

|eJauas) 1geQ
a|qeoljdde sse

£20ZAd ubnouu} 10ZA4
uibsep 199Q |eba7 jo uoneindwon

€0G "ON 3013s1Q 963109 Ajunwwo) sioul||
9b9]|0D yMeH yoe|g

107



spiooal 8b8|j0) :80I1n0g

"/10Z PUE GL0Z ‘€102 ‘'0L0Z ‘8002 ‘900Z ‘+00C Sieak |edsy) Bulnp spuoq mau panss! 868]|00 &y L

juawdinb3 % sapIyapAm

ABojouyoa | uonewlou|m

uoonsu| s

sane4n

syuswoaAoidwi puem

syuawanoidw) g sbuipingm

€c0c (444 120c 0c0c 610¢C 81L0¢ 110¢ 9l0¢ gloc 1434
L 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 nXuo
- %01
- %0¢
- %0¢
- %0¥%
- %08
- %09
- %0.
- %08
- %06
- %001
abesn sposdsoid puog
009'veS‘ze$ | PYS'Phy  $ | SIY'09S ¢ | 6G2'GE9'E $ | SOL‘EE9'GL § | 2SL'ez8'6 $ | 696'G0LY $ [ 220°8€€'6 $ | 969°185VL § | 269'650°S § leyoL
£87°LE9 7556 9¢6'62!) LEZ'S0L 865°G8 6.£0S€ 0v0°L8lL 18Y'EVL - - juswdinb3 %@ sajolyaA
1£6°129 589662 (XIS 8/£'€8. 671°€50°L 0v1'6.8 258'862°1 8/1°€8€’L L8Y'LES y1E9LL ABojouyos | uoljew.oyu|
- 4344’ 28511 L¥6'S - - - - - 9/v'zcel uononJsu|
- €26°€T - G8S5°/T 192'¢ 12691 Ge8'9le 861G 99G°G| 8¢€l'zcel sajjljioe
612°/56°L 0S1°/.6 915°00} 1€2'G. L0S'¥S £00262 0€9'G8 9€€°90. LLL'L ¥1G°8€S Ssjuswaoidw| pue
196°€2€'61$ - $ [ 60011 $[€68°269C $|0699er'vL $| €0.°v82'8 $ | 2L9'€z6'Cc $ | €26°L¥0°L $ | 2ES'L20'VL $[SL9'6SLY $ syuawanoidw| @ sbuipjing
£202 2202 1202 0202 6102 8102 2102 9102 G102 7102 asoding

€20ZA4 ubnouy} ¥1.0ZAd

Spe900Id 8ouenss| puog Jo 8sn

€0G "ON 3913s1@ 969109 Ayunwiwo siou|j|

ab9||09 ymeH xoe|g

108



spJlooal 8bs||0) :80IN0g

‘pun4 }saJaju| pue puog 8y} Ul JOoj pajUNOOdE PAUIED }SBIB)UI pUB Pajos||0o saxe} Auadoid woly predas aie spuog uonediqo [eiauas) ay] :9JoN

€c0c 4414 (X404 0c0c 610 8L0¢ L10¢ 9loc sloc 1414
L 1 1 1 1 1 1 goo.o
%00°0C
%000
%0009
%0008
- %00°00L
%00°0Z}
oljey abesanon
%9020} 189'261°L - - Gel'les 000'GSS'Y - - [eleleNerad 0000522 - - 8/1'116'L G9E'6. €11'8€8'L €¢0¢
%Ly 101 €58'8¥5'9 - - G29'LYL 000'69Z'Y - - 82298y 000°0S0°L - - 0L6'v79'9 €121 1€2'2€9°9 2c0e
%Z1.°00L L¥0'¥8Y'9 - - GZ1'vS6 000'G66'€ - - 916'vES 000°000°L - - 091'v€5°9 1€8'¢l €2€'029'9 Lcoc
%10°20L 0v8'eCy'9 - - SLE'LPLL 000'G€L'E - - S9v°'18S 000°096 - - [4Z84%1°) ¥1G'9¢ 822'916'9 0202
%6€°00L G68'85€'9 - - 000°20€’L 000°0St'2 006°0Z 000°Gt0°L 666'GZ9 000'G1L6 - - 096'€8¢€'9 990°LY ¥67'9€€'9 6102
%20°CLL Lv.L'¥89'G - - IvL'L6E'L 000°069°L 05585 000°500°L S¥0°G99 000628 - - 116°29€'9 8/9'€C 66Z'¥¥E'9 810¢C
%1506 268'¢6'9 - - LOL'SLL - 005°2G1 000°0€S'Y 162'90L 000'G€8 - - £18'782'9 a4 62v'2.2'9 1102
%2S°20L ¥€L'€60'9 - - - - G28'v6C 000'§..°C 966'62L - €1€'8C 000692 188'9¥2°9 952'6 1€9°2€2°9 9l0C
%€ L6 68L'V¥E'9 - - - - 166’691 - 966'62. - ve'syl 000°00€'S €80°921'9 G0S'6 8/6'991°9 G102
%€L 101 €€L°181'9 - - - - - - 192'v€L - 99€'962 000'0SG}'S 956'/82'9 ¥€0°'6 226'812'9 102
oney |elo| 1saltsu| _mu_o:_Ln_ 1salsju| _mu_o:_Ln_ 1saJau| _mQ_o:_Ln_ 1salsu| _mQ_OC_Ln_ 1salsu| _NQ_Oc_y_n_ 92IAIBS 199 pauie3 pajo8||0D Jes A
mmmy_m>00 10} a|qejleAy 1salsau| saxe | >tma0y_n_ |easi4
anuanay JaN
spuog €202 spuog /102 spuog G102 spuog €102 spuog 0102

spuog uonebiqQ [esous9

€20ZA4 Ubnouyy 71.0ZA4
abeianod puog jo a|npayos

£0G "ON 1213s1q 963]109 Ajunwwo) sioul)|
869|109 ymeH xoe|g

109



*3|qe|IeAR Juadal }Sow ay} ‘SAVYT ZzZ0g Uo paseq sabejuadlad (g)
"'SpUOQ 8NUBAAI dAljeUId)|E apnjoul Jou saoq (})
'S9OIO SHIBID AJUNOY |leysIe\ PUE HIE)S neaing XOuy| UOSISPUSH ‘BpISa)IYAN 482\ {AIUsH pue|s| o0y :82in0S

¥€2'920 18€S j99Q papuog uonebiqo |essuag BuiddepanQ |ejo
000°0v0'v$ %00°001} 000°0¥0'% 0€ Joussiq jooyos ybiH diysumo | pspun
00€'€e8’ L1 %00°001 00€'ee8’LL 0¥ 1ou3sid 100YoS NuN Apunwiwo) 18oIs)
29v'8 %8186 000°G28°/ 9z¢€ 1ousia 100ydS Hun Ajunwiwo) s|jineouLd
00€'€e8’ L1 %00°001 00€°'ee8’LL ¥0€ sIq 100YoS Hun Ayunwiwod pspun
000°'08}°€ %0000} 00008l 00€ ¥MsIg 100YoS Hun Ajunwiwo) aBpLo0y
000'629 %00°00L 000'G29 0€Z 101183 100428 NUN AHUNWWOD PlalsIayIBM
0006.1 %00°001 000°'6.1 622 1011813 [00YOS HUN ANUNWIWOY 83UBMaY]
1ze'86v'ce %0000} 12€'86v'Ce 822 1ouIsid [00YoS Nun AYUNWwo) osssusg
00069, %00°00L 00069 12z 191813 100y2S Wun Ajunwwio) ebpuquen
26168¢°} %8186 000'GL¥'L 9z 10M1sId [00Y0S UM AJUNWWOD UeMBUUY
000'59% %00°00L 000'G9Y G2z 10MsI@ 100498 NuN AJUNWWoD poom|y
008°020°L %00°001 008°020°L 2 msIg 100yos Jun Ayunwiwo) eajes
000'718'S %00°001 000'718'S €22 1PMIsId [00YdS Jun Ajunwiwo) uouQ
000'019°2 %0000} 000°019°2 80¢ 1o1sI 100YoS Hun Ajunwio) eamoy
000'660°SL %0000} 000°'G60°GL 00z PusIg 100YoS Jun Ajunwiwio) piessys
000°0L¥'EL %00°001 000°0L¥'EL 001 30HISI@ 100Y2S JUN Ajunwiwo) xiels
000°0S6 %00°00L 000°0S6 001 10MISIA 100YdS HUN AUNWIWOD BjeplaAly
€50'0Sv°9L %00°00L €50°0St'91L 0F ouIsIQ |00YoS NuUN AUNWWOD dullo
000°S.2 %00°00L 000'S.e 061 10MISIQ |00YoS BuO|0D
000°0Sv'€C %00°00L 000°0S¥'€C L¥ 1013sI3 |00YOS pue|s| Y00y
000°089°'€Z %00°00L 000°'089'c2 /€ 101ISIa |00ydg SUljoN iseq
000°'0€. %00°00L 000°0€2 9¢ PMIsIg |00Ydg mojsieg/yl|Q uoqied
000°068°L %00°00L 000°068°L ¥€ 1oMsIg |1004oS SIS
000'GS 1} %0000} 000'SS1 6¢ 1011sIq |00YoS uojdwey
000'0S0°} %00°00L 000°'0S0°L usIq Med ssuemay
000'928 %00°00L 000928 oLIsIq Yled ossausy
0 %00°00L 0 1ousiq Aleiqi aibsule)
000°09 %00°00L 000°09 jouIsIq uonodj0Id il As|leA (0D
000°'s2. %0000} 000622 ouUIsIqQ uoRoBjoId Bul4 BpHqWED
0 %00°00L 0 uojnoy] jo Ayn
0 %00°00L 0 SIAIIS J0 AD
008'¥2.L'¥9 %00°00L 008'v2L'%9 puejs| o0y Jo AnD
0 %00°00L 0 uouQ jo abejiin
000'¥66'901 %00°00L 000'766'90L auopy Jo Auo
000'6CL°L %0000} 000°'G6Z}'L ueyIN 4o abejIA
0 %00°00L 0 ajjInIBye Jo abejiin
0 %00°00L 0 sauemay] Jo A1
0 %0000} 0 uojdweH jo abejjin
0 %0000} 0 09saua9) Jo A1
0 %0000} 0 auljol\ }se3 jo Ao
0 %0000} 0 euojod jo Ao
0 %69°L6 0 KsjleA 1eo) jo abejjin
0 %00°001 0 abpuquwe) jo abejin
0 %00°001 0 uosupy Jo abejiin
0 %00°001 0 eisnjepuy jo abejjia
0 %8S°€ 0 Auno) neaing
0 %00°001 0 |ejidsoH AlusH puowweH
0 %00°001 0 Auno) puels| %00y Jo podily ueyjodosay
0 %00°00L 0 Jsuel] sse|\ uejjodosja|\ PUels| 300y
0 %00°00L 0 181 9AI8sald 1S8104 AJUunoD pue|s| X000y
000'521'92$ %00°00} 000'621°92% (uorssiwwo Buipjing 1lgnd) Aunod puels| 300y

junowy (z) abejuadiad (1) spuog sjousiq Buixe] Buinss)

pejewnsy BuipuelsinQ jo unowy

o381 0} 8|qed)|ddy

1g8Q pepuog uonebiiqo |eseuss) BuiddesaQ pue 18i1q

£0S "ON 321351 9B9|j0D Ayunwiwo) sioulj||
969]09 ymeH yoe|g

110



neaing snsua) 'S'N
Aunoag juswAojdw3 jo Juswyedaq sioul||| wolj ajes JuswAoldwaun abelany
sisAjeuy dlWOU02T JO neaing ‘S’ :$924N0S

Hodau Jo awi} e d|ge|ieAy JON uolewoju| = /N '€

"Jo13SIg 8y} Jo uoneindod |ejoy ayy Aq Junowe

sy} Buipialp uayl ‘000°‘L Ag paldiinw sajewsa awooul [euosiad SaUNOD @ ||e Jo wns ay) Buiyel Aq pajyenojes

sem /102 - £10Z "S21unod aulu jo abelane ay) Bupye) Ag pajejnojes si awoou| [euosiad ende) Jad 2102-800Z ‘2
$913UN02 BulU || Jo} uoneindod |ejo} 8y} sI 8Aoqe papodal uoleindod | :S810N

¢c0c 120¢ 0c0¢ 610¢ 810¢ L10¢ 9l0¢ Gloc 1424 €10¢
L 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 nxuoo
%0°'C
%0t
%09
%08
~ puairareyiuswhoidwsun %00
%v'v V/N VIN 087'v9€ ¢coc
%C’'G Gry'es €Le'gyLel €21°89¢ 1¢0c
%6°.L 905'6¥ Z€0°G89°L1 199'€9¢ 0¢0¢
%6’V 89€ vy 90682191 1G1°19¢ 610¢
%C'S 189'€Y G90'v9Z'91L 69G5°0LE 81L0¢
%L'SG ooL'ey 98Y°LL6'S1 zLL'ele L10¢
%€'9 z8L'0v 0€6°L0€'S1L Lz'sie 910¢
%€9 192'6€ 988°G10'S1L 2Ge'8.€ G10¢
%0°.L zie'ee LIZ'VL6'YL 2Ge'08¢e v10¢
%L.'8 G06'6€ 896'CSC'S1L 9€2'28¢ €10¢
ajey awoou| |euosiad awoou| uone|ndogd JeaA
wswhoidwaun ende) Jad [euosiad

2202 Ybnoly) £10z SIedA Jepusjed
sofsije)s olwouood pue olydelbowsq

€0G "ON ¥0113s1q 9b3]|09 Ajlunwiwo) stoul||
869|109 yMeH Xoe|g

111



sol}slje}S JogeT Jo neaung - JogeT Jo Juswpedsq sn
AjunpoddQ o1wouoo3 pue 8o1sWIWOY Jo Juswiedaq siou
uolssiwwo) [euolfay ajels-Ig

:$92IN0S

000°L fAuno9g Aiuay - pakojdwaun |ejol G96‘L funoy Aiuay - pakojdwaun |ejo
€19'2C fyunoy A1uaH - aa104 Joqe pakojdwz [eyo 9z5‘eT fyunoy A1uaH - ad104 Joqe] pakojdwz [eyo)
%P0 00l Jainjoejnuely swJiealld ‘ou| ‘Aiowny playbuudg %EY0 001 aba)|00 ANunwwo) sndwe) jsej ab9||0D ymeH oelg
%6%°0 cLL awoH BuisinN BWOH jsa.0|liH %¥9°0 0S1 leysy "ou| ‘spieusiy
%¥8°0 061 Buunjoeynuepy "ou| ‘auoy| %¥9°0 0S1L juswuIBA0S AJuno) juswyedaq yyesH Auno) AiusH
%10°1L 0ez JUSWIUIBA0S) asnoyuno) Auno) AlusH %¥9°0 0S1L Jainjoejnuely syeod ‘00 Je0) Jayjea % uysdeays pajjeox3
%0L°L (0114 8leQ yjesH uiesH Ajiwe [eoIpajy 9N 1S 4SO %580 002 Jaunoejnuely jjedysy/aiojoedwo |10S seouswy Bewog
%01°1 052 NSEN] J8)usoIadng yewep %90°1 052 1o1)sIg |00yos Arepuooag/Aiejuswa|gy 101381 |00YOS AJUNWWOD d8UBMay|
%SL°1L 092 8leQ yjesH [eydsoH AiusH-puowweH %61°L 08¢ BuIAI pajsissy/awoH BuisinN 8IeD yyesH uosieled
%9¢" USWUIBAO! (uosud pue jueunsedap %82 [ISE] ew|e,
%9€'C ¥€S 3 3} yieay ‘syied) JUSWILIBA0E) A0 S8UBMBY| %8¢ L 00¢€ leysy Hewepm
%1G uolyeon (sronsip %82 eydso 13)Ud) [eOIPSIN BN JUle!
%1G°C 699 ieonp3 |00Uos AUNOD AIUSH) SIYIES | [00UOS %8¢ L 00€ |eydsoH JU8D |BDIPBIN 84N JUleS 4SO
%592 009 JaInjoBjNUEA [1Bd] oNnd] IWes sla|lel] aue( jeals %G5°2 009 JaINjoBJNUEBIA YONJ] WSS sla|lel] aue( jeals
juswAhojdwz juswAhojdwy
lejol saakojdwy 991AI9G/}oNpOo.Id 19fojdwzg lejol saakojdwy 921AI9G/)ONpoId 19fojdwzg
Jo abejuasiagd Jo abejuasiag
ceoe €10z
fAuno) AiusH
268‘C funo) puejs| 3ooy - pakojdwaun |ejol 5609 funo9 puejs| yo0y - pakojdwaun [ejo)
[rAay] funo) puejs| 320y - 82104 10qe] pakojdw3 jejo ) €LL29 funo9 puejs| 320y - 82104 10qe] pakojdw3 |ejo )
%S8°0 0SS 969100 80UBIDS B SUY [e1aq!T BjeAld 86900 euejsnbny %€0°L 004 Japinoid ABisuz/Aninn uojex3
%660 9€9 869109 Ajunwwod 869100 smeH oelg %cTC’L Gz8 869109 Ajunwwod 869100 smeH soelg
%vT L 008 [leyoy| (suopeool Ajunod puels| 300y ||e) Hew|epn %81l L 208 uonessiuiwpy Aunoy Aunod pueys| 300y
%EY’L 026 a10)g 190049 | (suonedo| Ajunod puejs| 300y ||e) 8aA-AH %EY’L 0.6 |eydsoH SIAIIS - J8jUd] |BJIPBIA SISBURD
%SS'L 000°} pusIq |00yog Alepuodsg/Aiejuswalg Ob# YouIsI@ 100Y0S Apunwiwiod auljoy %8| 000°L| sonsifo pue juswabeuey uteyd Ajddng (OvdXx) Buibexoed podx3
%GSL 000°} Japinoid suonnjos ureyD-Alddng OVdX %291 001} sopsibo Aued payL sejuedwo) O dnoio
%EL'E 00tz Buissaooid poo4 sjea|\ ysal4 uosh| %69°C 0052 Buissaooid poo4 sjea|\ ysal4 uosh|
%YL'9 ¥56°€ welsAg 81e) yiesH wasAg yiesH juiod Anun-Auuy %86'C 769'C wa)sAs aied yyesH weyshs yieeH euoibey Anun L
%1G°6 €9l Bunjoeynuepy esusjeq Jeuasly pue|s| 300y %.1G°8 008‘S yswdinb3 [einynouby pue uonoNsuoD '00 g a199(Q
%y L1 ove'L yswdinb3 [einynouBy pue uonoNISU0D Auedwo) % a1eaQq %1911 006°L Buunjoeynuepy esusjeq |euasly pue|s| 300y
juswAhojdwg juswAhojdwgy soafodws
lejol saahojdwz 991AJ3g/}oNpo.Id 19fojdwzg lejol 40 # xoddy 991A19g/}oNpoId 19fojdwg

Jo abejuasiad

Jo abejuasiad

(44114

€102

AQuno9 puejs| o0y

220ZA4 03 pasedwiod €1.0ZAd
slakojdw3 ediouud

€05 "ON 101381 9631109 Ajunwiwio) siouy)|
a69]|09 ymeH xoeig

112



€C0TAd

CC0TA

9WI}-1ed JJBIS [BUOISSDJOId M SWII-||Nd JJRIS [BUOISSDJ0Id W

awi-ued 1BY10

awi-yed uwpy

TZ0TAd

020CAd

awi-(|n4 J3Y10

w4 ulwpy

6TOCAd

8TOCAd

awn-yed paiisse|)

awi-Med |esageuely m

awi-1ed Aynoey

LTOTZAd

Jabeuely Bununoodoy B yebpng QOHYG :924n0S

awin-n4 payisse)) m

awi-||n4 [euadeuelN m

awn-||n4 Ayndey m

9TOCAd

STOCAS

YT0ZAd

____ 0
00¢
0ov

____ 009
008

000T

00¢T

609 265 LLS 9€9 G89 169 €29 888 16 SL0°L lejol puely

80€ 112 892 €€€ 8/€ 68¢€ 9€e 629 (474" /29 sw-Led

L0€ GLE €0€ €0€ 10€ 80€ /8¢ 6G€ CLE 88¢ swi-lind
s9afojdw3 |ejoL

G8 ¥8 69 4] %42 18 6l 14 9l (94" swi-Jed Jayio

0 L € € € 0 } 0 4 14 aw-|ind Jayio
43y10

€5 65 GG 99 22 €8 68 14 4" A" swi-ped payisse|n

¥S 19 ¥S 09 €9 95 7S 89 69 €L swi-|In4 payisse|n
Hels paiyisse|d

A 0l 6 6 €l 6l vl 8L Ll Sl swi-Led Jejg |euoisssjold

€6 88 06 ¥8 Z8 88 L. 20l 76 66 awi-|Ind Jels |euoissejold
JJels |euoissajoid

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 L Z awi-ped |euabeuepy

05 4] 8y 8y 8y Ly (44 61 /G 09 awi-(In4 |elabeuepy
|leliabeuepy

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 swi-led ulwpy

0l Ll Ll Ll Ll 0l 6 ol €l €l swi-|In4 ulwpy
sJiojesjsiuiupy

€91 SZlL GEL 961 681 902 7Ll (A 44 99¢ 7le awi-Hed Aynoe4

¥6 Z0L 16 16 €0l 101 20l ocl Sel 6€l aw-(In4 Aynoe4
Kynoe4

€20CA4d 220CAd LZ0ZAAd 020CAd 610CAd 8L0CA4 LL0ZAA 9L0CA4 GL0CAd V102Ad

€202A4 Ubnoiyy 1,0ZA4
JunoopesH Jels pue Ajnoe4

£0G "ON 3o13s1@ 969]10D Aunwwo) sioul|

abajj09 ymeH xoelg

113



papIoosY JON = YN
yoday 13 02| 92408

jusjeainbg swi] N4\ JunoopesH [ejo] n
€¢0c ¢coc Lc0¢c 0coc 610¢ 810¢ /110¢ 910¢ G10¢ ¥10¢
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 O

- . | | . . . . . . ~+ 000

~ 000

; — 000°€

. ._ L . L | L L ; 1 L L 1 OOO,.V

~+ 000°S

— 0009

000°2

jJudwijjosuy |jed
€¢€C 860°L ovl 86¢ €51 0S8 66L°L 18GC 98L°l 6YEC vZr'l €LL'E 6.0°C €2¢0¢
€¢ec S66 ovl 862 12 18 12€°1 0Ev'eC 90€’) ¥GEC z8e’l 9e.L'c vEL'C [444
(R4 990°} 04¢ 8l €l 8G/ 25E°) 11€°C 99¢) 69€°C | 22" EV.L'E zee’e 12c0c
9'v¢ 2€0°) €62 S6€ €81 L€0°) 296} 016C 295 9zl 9v.L'l v’y €€G'C 020¢
8¢ ¥26 0ce 144 191 Ll6 08S°L 80.C Gz9'l £€9°C 00.°} EEE'Y 11G6C 6102
N4 Lv8 G9¢€ 0Ly €lc €62 8cL'l €Ll €62 226'C ¥00°C 926'v GE8'C 81L0¢C
g'6e G80°'L [444 0ls 1€¢ 18G°) 2561 709°€ 600°C YvZ'e 69€C €19's SLz'e 210¢
(414 8¢6 9lc 09z} [4%4 8¢6 169°) 2se'e 610°C 660°C gl L.2's 9zl'e 910¢
2'9C 680°L | FX4 692°C G9¢€ cl6 0161 196'€ 9re'e 819°¢ 629°C 9L¥'9 GE9'E S10C
(Vx4 691 80€ 69€°C 16¢ .6 168} €66'C 185°C 806°C 999°C ¥.G'9 206°E ¥10Z
®m< Juspnis _me._mwﬁ_ juapnis Juspnis juapnis juapnis awli] Jed | swl] |In4 alewa 9e|\ JjunoopesH H_Cm_m>_3_um Jes A
wmm‘_®>< |00Yyds Jwpeay Jajsueld | MBN @C_JC_HCOO |elol awl] [|In4 |easi4q
ybiH
®m< snjejs juswjjoiug aouepuany Japuso juswijjojuz |je4

€20ZAd ubnoay} #1.0ZA4
sonsie)s olydesfowa Juswijjoius Juspms

€0S "ON 39143510 9631109 Ajunwwo) siou)||
969100 ymeH yoelg

114



'S80IAI9S SuelIs}s\ DHY pue aseqejeq pIY [EloueUld DHE :82In0S

weiboid 8oUBSISSY [BUOIBONPT BAIBSEY - /09| Jejdey) pue ‘eAiesay payos|es (lig |9 AlewobBiuo - 909} Jeldey) ‘eouelsissy sjuspuadeq g ,SIONAINS - G¢ Jejdeyd ‘uonijigeyey
[euoneoo - L¢ Jeydeyd ‘Aing eandy iig |9 AiswoBjuop - o¢ JeideyD sepnjour )| ‘Buiodal /L0ZA4 8Yi Ul papnjoul ag o} unbag sey ply s,uelsjeA/AIBNIN [e19pa4 J8YIO | 810N

"a1ep Sy} Jaje 1200 Aew Yolym sjuswisnipe pue sjuswesingsip Jaylny Aue apnjoul Jou s8op pue ‘zz0z/20/20 Ubnoiyy sjuswAed g1 A 108|481 S|ej0) ZZ0ZAdx

zls‘e 09S°S 96¢€'S 662'S e6v'y 829y G88'y vLL'Y 0LL's yv9'9 avioL
6l 8 14 0¢ 14 6 cl Ll 9g L0l sdiys.ejoyos JouoQg
10€ 9le e 68 9¢s 99¢ 144 89¢ YAZ4 144 sdiys.e|oyos uolepuno4
€le €9¢ [A%4 )44 1.2 0S¢ 8G¢ 98¢ 143 12513 Splemy juswisAsIyoy
€61 9¢¢ (AN 1S¢ GG¢ Sle 6€¢ 1l¢ ¥9¢ 1GC diysiejoyoguels ayenlld
P!y |ed207
- - - L - - - - - Juel sjuspuada uewali4/uewadljod
€C X4 X4 (4 cc A 117 6% Sy ce SH0d
(0]% 6 8 14 14 € S 9 L 9 sjuspuadaq VIN/MOd
8¢ 0¢ 8l Le €c T4 (4 Ll Ll X pieng [euoheN
4 6 cl cc /Z 1> 09 €. 18 140)" (DAI) Jueis suesslo 1|
128 618 118 6¢8 359 Zl9 769 14514 ov. 66. juels dvin
PlVY 3je3s
Gl 8. 291 b (39038) 903s Aousbiswz
186°1L 691'L 65/ - - - - - - uopod Juspnis - el 4433H STHYD
ply |elapa4 Aouabiawg
43 1S 6. 19 Ll GL 701 - - - PV s,ueisio/AiBlIN [espa4 J8Y10
€e 6¢ ¥S g9 19 76 88 L. S. 8. (puny 1119 19 €) ¢ Joydeyd
8l 8 8l ¥4 8l €l 9l 145 145 €l ueoT Juapnis (Jusied) sNd
9eeC r4%4 9G5¢ 80¢ 9G¢ 0cy 0S¥ 8¢y 98¥y 269 pszipisgnsun - ueoT ployels
18l 88l A4 10€ gce €8¢ 1017 (417 699 9 pazipisgns - ueoT pJojels
681 174" Ggl 1433 0ce 6LE 18¢€ 86¢C 9ee 961 903S
€80°) Gell 16L°1 LGY'L 9Sv'lL Zvl'l 182°) vv6'l 96e°‘C 60S°C juels 7113d
61 Ly 8¢ 19 19 VL 89 €L €6 €0l Apmig stopn 969100
P!V |ei3pag
€20CAd Z20CAd L20CAd 020CAd 6L0CAd 8L0CAd| ZLOZAd | 9L0CAd | GLOZAd | VLOZAA piv jo adA|

€20ZA4 UBnoiy) y10zAd
sjuaidiosy piy [eloueuld

€05 "ON 3213s1q 963]j09 Aunwiwo) sioulj|
969]10 yMeH yoe|g

115



SjusWalL)S [BIouBUI4 palipny 868|007 :824n0S
"sINoyY JIpa.Jo pajoLsalun pue paloLsal Yiog Sepnjoul SINoy Ipalo [Bjo | 810N

Kiepuooag oiseg Jnpy B

juswdojara( [elpaway B leuonednooQ yieeH | leuonednooQ [EolUYOS | B leuonednooQ ssauisng|

€c0c¢

[44V4

1¢0c

0coc

610¢

810¢

110¢

9loc

gloc

ajeaineleddeg

14404

- 000°02

- 000°0%

- 000°09

- 000°08

- 000°00}

- 000°0C)

SINOH }pal) |ejo] 0} suonnquiuo) Aiobajes juswasinquiay

000°0¥L

%91 /- | 9°/66°89 [£°'€96°G9 |1'966'69 (Z'v6V‘CZ8 |9°280°88 |0°82E'€6é [1°2G8°00L |¥#°80£°L0L [v'l62°02L |2°GSL62L lejol
%6.'Gy- | 6'L€6'CL [y 1186 ¥'G0€0L |9'8€8'¥L [6'%/9'GL |1'822°9L |[¥'L22'8L |6°€82°0C |[2'LS/.'cZ |8'€S8'Ce Alepuooag oiseg }npy
%05'08- | 0'¥82°L [0'LSL'C 0622 0'6/6°¢C 0'S6Y'Yy 0'€/G'S 0682/ 0'€9/.°2 01506 0'6V1'6 juswdojeaaq [elpaway
%Sy'Zy- | 999%'9 [£'660°2 1’1689 01el'2 0//58 /'€29'8 L'y’ G'Zze8 1'928'6 99¢z'LL leuoednooQ yjlesH
%€2'8S- | ¥'/8¢',L [09.6'2 1'06€'.L 0'6EL°8 S'0L9'6 /'S06'0L [8'020'cL |Z¥66'ClL |¥'9ze'sl |[L'/89°/L [euonednooQ [eoluyos |
%¥8'LS- | ¥'669'C [£208'C L0vL'e £'G0S'¢C 0//1'¢ 1'0L.'€ 6'288'¢C G'G60'Y 6'191°S S'$09°S [euolednooQ ssauisng
%00~ | ¥'882'/¢ [€615'9¢ |¥¥66'6€ [SLOE'VY |2°€9S°9Fy |¥'2.0'8v |[6'8¥Y'0S |€618CS [8'08L'8S |Z2¥2229 8jealnejedoeq
¢€coc
SA 102 €202 (44114 Leoc 0coc 610C 810¢ 1102 910¢C SL0¢C vioc Kiobajed
abueyn 9,

€202Ad ubnoiys #1.0ZA4

sauoba)e) Juswasinquiay pleog abajj0) Alunwwo) sioul||| Aq Buipun4 1o} 8|q16113 sINoH }Ipal)d

£0G "ON Jo1s1@ abajjoD Ajunwwo sioul|||
abaj|0D ymeH yoe|g

116



/10ZA4 Ul [E]O} 8} WOJ) POAOWISI 8J9M Uoliepuno sndwe) jse] oy} Aq paUMO saloy ,

‘sJosinadng

sal|ioe4 HHY WOJ) paulelgqo uolewloul €ZA4 - 0ZA4 "gDD1 01 sebejooy atenbs spunolb pue saiijioe) odas o) palinbal 1abuo|
ou Sl DHY ‘0ZAd 10 SY "H-A pue |-A S8|qeL Y00q solsuejoeley) pue eyeq (g091) pleog 8bs)j09 Ayunwiwo sioul||| ‘6L-tL A4 :82In0g

44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44
G9E'C G9E'C G9E'C G9E'C l6L'C l6LC l6LC ¥00°C ¥00°C ¥00°C
G6v'86Y GLE'/8Y GLE'/8Y GLE'/8Y 169'S9¥ ZLL'L9Y 98€'C9v 29.'29v €€0'6CY 6.G'L2V
- - - - (S 7A - - 06 €9¢g'e 61.°C
61£6G 618y 6€1 '8y 618y L¥8'GYy 8/€£°8¢ 086°0Y 0€.'6€ 288'9¢ oLe'ee
zz9'or zz9'or zz9'ov zz9'ov €25'0v 6v0°LY €00°LY G/8'8¢ LoL've G00'vE
€G¥'9G €G¥'9G €G¥'9G €G¥'9G 18¢€'6Y 18¢€'6Y G8Y'GY 188'vY 188y 188'vY
L6182 l6L'ge l6L'ge 16182 021°22 ¥8.1°82 9//'GZ €¥0°02 §60°0¢ €182
9/1°LL 9/1°LL 9/1°LL 9/1°LL 8YG°LL 9zL'eL vZ6'vL €25°LL 0v9°0L 080°69
G2s29l G2S29L G2s 29l G2S 29l 120°€GL 11€2TS1 L€G'6YL 9vSvGL 892Z°g¢ElL 0/8°0vL
602°08 602°08 602°08 602°08 906°G. L19'v8 189'v8 81298 161°08 G€6°GL
cglee cglee c'lee cglee 9'L€C 9'L€C «9'LEC 0€lc ¢'slc 0€lc
9¢ 14 14 0 14 14 14 €¢ ¥4 ¥4
€20c ¢coc 120c 0c0¢c 610¢C 81L0¢ L10¢ 9l0¢ G10¢ 1444

saIoy
sjods Buyied sndwed up
:Ajoeded Buppied

[ejol

paubisseun

suonouny woddng

(4@3BBYL) OSN |BIBUBD

(3d ‘sone|ury) esn |eroedg

Apmis

90O

Aiojeloge

asn |elauab pue swooisse|)
)98 aienbg sjgeubissy 18N

(s101 Buniied sepnjour) saioe |Bjo |
Jusuewad - sbuipjing

€202Ad Ubnouu} #1.0ZA4

uonewWIOU| SaNIjIoB ] [BUONONIISU| - S18SSY [elide)) Jo 8|npayos

£0G "ON Jo13sIg ab9j109 Ajlunwwo) sioul)||

969]]00 yMeH yoelg

117



96€
0
GGl
0
98
¥0¢

¢coc

uoday (zvy) suons|dwon jenuuy pieog 86900 Aunwiwio) sioul||] :92IN0S

‘Solljawi juelis)

supjiad s,069j100 8y} enoidwi 0} Loye ue Ul ‘0Z0ZA< Ul PajjoJus sjuspnjs Aq paulies sojedlilao papieme-oine absjjod ayJ ,

Jagqweoag

BuiwoApn
[INYPOOAA
B[OIA

uojno |
SIAIS
pJelays
uoyeas
pue|s| 300y
spjoukay

DI

SUY Bul Ul 8}eI00SSY

90UsI0G paljddy ul 81eI00SSY

S8IpN)S [BJSQIT] Ul 8}BID0SSY

90UBI0G Ul 9)BID0SSY

SMY/ Ul 8]BI00SSY

2202 JedA [eoSI4 Ul papliemy Ssajedia) pue aasbag

USIA UOlR)IPaIoo. IXBN

(sjooyos pue sabajj09 JO UONBIDOSSY [BJjud)) YLION Alawlioy)
uoissiwwo) buiues JaybiH ay|

Ao spidey
uoJAg uod
uouo
JOSPUIA, MBN
uojsog maN
1osuodaN
SUlloN
[eJBUIN
uejiiN
dllinByle N
a)eAeqe

aauema)|
Bungsyyey
Aor
ajoydooH
aleps||iH
uoydweH
09S9Ud9)
BAED)

alg

SUIIO\ Jsed
BAOPIOD

uone}Ipalody

BUO|0D
AslleA 120D
H1D uoqued
abpuquen
ll'H doysig
uosupiy
uemeuuy
Jlanopuy
eisnjepuy
eydy
opaly

:9pN|ouUl PaAISS SalIUNWWOY)

(uonewixoidde) uonendod

ejeq pHIsia

papuno4 Jea

€202 ‘0€ aunp papus Jea A
SOI1SI1BIS SNoBuR|[89SI|A

€0G "ON Jo1sIqg abajj0o9g Ajunwwon
aba||0D ymeH yoe|g

118



ICCB Supplemental Information

119



This page is intentionally left blank

120



Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Equalized Assessed Valuations and Tax Collections

Tax Levy Year

2022 2021 2020
Equalized assessed valuations:
Bureau County $ 36,049,199 $ 32,931,872 $ 31,103,239
Henderson County 3,987,086 3,757,834 3,536,161
Henry County 1,096,018,712 1,023,718,073 987,490,121
Knox County 20,175,712 18,682,999 17,457,879
Marshall County 151,515 137,139 131,953
Mercer County 346,713,181 317,418,708 296,789,793
Rock Island County 2,990,906,634 2,797,373,624 2,726,322,088
Stark County 135,604,043 128,105,619 121,379,066
Whiteside County 88,575,001 83,261,161 78,222,491
$ 4,718,181,083 $ 4,405,387,029 $ 4,262,432,791
Tax rates (per $100 of assessed valuation):
Education Fund 0.1151 0.1185 0.1193
Operations and Maintenance Fund 0.0672 0.0692 0.0696
Bond and Interest Fund 0.1999 0.1503 0.1537
Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund 0.0244 0.0721 0.0726
Audit Fund - 0.0030 0.0030
Operations and Maintenance, restricted 0.0480 0.0494 0.0497
Equity 0.0895 0.0995 0.1003
0.5441 0.5620 0.5682
Tax extensions:
Education Fund $ 8,096,135 $ 7,998,198 $ 7,787,342
Operations and Maintenance Fund 4,724,550 4,667,594 4,542,824
Bond and Interest Fund 9,443,179 6,635,181 6,554,276
Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund 1,151,071 3,178,828 3,095,151
Audit Fund - 132,142 127,868
Operations and Maintenance, restricted 2,263,983 2,177,906 2,118,976
$ 25,678,918 $ 24,789,848 $ 24,226,437
Less tax collections (cumulative through June 30, 2023):
Education Fund $ 3,413,937 $ 8,013,689 $ 7,775,092
Operations and Maintenance Fund 1,992,559 4,678,279 4,536,356
Bond and Interest Fund 3,985,019 6,648,091 6,544,346
Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund 485,620 3,184,902 3,090,459
Audit Fund - 132,522 127,678
Operations and Maintenance, restricted 955,360 2,182,118 2,115,756
$ 10,832,495 $ 24,839,600 $ 24,189,687
Taxes receivable:
Tax receivable $ 14,846,423 $ (49,752) $ 36,750
Written off - - -
Allowance for uncollectible taxes (77,038) 49,752 (36,750)
$ 14,769,385 - $ -
Taxes receivable by fund:
Education Fund $ 4657910 $ - $ -
Operations and Maintenance Fund 2,717,817 - -
Bond and Interest Fund 5,429,830 - -
Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund 661,998 - -
Audit Fund - - -
Operations and Maintenance, restricted 1,301,830 - -
$ 14,769,385 $ - $ -
Percentage of extensions collected 42.18% 100.20% 99.85%
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Schedule of Legal Debt Margin

Legal Debt Margin

Assessed valuation, 2023 levy $ 4,718,181,083
Debt limit, 2.875% of assessed valuation $ 135,647,706
Bonded indebtedness (98,477,914)

Legal debt margin $ 37,169,792
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CERTIFICATION OF CHARGEBACK REIMBURSEMENT

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024

College or District Name: BLACK HAWK COLLEGE
District #: 503

ALL FISCAL YEAR 2023 NONCAPITAL AUDITED OPERATING EXPENDITURES FROM THE FOLLOWING

Funbps:

Education Fund

Operations and Maintenance Fund

Public Building Commission Operation and Maintenance Fund
Bond and Interest Fund

Public Building Commission Rental Fund

Restricted Purposes Fund

Audit Fund

Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund

A S AN R S e

Auxiliary Enterprises Fund (subsidy only)

10. TOTAL NONCAPITAL EXPENDITURES (sum of lines 1-9)

11. Depreciation on Capital Outlay Expenditures (equipment, buildings, and
fixed equipment paid) from Sources other than State and Federal Funds

12. TOTAL COSTS INCLUDED (line 10 plus line 11)
13. Total certified semester credit hours for FY 2023

14. PER CAPITA COST (line 12 divided by line 13)

15. AllFY 2023 state and federal operating grants for noncapital expenditures.

DO NOT INCLUDE ICCB GRANTS

16. FY 2023 state and federal grants per semester credit hour
(line 15 divided by line 13)

17. District’s average ICCB grant rate (excluding equalization grants)
for FY 2024

18. District’s student tuition and fee rate per semester credit hour for FY 2024

19. Chargeback reimbursement per semester credit hour
(line 14 less lines 16, 17, and 18)

%WG\

§ 26,407,216
§ 4,116,356
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ 10,361,197
$ 76,175
$§ 2,957,009
$ -
§ 43,917,953
§ 1,932,516
§ 45,850,469

68,557.60
$ 668.79
§ 9,178,597
$ 133.88
$ 50.05
$ 164.00
$ 320.86

Approved: December 20, 2023
Chief Fiscal Officer Date
ﬂ ChieﬁE’f(ecutive Officer Date
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ICCB Uniform Financial Statements

The Uniform Financial Statements are required by the lllinois Community College Board for the purpose of
providing consistent audited data for every community college district. Regardless of the basis of accounting
used for a College’s balance sheet and statement of revenues and expenditures, the Uniform Financial
Statements are completed using the modified accrual basis of accounting prescribed by the NCGA Statement
No. 1 and related interpretations.

The Uniform Financial Statements include the following:

No. 1 — All Funds Summary

No. 2 — Summary of Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt

No. 3 — Operating Fund Revenues and Expenditures

No. 4 — Restricted Purposes Fund Revenues and Expenditures
No. 5 — Expenditures by Activity — Current Funds
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Black Hawk College

lllinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 1 - All Funds Summary

Year ended June 30, 2023

126

Operation and Bond &
Education Maintenance Interest
Fund Fund Fund
Fund balance, beginning $ 9,151,137 $ 5571,302 $ 3,338,192
Revenues:
Local tax revenue 8,075,748 4,714,397 8,054,769
All Other Local Revenue 4,407,515 469,110 1,458,486
ICCB grants 4,573,859 466,272 -
All other state revenue - - -
Federal revenue 5,440 - -
Student tuition and fees 12,390,030 62,480 -
On-Behalf CIP - - -
On-Behalf SURS - - -
All other revenue 1,439,014 419,369 79,365
Total revenues 30,891,606 6,131,628 9,592,620
Expenditures:
Instruction 10,275,017 - -
Academic support 3,679,750 - -
Student services 2,770,786 - -
Public service/continuing education 406,786 - -
Auxiliary services - - -
Operations and maintenance - 4,143,563 -
Institutional support 6,543,137 - 8,857,708
Scholarships, student grants and waivers 3,077,286 - -
Total expenditures 26,752,762 4,143,563 8,857,708
Net transfers (3,900,000) (1,500,000) -
Fund balance, end of year $ 9,389,981 $ 6,059,367 $ 4,073,104




Liability,

Protection,
Operations and Auxiliary Restricted Working and
Maintenance - Enterprises Purpose Cash Audit Settlement
Restricted Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

$ 20,006,164 $ 1,182,717 $ 11,888,401 $ 14,206,050 $ 278,440 $ 6,579,640 $ 72,202,043

2,228,543 - - - 67,069 2,182,426 25,322,952
76,277,969 - 371,999 - - 309,847 83,294,926
- - 1,118,329 - - 6,158,460

83,986 - 1,770,567 - - 1,854,553

- - 6,200,269 - - 6,205,709

- 142,283 531,735 - - 13,126,528

- - (3,206,695) - - (3,206,695)

- - 7,599,663 - - 7,599,663
2,285,560 1,073,319 318,833 563,891 245,676 6,436,499
80,876,058 1,215,602 14,704,700 563,891 2,737,949 146,792,595
- - 2,378,036 - - 12,653,053

- - 2,881,144 - - 6,560,894

- - 1,390,468 - - 4,161,254

- - 787,855 - - 1,194,641

- 1,793,017 88,758 - - 1,881,775
22,982,569 - 464,675 - 1,024,218 28,615,025
2,413,888 - 985,705 - 2,242,638 21,119,251
- - 6,218,106 - - 9,295,392
25,396,457 1,793,017 15,194,747 - 3,266,856 85,481,285
2,100,000 1,400,000 1,900,000 - - -
$ 77,685,765 $ 2,005,302 13,298,354 $ 14,769,941 $ 6,050,733 $ 133,513,353
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 2 - Summary of Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt

Year ended June 30, 2023

Capital Asset/
Long-Term Debt

Capital Asset/

Long-Term Debt Deletions

6/30/2022 Additions and Transfers June 30, 2023
Capital Assets:
Land $ 11,943,396 - - $ 11,943,396
Building and improvements 120,941,428 - 6,407,603 127,349,031
Equipment 12,315,597 512,560 (342,792) 12,485,365
Subscription Assets - 946,645 - 946,645
Other 4,619,115 22,965,566 (6,407,603) 21,177,078
149,819,536 24,424,771 (342,792) 173,901,515
Accumulated depreciation & amortization (42,506,643) (3,415,478) 195,878 (45,726,243)
Total capital assets $ 107,312,893 $ 21,009,293 $ (146,914) $ 128,175,272
Long-Term Debt:
Bonds payable $ 27,185,000 67,735,000 $ (6,805,000) $ 88,115,000
Subscription payable $ - 946,645 $ (350,603) $ 596,042
Other Fixed Liabilities 16,305,315 283,733 (10,072,184) 6,516,864
Total long-term debt $ 43,490,315 $ 68,965378 $ (17,227,787) $ 95,227,906
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 3 - Operating Fund Revenues and Expenditures

Year ended June 30, 2023

Operations and Total
Education Maintenance Operating
Fund Fund Funds
Operating revenue by source:
Local government:
Local taxes 8,075,748 $ 4,714,397 12,790,145
Corporate personal property replacement tax 4,142,716 469,110 4,611,826
Chargeback revenue - - -
Subscription proceeds 264,799 - 264,799
12,483,263 5,183,507 17,666,770
State government:
ICCB base operating grant 2,447,930 466,272 2,914,202
ICCB equalization grant 1,824,840 - 1,824,840
ICCB - Career and Technical Education 294,314 - 294,314
Other ICCB Grants not listed above 6,775 - 6,775
Other state revenue - - -
4,573,859 466,272 5,040,131
Federal government:
Department of Education 5,440 - 5,440
Other - - -
5,440 - 5,440
Student tuition and fees:
Tuition 11,007,513 - 11,007,513
Fees 1,382,517 62,480 1,444,997
12,390,030 62,480 12,452,510
Other sources:
Sales and service fees 413,098 8,127 421,225
Facilities revenue 1,319 153,719 155,038
Investment revenue 871,188 250,828 1,122,016
Other 153,409 6,695 160,104
1,439,014 419,369 1,858,383
Total revenues 30,891,606 6,131,628 37,023,234
Less nonoperating item,
tuition chargeback revenue - - -
Adjusted revenues 30,891,606 $ 6,131,628 37,023,234
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 3 - Operating Fund Revenues and Expenditures (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2023

Operations and Total
Education Maintenance Operating
Fund Fund Funds
Operating expenditures by program:
Instruction 10,275,017 - $ 10,275,017
Academic support 3,679,750 - 3,679,750
Student services 2,770,786 - 2,770,786
Public service 406,786 - 406,786
Operations and maintenance - 4,143,563 4,143,563
Institutional support 6,543,137 - 6,543,137
Scholarships, student grants and waivers 3,077,286 - 3,077,286
Total expenditures 26,752,762 4,143,563 30,896,325
Less nonoperating item,
tuition chargeback - - -
Transfers, net 3,900,000 1,500,000 5,400,000
Adjusted expenditures 30,652,762 5,643,563 $ 36,296,325
By object:
Salaries 16,074,016 1,475,434 $ 17,549,450
Employee benefits 4,274,162 406,923 4,681,085
Contractual services 1,086,117 708,262 1,794,379
General materials and supplies 1,509,641 298,097 1,807,738
Conference and meeting expenses 187,673 1,427 189,100
Fixed charges 104,982 10,511 115,493
Utilities 1,890 1,215,366 1,217,256
Capital outlay 345,546 27,207 372,753
Other 3,168,735 336 3,169,071
Total expenditures 26,752,762 4,143,563 30,896,325
Less nonoperating item,
tuition chargeback - - -
Transfers, net 3,900,000 1,500,000 5,400,000
Adjusted expenditures 30,652,762 5,643,563 $ 36,296,325
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 4 - Restricted Purposes Fund Revenues and Expenditures

Year ended June 30, 2023

Revenues by source:
Local government

State government:
ICCB:
Adult Education and Family Literacy
Early School Leaver
lllinois Veterans Grant
Innovative Bridge & Transition Grant
llinois National Guard
PATH Grant
Mental Health Early Action
lllinois State Board of Education:
Truancy and Alternative Education
Growing Ag Science Teachers
lllinois Department of Health & Human Services
Department of Vocational Rehab
lllinois Department of Transportation
Highway Construction Careers Training Program
lllinois Student Assistance Center
Monetary Assistance Program
lllinois Secretary of State
Adult Volunteer Literacy
lllinois Department of Veterans' Affairs
MIA/POW
State Universities Retirement System of lllinois (1)
SURS On-Behalf
OPEB CIP On-Behalf
Total state government

Federal government:
Department of Education
Student Aid Programs:
Federal Work Study (FWS)
Pell Grant

Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant (SEOG)
Carl D. Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology Program

CTE Improvement (Leadership) Grant
Special Student Services

Adult Education and Family Literacy, Federal Basic Program

Adult Education English Language/Civics

GEER - Governor's Emergency Education Relief

CURES At-Risk Summer Bridge
Department of Labor

TEAM

CareerLINK
Department of Health and Human Services

Early Childhood Access Consortium for Equity (ECACE) Scholarship Program
Child Care and Development Block Grant for ECACE

Department of Transportation
Highway Construction Careers Training Program
Other Sources:
Veteran's Administration
Total federal government

Notes:

371,999

581,726
60,000
492
88,579
383,552
3,980

156,021
15,404

85,501
279,635
1,171,546
44,000
18,460

7,599,663
(3,206,695)

7,281,864

137,852
3,980,970
93,109
459,600

403,699
312,334
65,110
79,997
99,780

67,385
49,094

127,615
216,165

26,102

81,457

6,200,269

1. Revenues and expenditures in the Restricted Purposes Fund include State on-behalf contributions of

$4,392,968



Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 4 - Restricted Purposes Fund Revenues and Expenditures (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2023

Revenues by source (Continued):

Other sources:
Student Fees
Other
Total other

Total Restricted Purposes Fund Revenues

Expenditures by program (1):
Instruction
Academic support
Student services
Public service/continuing education
Auxiliary services
Operations and maintenance
Institutional support
Scholarships, student grants and waivers
Total expenditures by program

Expenditures by object:
Salaries
Employee benefits (1)
Contractual services
General materials and supplies
Conference and meeting expenses
Fixed charges

Utilities
Capital outlay
Other
Total expenditures by object
Notes:

531,735
318,833

850,568

14,704,700

2,378,036
2,881,144
1,390,468
787,855
88,758
464,675
985,705
6,218,106

15,194,747

1,645,898
4,913,179
953,512
532,862
128,964
152,833
106,393
440,582
6,320,524

15,194,747

1. Revenues and expenditures in the Restricted Purposes Fund include State on-behalf contributions of

$4,392,968
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 5 - Expenditures by Activity - Current Funds

Year ended June 30, 2023

Instruction (1) $ 12,653,053
Academic support:
Library center 531,891
Instructional materials center 141,563
Educational media services 18,545
Academic computing support 2,251,255
Academic administration and planning 2,647,200
Other (1) 970,440
Total academic support 6,560,894
Student services:
Admissions and records 818,889
Counseling and career guidance 1,470,633
Financial aid administration 372,187
Other (1) 1,499,545
Total student services 4,161,254
Public service/continuing education:
Community education 160,556
Customized training (instructional) 247,775
Community services 129,547
Other (1) 656,763
Total public service/continuing education 1,194,641
Auxiliary services (1) 1,881,775
Operations and maintenance of plant:
Maintenance 822,604
Custodial services 1,117,047
Grounds 294,399
Campus security 1,065,382
Utilities 1,599,526
Administration 285,222
Other (1) 448,276
Total operations and maintenance 5,632,456
Institutional support:
Executive office 1,039,738
Fiscal operations 949,479
Community relations 1,330,022
Administrative support services 936,064
Board of Trustees 23,934
General institution 3,161,924
Administrative data processing 688,494
Other (1) 1,718,000
Total institutional support 9,847,655
Scholarships, student grants and waivers (1) 9,295,392
Total current funds expenditures $ 51,227,120

Notes:

1. Revenues and expenditures in the Restricted Purposes Fund include State on-behalf contributions of

$4,392,968



Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Reconciliation of the Combining Balance Sheet to the Uniform Financial Statements
Year ended June 30, 2023

Fund Balances - Uniform Financial Statements $ 133,513,353
Capital assets in the Investment in Plant Fund 128,175,272
Long-term bond debt in the General Long Term Debt Fund (32,882,166)
Unspent bond proceeds in the General Long Term Debt Fund (55,828,876)
Long-term OPERB liability in the General Long Term Debt Fund (18,375,374)
Agency Fund Balances 408,595
Fund Balances - All Fund Types $ 155,010,804

Reconciliation of the Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances to the Uniform Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2023
Change in Fund Balances - Uniform Financial Statements $ 61,311,310
Additions to buildings and equipment 24,424,771
Depreciation and loss of disposal of assets (3,562,392)

Net Effect 20,862,379

Payment on long-term debt 7,155,603

Issuance of long-term debt

(68,681,645)

Net Effect

(61,526,042)

OPEB expense 3,256,242
Additions to custodial funds 1,130,137
Payments from custodial funds (1,185,466)
Net Effect (55,329)
Change in Fund Balances - All Fund Types $ 23,848,560
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ICCB State Grants
Financial Compliance Section

137



This page is intentionally left blank

138



Independent Auditor's Report on State Adult Education
and Family Literacy Grants Financial Statements

To the Board of Trustees

Black Hawk College

lllinois Community College District #503
Moline, lllinois

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the State Adult Education and Family Literacy Grants of
Black Hawk College — Community College District 503 (the “College”), as of and for the year ended June 30,
2023, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the State Adult Education and Family Literacy Grants of Black Hawk College ~ Community College District 503 as
of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the grant policy guidelines of the lllinois Community College Board's (ICCB) Fiscal Management Manual. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the State Adult Education and
Family Literacy Grants of Black Hawk College — Community College District 503, and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the State Adult Education and Family Literacy
Grants and do not purport to, and do not present fairly the financial position of Black Hawk College ~ Community
College District 503 as of June 30, 2023, the changes in its financial position, or where applicable, its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,

and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the College’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planed scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Grant Programs’ financial statements. The ICCB Compliance Statement is presented for purposes
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

a/c,‘%a‘ LLP

Sterling, lllinois
December 21, 2023



Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with State Requirements
For State Adult Education and Family Literacy Grants

To the Board of Trustees

Black Hawk College

lllinois Community College District #503
Moline, Illinois

Compliance

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
financial statements of the State Adult Education and Family Literacy Grants Program of Black Hawk College
District No. 503 (the “College”), which comprise of the statement of net position as of June 30, 2023, and the related
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in net position for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements, and we have issued our report there on dated December 21, 2023.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the College failed to
materially comply with the terms or conditions of the grant policy guidelines of the lllinois Community College
Board’s Fiscal Management Manual, insofar as they relate to State Adult Education and Family Literacy Grants.

Our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of all such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we
performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the College's
noncompliance with the above referenced terms or conditions of the grant policy guidelines of the llinois Community
College Board's Fiscal Management Manual, insofar as they relate to State Adult Education and Family Literacy
Grants.

The report is intended solely for the information and use of the boards of trustees and management of Black Hawk

College District No. 503, and the lllinois Community College Board and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than those specified parties.

[/Ug'%u‘ LLP

Sterling, lllinois
December 21, 2023

141



Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Adult Education and Family Literacy Grant Program
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2023

State Basic Performance Total
Assets
Cash $ 6,066 $ 11,104 $ 17,170
Receivable from ICCB - - -
Due from other funds - - -
Prepaid Expenses - - -
Total assets $ 6,066 $ 11,104 $ 17,170
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 300 $ 1,383 $ 1,683
Accrued salaries 5,695 9,434 15,129
Due to other funds 71 287 358
Total liabilities 6,066 11,104 17,170
Fund balance
Reserved for encumbrances - - -
Total fund balance $ - $ - $ -
See Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs.
Adult Education and Family Literacy Grant Program
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Year Ended June 30, 2023
State Basic Performance Total
Revenues, state sources $ 320,566 $ 261,160 $581,726
Expenditures:
Current year's grant:
Personnel Services (Salaries and Wages) 225,997 155,836 381,833
Fringe Benefits 45,853 74,994 120,847
Travel 3,945 1,023 4,968
Equiment - - -
Supplies 9,067 21,042 30,109
Contractual Services 35,704 4,796 40,500
Consultant - - -
Occupancy (Rent and Utilities - - -
Telecommunications - - -
Training and Education - 3,469 3,469
Miscellaneous - - -
General Administration/Indirect - - -
Total expenditures 320,566 261,160 581,726
Revenues over (under)
expenditures $ - $ - $ -
Fund balance:
Beginning, July 1, 2022 -
Ending, June 30, 2023 $ -

See Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs.



Black Hawk College

lllinois Community College District #503

ICCB Compliance Statement for the State Adult Education and Family Literacy Restricted Funds

Expenditure Amounts and Percentages for ICCB Grant Funds Only

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Audited Expenditure

Actual Expenditure

State Basic Amount Percentage
Instruction $ 249,452 77.82%
(45% Minimum Required)

General Administration 4,332 1.35%

(20% Maximum Allowed)
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
General:

The accompanying statements include only those transactions resulting from the Adult Education and
Family Literacy. The transactions for the grants have been accounted for in the Restricted Purposes
Fund.

Basis of Accounting:

The statements have been prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting as defined in the lllinois
Community College Board’s Fiscal Management Manual. Expenditures include all accounts payable
representing liabilities for goods and services actually received as of June 30, 2023. Funds obligated for
goods and services prior to June 30, but for which the goods and services are received prior to August
31, are recorded as encumbrances. Unexpended funds are reflected as a reduction to fund balance and
a liability due to the lllinois Community College Board by October 15, 2023.

Capital Assets:

Capital asset purchases are recorded as capital outlay expenditures and are capitalized in accordance
with the College’s capitalization policy and as allowed by grant specific guidelines.

Encumbrances:

Payments of prior year's encumbrances for goods and services received prior to August 31, 2023, are
reflected as expenditures during the current fiscal year.



Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Background Information on State Grant Activity

Unrestricted Grants

Base Operating Grants: General operating funds provided to colleges upon credit enrollment with a small
portion of the allocation based upon gross square footage of space at the College.

Equalization Grants: Grants provided to institutions with less than the statewide average local tax dollars
available per full-time equivalent student.

Restricted Grants/Special Initiatives

Early School Leaver: Provides funding for high school dropouts between the ages of 16 and 21 who
want to complete the secondary level of education and participate in work-site learning experiences
related to career choices. Only those youth who demonstrate a willingness to meet both goals and who
are able to benefit from such a program are selected.

Statewide Initiatives

Special Incentive Grants: A new request to provide flexible funding for unique initiatives needed in the
community college system. The grants will be awarded on a Request for Proposal basis and will focus
on higher education priorities such as accessibility, affordability, productivity, partnerships, quality, and
responsiveness. In addition, a significant proportion of the dollars available will focus on improving the
availability of qualified information technology employees in the State of lllinois.

Other Grants: These other grants are additional contractual grants provided for special or specific
system-related initiatives. These grants are supported by signed contracts between the College and the
State of lllinois. A brief description of each grant should be included in this section. A description of the
grants supported by grant agreements may be found in the appendix of the grant agreement governing
these grants.

Restricted Adult Education Grants/State

State Basic: Grant awarded to Adult Education and Family Literacy providers to establish special classes
for the instruction of persons of age 21 and over or persons under the age of 21 and not otherwise in
attendance in public school, for the purpose of providing adults in the community other instruction as
may be necessary to increase their qualifications for employment or other means of self-support and
their ability to meet their responsibilities as citizens, including courses of instruction regularly accepted
for graduation from elementary or high schools and for Americanization and General Education
Development Review classes. Included in this grant are funds for support services, such as student
transportation and childcare facilities or provision.

Performance: Grant awarded to Adult Education and Family Literacy providers based on performance
outcomes.
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Independent Accountant’s Report on Credit Hour Data
and Other Bases Upon Which Claims are Filed

To the Board of Trustees

Black Hawk College

lllinois Community College District #503
Moline, lllinois

We have examined management of Black Hawk College, lllinois Community College District #503 (the
College) assertion that the College complied with the guidelines of the lllinois Community College Board's
Fiscal Management Manual included in the accompanying Schedule of Credit Hour Data and Other Bases Upon
Which Claims Are Filed of Black Hawk College, lllinois Community College District #503 during the period
July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. The College’s management is responsible for its assertion. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assertion about the College’s compliance with the
specified requirement based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the examination to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether management’s assertion about compliance with the specified requirements
is fairly stated, in all material respects. An examination involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about
whether management's assertion is fairly stated, in all material respects. The nature, timing, and extent of the
procedures selected depend on our judgment, including an assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
management's assertion, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We are required to be independent and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with relevant
ethical requirements relating to the examination engagement.

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the College’s compliance with the specified
requirements.

In our opinion, management's assertion that the College complied with the guidelines of the lllinois Community
College Board's Fiscal Management Manual included in the accompanying Schedule of Credit Hour Data and
Other Bases Upon Which Claims Are Filed of Black Hawk College, lllinois Community College District #503 is
fairly stated, in all material respects.

Wc,%u LLP

Sterling, lllinois
December 21, 2023
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BLACK HAWK COLLEGE

ILLINOIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #503
SCHEDULE OF CREDIT HOUR DATA AND OTHER BASES

UPON WHICH CLAIMS ARE FILED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Total Reimbursable Semester Credit Hours by Term

Summer Term Fall Term

Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted
Credit Hour Categories Hours Hours Hours Hours
Baccalaureate 2,659.00 - 18,112.30 84.30
Business Occupational 45.00 - 1,265.10 -
Technical Occupational 280.90 - 3,352.80 124.80
Health Occupational 486.60 - 3,275.90 -
Remedial/Developmental 50.50 - 1,061.50 -
Adult Education 181.50 231.10 - 6,039.20

Total 3,703.50 231.10 27,067.60 6,248.30
Spring Term Total All Terms

Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted
Credit Hour Cateqgories Hours Hours Hours Hours
Baccalaureate 16,384.50 48.30 37,155.80 132.60
Business Occupational 1,389.30 - 2,699.40 -
Technical Occupational 3,505.20 123.70 7,138.90 248.50
Health Occupational 2,704.00 - 6,466.50 -
Remedial/Developmental 672.00 - 1,784.00 -
Adult Education - 6,480.10 181.50 12,750.40

Total 24,655.00 6,652.10 55,426.10 13,131.50
In-District (All terms)
Unrestricted Restricted
Hours Hours

Reimbursable Credit Hours: 52,305.90 13,082.40
Credit Hours on Chargeback or Contractual Agreement: 0

Dual Credit (All Terms)

Dual Enroliment (All Terms)

Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted
Hours Hours Hours Hours
Reimbursable Credit Hours: 9,814.50 - 46.00 -
District Equalized Assessed Valuation: $4,718,181,083
Correctional Semester Credit Hours
Summer Fall Spring Total
Correctional Correctional Correctional Correctional
Credit Hour Cateqgories Hours Hours Hours Hours

Baccalaureate
Business Occupational
Technical Occupational
Health Occupational

= Si re:

Remedial/Developmental
Adult Education
Total
Signature: /\/c’/%% |
/ ﬂhief Executive Officer

%Ww

Chief Financial Officer



Credit Hour Categories
Baccalaureate

Business Occupational
Technical Occupational
Health Occupational
Remedial/Developmental
Adult Education

Credit Hour Categories
Baccalaureate

Business Occupational
Technical Occupational
Health Occupational
Remedial/Developmental
Adult Education

In-District Credit Hours:
Dual Credit Hours:
Dual Enrollment Hours:

In-District Credit Hours:
Dual Credit Hours:
Dual Enrollment Hours:

Credit Hour Categories
Baccalaureate

Business Occupational
Technical Occupational
Health Occupational
Remedial/Developmental
Adult Education

Credit Hour Categories
Baccalaureate

Business Occupational
Technical Occupational
Health Occupational
Remedial/Developmental
Adult Education

Total:

Total:

Total:

Total:

BLACK HAWK COLLEGE

ILLINOIS COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT #503
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL SEMESTER CREDIT HOURS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Total Reimbursable Semester Credit Hours

Total Total
Reported in Audit Certified to ICCB
Unrestricted Hours Unrestricted Hours Difference
37,155.80 37,155.80 -
2,699.40 2,699.40 -
7,138.90 7,138.90 -
6,466.50 6,466.50 -
1,784.00 1,784.00 -
181.50 181.50 -
55,426.10 55,426.10 -
Total Total
Reported in Audit Certified to ICCB
Restricted Hours Restricted Hours Difference
132.60 132.60 -
248.50 248.50 -
12,750.40 12,750.40 -
13,131.50 13,131.50 -
Total Total
Reported in Audit Certified to ICCB
Unrestricted Hours Unrestricted Hours Difference
52,305.90 52,305.90 -
9,814.50 9,814.50 -
46.00 46.00 -
Total Total
Reported in Audit Certified to ICCB
Restricted Hours Restricted Hours Difference

13,082.40

13,082.40

Total Correctional Semester Credit Hours

Total Total
Reported in Audit Certified to ICCB
Unrestricted Hours Unrestricted Hours Difference
Total Total
Reported in Audit Certified to ICCB
Restricted Hours Restricted Hours Difference
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Student Residency Verification
Year Ended June 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF STUDENT RESIDENCY VERIFICATION PROCESS

Residence is defined in the College catalog as the place where the student lives and which is the student’s
true home. Residency is determined at the time of application for admission. Students who change their
residency after applying must verify their residency. Proof of residency is verified by any of the following:

1. An lllinois driver’s license and/or vehicle registration

2. A voter registration card

3. Payment of property taxes in the Black Hawk College District #503

4. Full-time employment in Black Hawk College District #503

5. Other documents that are not self-serving
The residency of the student determines tuition rates assessed. Tuition rates assessed for students considered
in-district are lower than tuition rates for those students who are considered out-of-district.
Copies of the proof and certification of residency forms are kept on file and residency compliance is periodically

reviewed by the Office of Institutional Planning and Effectiveness. It is the student’s responsibility to provide
proof of residency and maintain compliance with the residency requirements of the College.



Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Summary of Assessed Valuations
Most Recent Three Years

Tax Levy Year

Equalized
Assessed
Valuation

2023
2022
2021

4,718,181,083
4,405,387,029
4,262,432,791
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Federal Financial Compliance Section
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and On Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed

In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees

Black Hawk College

lllinois Community College District #503
Moline, lllinois

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component units, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Black
Hawk College District No. 503 (the “College”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the College’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated December 21, 2023.

The financial statements of Black Hawk College Foundation and Black Hawk East College Foundation were
not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, and accordingly, this report does not include
reporting on internal control over financial reporting or instances of reportable noncompliance associated
with Black Hawk College Foundation and Black Hawk East College Foundation.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College’s internal control
over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness the College’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the College’s
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit the attention of those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses and significant
deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

L(/c,afa LLP

Sterling, lllinois
December 21, 2023



Independent Auditor’'s Report on Compliance for Each
Major Program and On Internal Control Over Compliance
Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Trustees

Black Hawk College

lllinois Community College District #503
Moline, lllinois

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Black Hawk College District No. 503's (the “College”) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on the College’s major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2023. The
College’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Black Hawk College District No. 503 complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal
program for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the comptroller General of the United States, and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the College and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the College’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the College’s
federal programs.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on College’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
the College’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ ldentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the College’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the College’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weakness in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weakness, as defined above. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not
identified.



Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

L(/qa;u LLP

Sterling, lllinois
December 21, 2023
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District # 503

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Federal
Assistance Passed
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Listing Grant Identifying Federal Through to
Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Labor
WIOA Cluster
Passed-through lllinois Department of Employment Security:
Training Employee Academic Mastery 17.258 PY2022-BHC TEAM 67,385 -
Career Link 17.258 0OSY-2022-01 49,094 -
Total U.S. Department of Labor 116,479 -
U.S. Department of Education
Passed-through lllinois Community College Board:
Adult Education - Basic Grants to States
Federal Adult Education - Basic 84.002A 5030122 312,334 -
Federal Adult Education - IEL/CE 84.002A 5030122 65,110 -
Subtotal passed-through lllinois Community College Board 377,444 -
Direct award:
Student Financial Aid Cluster
Federal Pell Grant Program Admin Cost Allowance 84.063 P063Q211337 285 -
Federal Pell Grant Program Admin Cost Allowance 84.063 P063Q221337 5,155 -
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 P063P211337 4,383 -
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 P063P221337 3,976,587 -
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant 84.007 P007A221107 93,109
Federal Family Education Loans 84.268 P268K221337 9,927 -
Federal Family Education Loans 84.268 P268K231337 1,413,947 -
Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 P033A221107 137,852 -
Subtotal Student Financial Aid Cluster 5,641,245 -
Direct award:
TRIO - Student Support Services 84.042A P042A200804 403,699 -
Passed-through lllinois Community College Board:
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States:
Vocational Education (Perkins) 84.048 CTE50323 466,725 -
Subtotal passed-through lllinois Community College Board 466,725 -
COVID-19 - Education Stabilization Fund
Passed-through lllinois Community College Board:
GEER Il - Governor's Emergency Education Relief 84.425C GEERII-50322 79,997 -
Subtotal passed-through lllinois Community College Board 79,997 -
Total U.S. Department of Education: 6,969,110 -

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Child Care and Development Fund (CCDF) Cluster

Passed through lllinois Student Assistance Commission:

COVID19 Early Childhood Access Consortium for Equity

(ECACE) Scholarship Program

Passed through lllinois Community College Board:
COVID-19 Child Care and Development Block Grant

Early Childhood Grant
Subtotal ALN 93.575 Cluster

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through lllinois Department of Transportation:
Highway Construction Careers Training Program

Total U.S. Department of Transportation
U.S. Department of Treasury
Passed through lllinois Community College Board:
COVID-19 State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund
CURES At-Risk Summer Bridge Program
Total U.S. Department of Treasury
U.S. Department of Veteran’s Affairs
Direct award:
Veteran’s Educational Assistance
VA Rehab
Total U.S. Department of Veteran’s Affairs

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards:

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

93.575 CRRSA ARPA CCDBG 127,615

93.575

20.205

21.027

64.120
64.116

ECE-50301-22 216,165

343,780

343,780

HCCTP IGA FY23 26,102

26,102

CB-50301-22 99,780

99,780

82,236
(1,047)

81,189

$ 7,636,440

$ -

140053
140063

124803
124823

01

01

122013
122013
123033
123060
123060
123013

127013

125223

128293

136043

136053

159073

129043

172010
610063



Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal grant
activity of Black Hawk College under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2023.
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of Black Hawk College, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in
net position or cash flows of Black Hawk College.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures
are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the schedule
represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures
in prior years. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

Note 3. Indirect Cost Rate

The College elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate during the year ended June 30, 2023.

Note 4. Loan Program

For the year ended, June 30, 2023, the College acted as a pass-through agency for Federal Direct Loans
(subsidized and unsubsidized) to students in the amount of $1,423,874.

Note 5. Non-cash Assistance

The College did not expend any federal awards in the form of non-cash assistance during the year ended June
30, 2023.
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Summary of Independent Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements:

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

*

Material weakness identified? Yes
Significant deficiency identified that is not
considered to be a material weakness Yes

*

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted? Yes

Federal Awards:
Internal control over major programs:
e Material weakness identified? Yes

o Significant deficiency identified that is
not considered to be a material weakness Yes

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:

e Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance? Yes

Identification of Major Programs:

Assistance
Listing
Number Name of Federal Program

No

X No

X No

Unmodified

84.007 Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant

84.268 Federal Direct Student Loans
84.033 Federal Work-Study Program
84.063 Federal PELL Grant Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee? X Yes

No

$750,000



Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2023

No financial or federal award findings.
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
June 30, 2022

None
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2023

Operations &

Education Maintenance Auxiliary Restricted Custodial
Assets Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,825280 $ 7,403,397 §$ 84,847 $ 10,049,235 $ 334,766
Investments - - - - -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Property Taxes 4,657,910 2,717,817 - - -
Federal government claims - - - 942,779 -
State government claims 694,562 72,724 - 269,220 -
Student tuition and fees 3,755,779 - - - -
Other 2,818 115,374 83,299 - 95,922
Due from other funds - - 1,418,559 2,490,370 -
Inventory - - 591,304 - -
Prepaid expenses 207,174 58,578 7,265 191,927 756
Capital assets:
Land - - - - -
Construction and Equipment in process - - - - -
Building, improvements and equipment
net of $45,726,243 depreciation - - - - -
Total assets $ 23,143523 $ 10,367,890 $ 2,185,274 $ 13,943,531 § 431,444
Deferred outflows of resources
OPEB - - - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources - - - - -
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance
Accounts payable 246,595 161,929 - 270,268 3,089
Accrued expenses
Payroll 893,057 73,179 12,228 53,135 678
Early retirement 154,873 - - - -
Accrued vacation 715,243 77,425 20,740 29,355 -
Other - - 34 - -
Due to other funds 4,484,260 1,508,171 - - 17,575
Unearned revenues
Student tuition and fees 3,126,319 100 45,628 167,304 -
Grants and restricted funds - - - 110,812 1,507
Other liabilities 85,127 19,795 100,542 - -
Bonds payable - - - - -
Subscriptions payable
OPEB Liability - - - - -
Total liabilities 9,705,474 1,840,599 179,172 630,874 22,849
Deferred inflows of resources
Property taxes 4,048,068 2,362,275 - - -
Other - 10,941 800 14,303 -
OPEB - - - - -
Unearned Revenues - - - - -
Lease Revenue - 94,708 - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources 4,048,068 2,467,924 800 14,303 -
Fund balance
Net investment in capital assets - - - - -
Restricted - - - 1,959,591 408,595
Unrestricted 9,389,981 6,059,367 2,005,302 11,338,763 -
Total fund balance 9,389,981 6,059,367 2,005,302 13,298,354 408,595
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balance $ 23143523 $ 10,367,890 $ 2,185274 $ 13943531 $ 431,444

See Note to Management Information.
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Liability,
Protection, and Working Bond & Operations & Investment General
Audit Settlement Cash Interest Maintenance in Plant Long Term
Fund Fund Fund Fund Restricted Fund Debt Fund Total

$ 285806 $ 6,134,316 $ 14,769,941 §$ 4,555,949 $ 80,086,390 $ - 8 - $ 137,529,927

- 661,998 - 5,429,830 1,301,830 - - 14,769,385
- - - - - - - 942,779
- - - - - - - 1,036,506
- - - - - - - 3,755,779

- - - - 297,413
- 1,077 - - 2,100,000 - - 6,010,006

- - - - 591,304
- 39,827 - - 22,336 - - 527,863

- - - - - 1,032,464 - 1,032,464
- - - - - 21,177,078 - 21,177,078

- 105,965,730 - 105,965,730

$ 285806 $ 6,837,218 § 14,769,941 $ 9,985,779 $§ 83,510,556 $ 128175272 § - $ 293,636,234

- - - - - - 376,400 376,400

- - - - - - 376,400 376,400

5,000 33,075 - - 4,792,800 - - 5,512,756

- 78,031 - - - - - 1,110,308

- - - - - - 154,873
- 99,844 - - - - - 942,607
- - - 1,191,085 - - - 1,191,119
- - - - - - - 6,010,006

) . . ] ] - - 3,339,351
i . . . . - - 112,319

- 205,464
] . - ; - - 88,115,000 88,115,000
596,042 596,042
- 6,516,864 6,516,864

5,000 210,950 - 1,191,085 4,792,800 - 95,227,906 113,806,709

- 575,535 - 4,721,590 1,131,991 - - 12,839,459
- - - - - - - 26,044
- - - - - - 12,234,910 12,234,910

94,708

- 575,535 - 4,721,590 1,131,991 - 12,234,910 25,195,121

- - - - - 128,175,272 (32,882,166) 95,293,106
280,806 6,050,733 10,194,190 4,073,104 59,488,715 - (55,828,876) 26,626,858
- 4,575,751 18,097,050 - (18,375,374) 33,090,840

280,806 6,050,733 14,769,941 4,073,104 77,585,765 128,175,272 (107,086,416) 155,010,804

$ 285806 $ 6,837,218 $ 14,769,941 § 9,985,779 $ 83,510,556 § 128,175,272 $ 376,400 $ 294,012,634
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Year ended June 30, 2023

Operations &

Education Maintenance Auxiliary Restricted
Fund Fund Fund Funds
Revenues:
Local governmental sources
Property taxes $ 8,075,748 $ 4,714,397 - $ -
Personal Property Replacement Tax 4,142,716 469,110 - -
Other - - - -
Total local government sources 12,218,464 5,183,507 - -
State governmental sources 4,573,859 466,272 - 2,888,896
Federal governmental sources 5,440 - - 6,200,269
Student tuition and fees 12,390,030 62,480 142,283 531,735
Sales, services and rental of facilities and equipment 414,417 161,846 1,046,949 3,018
Investment earnings 871,188 250,828 8,168 -
Other sources 153,409 6,695 18,202 315,815
Additions to buildings and equipment, current funds - - - -
Payment of long-term debt & subscriptions - - - -
SURS contribution provided by state - - - 7,599,663
OPEB CIP contribution provided by state - - - (3,206,695)
Total revenues 30,626,807 6,131,628 1,215,602 14,332,701
Expenditures:
Instruction 10,275,017 - - 622,005
Academic support 3,679,750 - - 2,271,580
Student services 2,770,786 - - 882,077
Public services 406,786 - - 656,384
Institutional support 6,543,137 - - 180,526
Auxiliary services - - 1,793,017 -
Scholarships, student grants, and waivers 3,077,286 - - 6,189,207
SURS contribution provided by state - - - 7,599,663
OPEB CIP contribution provided by state - - - (3,206,695)
OPEB Expense (Income) - - - -
Depreciation - - - -
Loss on disposal of assets - - - -
Operation of physical facilities - 4,143,563 - -
Total expenditures 26,752,762 4,143,563 1,793,017 15,194,747
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 3,874,045 1,988,065 (577,415) (862,046)
Other financing sources (uses):
Bond proceeds - - - -
Bond premium (discount) - - - -
Subscription proceeds 264,799 - - 371,999
Operating transfers in - - - -
Operating transfers out - - - -
Residual equity transfer in - - - -
Residual equity transfer out - - - -
Transfer from other fund - - 1,400,000 1,900,000
Transfer to other fund (3,900,000) (1,500,000) - -
Total other financing sources (uses) (3,635,201) (1,500,000) 1,400,000 2,271,999
Net change in fund balance 238,844 488,065 822,585 1,409,953
Fund balance
Beginning 9,151,137 5,571,302 1,182,717 11,888,401
Ending $ 9,389,981 §$ 6,059,367 $ 2,005302 $ 13,298,354

See Note to Management Information.



Liability,

Protection, and Working Bond & Operations & Investment General
Custodial Audit Settlement Cash Interest Maintenance in Plant Long Term

Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund Restricted Fund Debt Fund Total
$ - $ 67069 $ 2,182,426 $ - $ 8,054,769 $ 2,228,543 $ -3 - $ 25,322,952
- - - - - - - - 4,611,826
- 67,069 2,182,426 - 8,054,769 2,228,543 - - 29,934,778
- - - - - 83,986 - - 8,013,013
- - - - - - - - 6,205,709
- - - - - - - - 13,126,528
177,706 - - - - - - - 1,803,936
2,343 11,472 245,676 563,891 79,365 2,285,560 - - 4,318,491
950,088 - - - - - - - 1,444,209
- - - - - - 24,424,771 - 24,424,771
- - - - - - - 7,155,603 7,155,603
- - - - - - - - 7,599,663
- - - - - - - - (3,206,695)
1,130,137 78,541 2,428,102 563,891 8,134,134 4,598,089 24,424,771 7,155,603 100,820,006
24,567 - - - - - - - 10,921,589
- - - - - - - - 5,951,330
2,032 - - - - - - - 3,654,895
3,030 - - - - - - - 1,066,200
286,406 76,175 2,242,638 - 8,857,708 2,413,888 - - 20,600,478
189,497 - - - - - - - 1,982,514
679,934 - - - - - - - 9,946,427
- - - - - - - - 7,599,663
- - - - - - - - (3,206,695)
- - - - - - - (3,256,242) (3,256,242)
- - - - - - 3,415,478 - 3,415,478
- - - - - - 146,914 - 146,914
- - 1,024,218 - - 22,982,569 - - 28,150,350
1,185,466 76,175 3,266,856 - 8,857,708 25,396,457 3,562,392 (3,256,242) 86,972,901
(55,329) 2,366 (838,754) 563,891 (723,574) (20,798,368) 20,862,379 10,411,845 13,847,105
- - - - - 67,735,000 - (67,735,000) -
- - - - 1,458,486 8,542,969 - - 10,001,455
- - 309,847 - - - - (946,645) -
- - - - - 2,100,000 - - 5,400,000
- - - - - - - - (5,400,000)
- - 309,847 - 1,458,486 78,377,969 - (68,681,645) 10,001,455
(55,329) 2,366 (528,907) 563,891 734,912 57,579,601 20,862,379 (58,269,800) 23,848,560
463,924 278,440 6,579,640 14,206,050 3,338,192 20,006,164 107,312,893 (48,816,616) 131,162,244
$ 408,595 $ 280,806 $ 6,050,733 $ 14,769,941 $ 4,073,104 § 77,585,765 $128,175,272 $(107,086,416) $ 155,010,804
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Reconciliation of the Combining Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position

Fund Balances - All Fund Types

Pension expense related to Federal, Trust, Grant and Other Contribution
Long-term portion of early retirement liability

Unamortized bond premium

Net Position of Statement of Net Position

Reconciliation of the Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances to the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

$ 155,010,804
105,350
(956,069)

(9,766,872)

$ 144,393,213

Net Change in Fund Balances
Reduction in student tuition and fees
Reduction in financial aid
Net Effect
Additions to buildings and equipment, current funds
Expended for capital assets
Net Effect
Long-term debt retired
Additions to general long-term debt fund
Net Effect
Premium on bonds sold
Amortization of bond premium

Decrease in long-term early retirement liability

Increase in pension expense related to Federal, Trust, Grant
and Other Contribution

Change in Net Position

This schedule is supplemental information and is maintained for management purposes only.

See Note to Management Information.

$ 23,848,560

(6,323,471)
6,323,471

24,424,771
(24,424,771)

6,805,000
(6,805,000)

(10,001,455)
662,790
99,623

14,518

$ 14,624,036
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Statement of Budgetary Comparison - Education Fund and Operations & Maintenance Fund by Program
Year ended June 30, 2023

Operations & Operations &

Education Education Actual Maintenance Maintenance Actual
Fund Fund Over (Under) Fund Fund Over (Under)
Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Local governmental sources

Property taxes $8,031,000 $ 8,075,748 $ 44,748 $ 4,660,500 $ 4,714,397 $ 53,897
Personal property taxes 1,530,000 4,142,716 2,612,716 170,000 469,110 299,110
Other - - - - - -
Total local government sources 9,561,000 12,218,464 2,657,464 4,830,500 5,183,507 353,007

State governmental sources 4,369,000 4,573,859 204,859 463,000 466,272 3,272
Federal governmental sources 6,500 5,440 (1,060) - - -
Student tuition and fees 12,569,209 12,390,030 (179,179) 58,000 62,480 4,480
Sales, services and rental of facilities 238,349 414,417 176,068 183,012 161,846 (21,166)
Investment earnings 77,000 871,188 794,188 33,000 250,828 217,828
Other sources 55,730 153,409 97,679 2,000 6,695 4,695
Contingency - - - 10,000 - (10,000)
Total revenues 26,876,788 30,626,807 3,750,019 5,579,512 6,131,628 552,116

Expenditures:
Current
Instruction 10,955,623 10,275,017 (680,606) - - -
Academic support 3,877,256 3,679,750 (197,506) - - -
Student services 3,098,015 2,770,786 (327,229) - - -
Public services 500,587 406,786 (93,801) - - -
Institutional support 8,714,335 6,543,137 (2,171,198) - - -
Auxiliary services - - - - - -
Scholarships, student grants, and waivers 2,500,000 3,077,286 577,286 - - -
Operation of physical facilities - - - 4,780,032 4,143,563 (636,469)
Contingency - - - 400,000 - (400,000)
Total expenditures 29,645,816 26,752,762 (2,893,054) 5,180,032 4,143,563 (1,036,469)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (2,769,028) 3,874,045 6,643,073 399,480 1,988,065 1,588,585

Other financing sources (uses):

Bond proceeds - - - - - -
Bond premium (discount) - - - - - -
Subscription proceeds - 264,799 264,799

Operating transfers in - - - - - -
Operating transfers out - - - - - -
Residual equity transfer in - - - - - -
Residual equity transfer out - - - - - -
Transfer from other fund - - - - - -

Transfer to other fund - (3,900,000) (3,900,000) - (1,500,000) (1,500,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) - (3,635,201) (3,635,201) - (1,500,000) (1,500,000)
Net change in fund balance $(2,769,028) 238,844 $ 3,007,872 $ 399,480 488,065 $ 88,585
Fund balance
Beginning $ 9,151,137 $ 5,571,302
Ending $ 9,389,981 $ 6,059,367

See Note to Management Information.
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Statement of Budgetary Comparison - Education Fund and Operations & Maintenance Fund by Object

Year ended June 30, 2023

Operations & Operations &

Education Education Actual Maintenance Maintenance Actual
Fund Fund Over (Under) Fund Fund Over (Under)
Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Local governmental sources
Property taxes $8,031,000 $ 8,075,748 $ 44,748 $ 4,660,500 $ 4,714,397 $ 53,897
Personal property taxes 1,530,000 4,142,716 2,612,716 170,000 469,110 299,110
Other - - - - - -
Total local government sources 9,561,000 12,218,464 2,657,464 4,830,500 5,183,507 353,007
State governmental sources 4,369,000 4,573,859 204,859 463,000 466,272 3,272
Federal governmental sources 6,500 5,440 (1,060) - - -
Student tuition and fees 12,569,209 12,390,030 (179,179) 58,000 62,480 4,480
Sales, services and rental of facilities 238,349 414,417 176,068 183,012 161,846 (21,166)
Investment earnings 77,000 871,188 794,188 33,000 250,828 217,828
Other sources 55,730 153,409 97,679 2,000 6,695 4,695
Contingency - - - 10,000 - (10,000)
Total revenues 26,876,788 30,626,807 3,750,019 5,579,512 6,131,628 552,116
Expenditures:
Current
Salaries 17,598,263 16,074,016 (1,524,247) 1,799,042 1,475,434 (323,608)
Benefits 5,810,499 4,274,162 (1,536,337) 395,676 406,923 11,247
Contractual Services 1,466,486 1,086,117 (380,369) 645,719 708,262 62,543
Supplies & Materials 1,756,279 1,509,641 (246,638) 446,385 298,097 (148,288)
Conference & Meetings 373,639 187,673 (185,966) 15,870 1,427 (14,443)
Fixed Charges 29,950 104,982 75,032 6,000 10,511 4,511
Utilities 3,000 1,890 (1,110) 1,469,840 1,215,366 (254,474)
Capital Outlay - 345,546 345,546 - 27,207 27,207
Other 2,607,700 3,168,735 561,035 1,500 336 (1,164)
Contingency - - - 400,000 - (400,000)
Total expenditures 29,645,816 26,752,762 (2,893,054) 5,180,032 4,143,563 (1,036,469)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (2,769,028) 3,874,045 6,643,073 399,480 1,988,065 1,588,585
Other financing sources (uses):
Bond proceeds - - - - - -
Bond premium (discount) - - - - - -
Subscription proceeds - 264,799 264,799
Operating transfers in - - - - - -
Operating transfers out - - - - - -
Residual equity transfer in - - - - - -
Residual equity transfer out - - - - - -
Transfer from other fund - - - - - -
Transfer to other fund - (3,900,000) (3,900,000) - (1,500,000) (1,500,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) - (3,635,201) (3,635,201) - (1,500,000) (1,500,000)
Net change in fund balance $(2,769,028) 238,844 $ 3,007,872 $ 399,480 488,065 $ 88,585
Fund balance
Beginning $ 9,151,137 $ 5,571,302
Ending $ 9,389,981 $ 6,059,367

See Note to Management Information.
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Statement of Budgetary Comparison - Major Special Revenue Funds by Program
Year ended June 30, 2023

Restricted Restricted
Purposes Purposes Actual Audit Audit Actual
Funds Funds Over (Under) Fund Fund Over (Under)
Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Local governmental sources
Property taxes $ -3 -3 - $ 130,040 $ 67,069 $ (62,971)
Tuition chargeback - - - - - -
Other - - - - - -
Total local government sources - - - 130,040 67,069 (62,971)
State governmental sources 1,878,868 2,888,896 1,010,028 - - -
Federal governmental sources 7,759,021 6,200,269 (1,558,752) - - -
Student tuition and fees 550,000 531,735 (18,265) - - -
Sales, services and rental of facilities - 3,018 3,018 - - -
Investment earnings - - - - 11,472 11,472
Other sources 473,622 315,815 (157,807) - - -
Contingency 3,122,680 - (3,122,680) - - -
Total revenues 13,784,191 9,939,733 (3,844,458) 130,040 78,541 (51,499)
Expenditures:
Current
Instruction 435,344 622,005 186,661 - - -
Academic support 1,285,330 2,271,580 986,250 - - -
Student services 790,488 882,077 91,589 - - -
Public services 822,158 656,384 (165,774) - - -
Institutional support 117,791 180,526 62,735 161,000 76,175 (84,825)
Auxiliary services - - - - - -
Scholarships, student grants, and waivers 7,481,788 6,189,207 (1,292,581) - - -
Operation of physical facilities - - - - - -
Contingency 3,127,000 - (3,127,000) - - -
Total expenditures 14,059,899 10,801,779 (3,258,120) 161,000 76,175 (84,825)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (275,708) (862,046) (586,338) (30,960) 2,366 33,326
Other financing sources (uses):
Bond proceeds - - - - - -
Bond premium (discount) - - - - - -
Subscription proceeds - 371,999 371,999 - - -
Operating transfers in - - - - - -
Operating transfers out - - - - - -
Residual equity transfer in - - - - - -
Residual equity transfer out - - - - - -
Transfer from other fund - 1,900,000 1,900,000 - - -
Transfer to other fund - - - - - -
Total other financing sources - 2,271,999 2,271,999 - - -
Net change in fund balance $ (275,708) 1,409,953 $ 1,685,661 $ (30,960) 2,366 $ 33,326
Fund balance
Beginning $ 11,888,401 $ 278,440
Ending $ 13,298,354 $ 280,806

See Note to Management Information.
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Liability, Liability,
Protection,  Protection,
and and Bond & Bond & Operations &  Operations &
Settlement  Settlement Actual Interest Interest Actual Maintenance, Maintenance, Actual
Fund Fund Over (Under) Fund Fund Over (Under) Restricted Restricted Over (Under)
Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget
$ 3,173,200 $ 2,182,426 $ (990,774) $ 6,615,250 $ 8,054,769 $ 1,439,519 $ 2,174,000 $ 2,228,543 $ 54,543
3,173,200 2,182,426 (990,774) 6,615,250 8,054,769 1,439,519 2,174,000 2,228,543 54,543
- - - - - - - 83,986 83,986
33,000 245,676 212,676 - 79,365 79,365 - 2,285,560 2,285,560
3,206,200 2,428,102 (778,098) 6,615,250 8,134,134 1,518,884 2,174,000 4,598,089 2,424,089
2,623,875 2,242,638 (381,237) 6,617,940 8,857,708 2,239,768 255,816 2,413,888 2,158,072
1,067,896 1,024,218 (43,678) - - - 10,576,284 22,982,569 12,406,285
3,691,771 3,266,856 (424,915) 6,617,940 8,857,708 2,239,768 10,832,100 25,396,457 14,564,357
(485,571) (838,754) (353,183) (2,690) (723,574) (720,884) (8,658,100)  (20,798,368)  (12,140,268)
- - - - - - - 67,735,000 67,735,000
- - - - 1,458,486 1,458,486 - 8,542,969 8,542,969
- 309,847 309,847 - - - - - -
- - - - - - - 2,100,000 2,100,000
- 309,847 309,847 - 1,458,486 1,458,486 - 78,377,969 78,377,969
$ (485,571) (528,907) $ (43,336) $ (2,690) 734912 $ 737,602 $ (8,658,100) 57,579,601 $ 66,237,701
$ 6,579,640 $ 3,338,192 $ 20,006,164
$ 6,050,733 $ 4,073,104 $ 77,585,765
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Statement of Budgetary Comparison - Major Special Revenue Funds by Object
Year ended June 30, 2023

Restricted Restricted

Purposes Purposes Actual Audit Audit Actual
Funds Funds Over (Under) Fund Fund Over (Under)
Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Local governmental sources
Property taxes $ - $ -3 - $130,040 $ 67,069 $ (62,971)
Tuition chargeback - - - - - -
Other - - - - - -
Total local government sources - - - 130,040 67,069 (62,971)
State governmental sources 1,878,868 2,888,896 1,010,028 - - -
Federal governmental sources 7,759,021 6,200,269 (1,558,752) - - -
Student tuition and fees 550,000 531,735 (18,265) - - -
Sales, services and rental of facilities - 3,018 3,018 - - -
Investment earnings - - - - 11,472 11,472
Other sources 473,622 315,815 (157,807) - - -
Contingency 3,122,680 - (3,122,680) - - -
Total revenues 13,784,191 9,939,733 (3,844,458) 130,040 78,541 (51,499)
Expenditures:
Current
Salaries 1,502,187 1,645,898 143,711 - - -
Benefits 457,750 520,211 62,461 - - -
Contractual Services 994,459 953,512 (40,947) 161,000 76,175 (84,825)
Supplies & Materials 329,106 532,862 203,756 - - -
Conference & Meetings 93,244 128,964 35,720 - - -
Fixed Charges 32,400 152,833 120,433 - - -
Utilities 103,362 106,393 3,031 - - -
Capital Outlay - 440,582 440,582 - - -
Other 7,420,391 6,320,524 (1,099,867) - - -
Contingency 3,127,000 - (3,127,000) - - -
Total expenditures 14,059,899 10,801,779 (3,258,120) 161,000 76,175 (84,825)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (275,708) (862,046) (586,338) (30,960) 2,366 33,326
Other financing sources (uses):
Bond proceeds - - - - - -
Bond premium (discount) - - - - - -
Subscription proceeds - 371,999 371,999 - - -
Operating transfers in - - - - - -
Operating transfers out - - - - - -
Residual equity transfer in - - - - - -
Residual equity transfer out - - - - - -
Transfer from other fund - 1,900,000 1,900,000 - - -
Transfer to other fund - - - - - -
Total other financing sources - 2,271,999 2,271,999 - - -
Net change in fund balance $ (275,708) 1,409,953 $ 1,685,661 $ (30,960) 2,366 $ 33,326
Fund balance
Beginning $11,888,401 $ 278,440
Ending $13,298,354 $ 280,806

See Note to Management Information.
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Liability, Liability,
Protection,  Protection,
and and Bond & Bond & Operations & Operations &
Settlement  Settlement Actual Interest Interest Actual Maintenance, Maintenance, Actual
Fund Fund Over (Under) Fund Fund Over (Under) Restricted Restricted Over (Under)
Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget
$ 3,173,200 $ 2,182,426 $ (990,774) $ 6,615,250 § 8,054,769 $ 1,439,519 $ 2,174,000 $ 2,228,543 54,543
3,173,200 2,182,426 (990,774) 6,615,250 8,054,769 1,439,519 2,174,000 2,228,543 54,543
- - - - - - - 83,986 83,986
33,000 245,676 212,676 - 79,365 79,365 - 2,285,560 2,285,560
3,206,200 2,428,102 (778,098) 6,615,250 8,134,134 1,518,884 2,174,000 4,598,089 2,424,089
1,313,005 1,309,449 (3,556) - - - - - -
798,106 681,544 (116,562) - - - - - -
1,170,015 430,594 (739,421) - - - - 55,169 55,169
70,020 59,922 (10,098) - - - 65,314 234,610 169,296
34,425 6,591 (27,834) - - - - - -
301,000 466,110 165,110 6,617,940 8,857,708 2,239,768 - 932,711 932,711
- 309,847 309,847 - - - 10,766,786 23,312,227 12,545,441
5,200 2,799 (2,401) - - - - 861,740 861,740
3,691,771 3,266,856 (424,915) 6,617,940 8,857,708 2,239,768 10,832,100 25,396,457 14,564,357
(485,571) (838,754) (353,183) (2,690) (723,574) (720,884) (8,658,100) (20,798,368) (12,140,268)
- - - - - - - 67,735,000 67,735,000
- - - - 1,458,486 1,458,486 - 8,542,969 8,542,969
- 309,847 309,847 - - - - - -
- - - - - - - 2,100,000 2,100,000
- 309,847 309,847 - 1,458,486 1,458,486 - 78,377,969 78,377,969
$ (485,571) (528,907) $ (43,336) $ (2,690) 734,912 $ 737,602 $ (8,658,100) 57,579,601 $ 66,237,701
$ 6,579,640 $ 3,338,192 $ 20,006,164
$ 6,050,733 $ 4,073,104 $ 77,585,765
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Statement of Budgetary Comparison - Major Special Revenue Funds by Object (continued)
Year ended June 30, 2023

Working
Cash
Fund

Budget

Working
Cash
Fund

Actual

Actual
Over (Under)
Budget

Revenues:
Local governmental sources
Property taxes
Tuition chargeback
Other
Total local government sources
State governmental sources
Federal governmental sources
Student tuition and fees
Sales, services and rental of facilities
Investment earnings
Other sources
Contingency
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current
Salaries
Benefits
Contractual Services
Supplies & Materials
Conference & Meeting
Fixed Charges
Utilities
Capital Outlay
Other
Contingency
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Bond proceeds
Bond premium (discount)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Residual equity transfer in
Residual equity transfer out
Transfer from other fund
Transfer to other fund

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance
Beginning
Ending

See Note to Management Information.
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563,891

486,891

563,891

486,891

$ 77,000

563,891

$ 14,206,050

$ 14,769,941

$ 486,891



Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Statement of Budgetary Comparison - Proprietary Fund by Program

Year ended June 30, 2023

Auxiliary Auxiliary
Fund Fund
Budget Actual

Actual
Over (Under)
Budget

Revenues:
Local governmental sources
Property taxes
Tuition chargeback
Other
Total local government sources
State governmental sources
Federal governmental sources
Student tuition and fees
Sales, services and rental of facilities
Investment earnings
Other sources
Contingency
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current
Instruction
Academic support
Student services
Public services
Institutional support
Auxiliary services
Scholarships, student grants, and waivers
Operation of physical facilities
Contingency
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Bond proceeds
Bond premium (discount)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Residual equity transfer in
Residual equity transfer out
Transfer from other fund
Transfer to other fund
Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance
Beginning
Ending

See Note to Management Information.

150,000 142,283
809,700 1,046,949
1,000 8,168
9,150 18,202

(7,717)
237,249
7,168
9,052

969,850 1,215,602

245,752

1,714,291 1,793,017

1,714,291 1,793,017

(744,441)  (577,415)

167,026

1,400,000

1,400,000

1,400,000

1,400,000

5 (@A 822585

$1,182,717

$ 2,005,302

$ 1,567,026
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Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Statement of Budgetary Comparison - Proprietary Fund by Object
Year ended June 30, 2023

Auxiliary Auxiliary Actual
Fund Fund Over (Under)
Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Local governmental sources
Property taxes $ - 8 - 9 -
Tuition chargeback - - -
Other - - -
Total local government sources - - -
State governmental sources - - -
Federal governmental sources - - -
Student tuition and fees 150,000 142,283 (7,717)
Sales, services and rental of facilities 809,700 1,046,949 237,249
Investment earnings 1,000 8,168 7,168
Other sources 9,150 18,202 9,052
Contingency - - -
Total revenues 969,850 1,215,602 245,752
Expenditures:
Current
Salaries 448,584 420,881 (27,703)
Benefits 72,411 82,432 10,021
Contractual Services 155,927 101,821 (54,106)
Supplies & Materials 767,366 966,546 199,180
Conference & Meeting 259,503 205,048 (54,455)
Fixed Charges 1,000 1,937 937
Utilities - - -
Capital Outlay - - -
Other 9,500 14,352 4,852
Contingency - - -
Total expenditures 1,714,291 1,793,017 78,726
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (744,441) (577,415) 167,026
Other financing sources (uses):
Bond proceeds - - -
Bond premium (discount) - - -
Operating transfers in - - -
Operating transfers out - - -
Residual equity transfer in - - -
Residual equity transfer out - - -
Transfer from other fund - 1,400,000 1,400,000
Transfer to other fund - - -
Total other financing sources - 1,400,000 1,400,000
Net change in fund balance $ (744,441) 822,585 $ 1,567,026
Fund balance
Beginning $ 1,182,717
Ending $ 2,005,302

See Note to Management Information.

180



Black Hawk College
lllinois Community College District #503

Note to Management Information

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fund Accounting: In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of available
resources, the accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting as promulgated
in the ICCB Fiscal Management Manual. Financial statements by fund, required by the ICCB, are included as
supplemental information. This is the procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified for
accounting and reporting purposes into funds that are in accordance with activities or objectives specified.
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